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1. Introductory words of Oschadbank Supervisory Board Chairwoman

Dear Friends,
While writing this letter, full-scale invasion of Ukraine by russia continues for four months already. Ongoing
hostilities make year 2021 ancient history and changes economic
landscape forever causing Ukraine's economy to contract by at least one-
third in 2022 and drive up inflation to over 20%.
2021 was important for the development of Oschadbank: continuous
improvement of bank’s services for Ukrainian people and business
resulted in net fee and commission income increased by UAH 1.2 bn (25%
compared to 2020), we paid the largest dividend amount in its history to
our Shareholder - the state: UAH 832.9 m. Year 2021 was also devoted to
the preparation to serve Ukrainians and support the business during war.
The Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine approved the development strategy
of Oschadbank until 2024. Oschad was and remains universal systemic
bank serving retail clients as well as corporate business and micro, small
and medium business. We maintain these directions even during the war. I assure you, that we will continue to
stand by you in good times and bad times, all the while working hard to serve your needs better.
In the reporting year, we reached an important milestone on the way to privatisation: Oschadbank and the
European Bank for Reconstruction and Development (EBRD), with the support of the Ministry of Finance of
Ukraine, signed a mandate letter on the terms of future cooperation and the provision, by the EBRD, of long-term
financing in the form of subordinated debt with the possibility of conversion into shares of Oschadbank.
I express my deep gratitude to the bank’s Management Board and employees of the results achieved by your hard
work. Oschad remains among leaders in the banking system in terms of customer loan portfolio and funds raised
from legal entities and individuals. The bank implemented several important digital services. A key were the launch
of the new Mobile Oschad application, identification and verification via Diia at Oschadbank branches, launch of
the eSupport digital card, introduction of the Sofia voice assistant in the Contact Centre. The number of
mobile/web banking customers grew by 840,000 over the year to 5.9 m users. Oschad also undergoes
centralization in it’s business model heading towards the operational models and control system used in European
banks.
The initiatives started in 2021 will continue. Meeting the expectations and objectives set for us by the Shareholder,
while providing high quality services to our customers remain our main priorities.

Best regards,
Baiba Apine

Baiba Apine,
JSC “Oschadbank” Supervisory Board
Chairwoman
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2. Introductory words of Oschadbank CEO

Dear Friends,
Reporting year 2021 was an extraordinary one both for the Ukrainian economy
and for Oschadbank. The coronavirus epidemic had a negative impact on the
financial sector. The international security situation around Ukraine continued to
escalate, culminating in the launch of a full-scale aggression against our country
in February 2022. At the same time, we managed to maintain the stability and
profitability of our financial institution and continued reforms to improve its
performance: these are the main results of the bank's team work in the past year.
On October 12, 2021, the Cabinet of Ministers approved the Development
Strategy of Oschadbank for 2021-2024. The main objective of the document is to
prepare the bank for full or majority privatisation by 2025.
The basis for this document is the Principles of Strategic Reforms in the State
Banking Sector, which the Government of Ukraine approved in early September
2020. These principles contain Oschad's key performance targets for the next 5

years.
The strategy envisages that Oschadbank will continue to be a universal bank with strong positions in retail, MSME
and corporate segments. Oschad should increase its business volumes and market shares in retail and MSME
segments. In the corporate business, the focus should shift from the public sector to the private one. To improve
efficiency, the bank will continue to optimise its network and further digitalise its services.
To improve Oschadbank's investment appeal, we plan to significantly increase return on equity, significantly
reduce the cost/income ratio, join the Deposit Guarantee Fund (successfully done in 2022) and develop strategic
partnership with an international investor. At the same time, it should be noted that due to russia's full-scale
aggression, the current version of the strategy needs to be substantially adjusted.
In 2021, Oschadbank demonstrated a significant improvement in operating results, stable profitable operations
and business growth. Thus, Oschadbank's operating profit for 2021 is UAH 5.5 bn, which is several times higher
than the result of the previous year. Taking into account the negative trading result of UAH 4.4 bn caused by the
strengthening of hryvnia and the corresponding indexation of securities in the Oschad portfolio, the net profit is
UAH 1.1 bn, which is significantly higher than planned.
Oschadbank has made significant progress in managing its non-performing portfolio in 2021. During 2021, this
indicator calculated using the NBU methodology decreased by UAH 18.3 bn (to 33%). Such a result has been
achieved thanks to the use of the widest toolkit for distressed debt management.
Oschad continues to be a leader in the banking system in terms of customer loan portfolio and funds raised from
legal entities and individuals. The net loan portfolio as compared with the beginning of the year increased by UAH
11.5 bn or 18.2%, and amounts to UAH 74.8 bn.
The growth rate of the retail business resource base was higher than the average in the banking system.
Oschadbank's retail loan portfolio increased by UAH 4.7 bn to UAH 13.6 bn. The main drivers of portfolio growth
were car loans, payment card loans, mortgage loans and cash loans. In total, at the end of 2021 the balances of
the accounts of individuals at Oschadbank amounted to UAH 123.5 bn. In this amount, more than 55% are term
deposits. This indicates a constant trust of depositors. At the same time, the share of deposits opened through
the Internet and Oschad 24/7 mobile application increased up to 37%.
Oschadbank actively supports micro, small and medium businesses in Ukraine. During 2021, Oschad achieved
significant growth in the MSME loan portfolio. The growth is more than UAH 3.7 bn. Last year, the bank financed
over 4.5 th. business customers. The total amount of new loan agreements signed is UAH 7.3 bn, UAH 3.6 bn of
which were directed to financial support of agricultural enterprises. Dynamic loan portfolio growth (better than
competitor banks) was demonstrated by all segments: micro, small and medium business. At that, in partnership
aspect, the growth more than doubled: in the portfolio from UAH 0.6 bn to UAH 1.3 bn, in number of loan
transactions: from 425 to 917.
In 2021, the net loan portfolio of corporate business (excluding non-performing loans) increased by UAH 4.2 bn to
UAH 42 bn as of the end of the year. During 2021, Oschadbank entered into loan agreements for new projects

Sergii Naumov,
CEO of JSC "Oschadbank"
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worth over UAH 11.5 bn. Among them are private companies operating in various sectors of the economy and
municipalities.
Oschadbank paid the largest dividend amount in its history to the state budget in 2021: UAH 832.9 m.
Oschad implemented 10 projects and 1 transformation programme in 2021. Among the completed projects, first
of all I would like to mention two initiatives implemented with the help of our strategic partner, the EBRD.
The first project is to strengthen the bank's position in lending to micro, small and medium businesses. The main
objective is to improve the operational efficiency of the regional network in servicing MSME, taking into account
the best practices of banks in Central and Eastern Europe. The main successes and achievements of the project
include preparation of recommendations for the transformation of MSME lending process in terms of creating a
new service model for medium business and automation of the lending process for all MSME segments, as well as
improvement of product range and creating a cross-selling model. These recommendations have already been put
into practice.
Another project is the management accounting system development. It resulted, as envisaged by the Terms of
Reference for its implementation, in the following: Concept of the bank Management Accounting System (MAS)
together with a roadmap for its implementation, a target IT architecture and MAS data architecture, a draft
Transfer Pricing Methodology (FTP) and pilot testing of transfer pricing automation software.
The next steps aimed at ensuring transparent assessment of Oschadbank's profitability in terms of each business
segment will be: transition to a new pricing system (FTP to replace internal payment systems), allocation of costs
and non-interest income by business segments and introduction of new reporting forms.
In line with the adopted development strategy, Oschadbank continued to digitalise its services. I would like to
highlight several innovations.
Mobile Oschad.
The Mobile Oschad application is the bank's key project. It should completely replace the previous version of
Oschad 24/7. In terms of functionality and product range, Mobile Oschad should be as close as possible to the
concept of a "digital branch". It already meets key customer needs: 95% of the most popular transactions are
represented here.
New website.
Since the launch of the new website, there has been an increase in the number of applications for products directly
from it. The number of visitors and the speed of page loading have doubled. Advantages include easy navigation,
adaptive design and inclusiveness.
OschadPAY update.
In 2021, the functionality of OschadPAY merchant application was significantly updated, which allows using a
smartphone with an NFC module based on Android version 8.0 or higher as a merchant POS terminal without
additional equipment. In early 2022, OschadPAY became a cash register with the function of fiscal payment
through software-based transaction recording.
Identification and verification through Diia in branches.
Identification and verification through the Diia app has made branch servicing faster and more convenient. A
customer only needs to tell a bank employee or cashier the barcode number of his document from Diia.
Sofia voice assistant.
Since July 2021, Sofia voice assistant helps solve more than 60% of customer requests to the Contact Centre of
Oschadbank: it consults, provides 24 payment card support services (from checking account and debt status to
the change of withdrawal limits, transfer of funds, mobile top-up), and schedules an appointment at a branch.
The current situation in the country, namely the outbreak of a full-scale war, has presented the bank with new
challenges, which we are coping with. Our focus now is on the continuity of financial services wherever the security
situation allows. We believe that with our victory, Oschadbank will continue the planned reforms and become an
even more effective financial institution.

Sincerely yours,
Sergii Naumov
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3. Nature of business
3.1 Macroeconomic environment and the bank's competitive position
The Ukrainian economy grew by 3.4% in 2021 after falling by 4% in 2020. The effects of the COVID-19 pandemic
had a significant impact on real GDP growth.
The domestic inflationary pressure in 2021 was exacerbated by high global inflation. Energy, transport and housing
maintenance costs for households rose, while the cost of food in the consumer basket increased. Inflation rose
sharply in the middle of the year. However, the increase of discount rate by the National Bank of Ukraine from 6%
to 9% p.a. contributed to gradual slowdown of inflation to 10% p.a. by the end of 2021.
Foreign exchange reserves at the end of 2021 were at the level of 4 months of future imports and stood at USD
31 bn. Over the past year, supply and demand for foreign exchange on the interbank market were nearly balanced.
A rapid improvement in external price conditions for Ukrainian exporters was balanced by a dynamic build-up of
imports and capital outflows of non-residents with government bonds. The latter was due to weak economic
recovery in Ukraine and escalating military and political threats.
Non-residents' investments in government securities decreased to UAH 83.9 bn (about USD 3 bn equivalent), the
lowest level since December 2020. The negative information backdrop resulting from increased geopolitical
tensions around Ukraine determined a reduced propensity to invest in government bonds by both non-residents
and legal entities and individuals.
Due to intensified lending, the level of dollarisation of corporate debt was reduced from 72% to 66% in 2021,
resulting in lower currency risks for the economy and a partial increase in its resilience to the impact of external
shocks.
For 2021, the banking sector had the historically highest profit of UAH 77.5 bn (+95.4% y/y), mainly due to rapid
growth in operating income and lower allowances for provisions.
In 2021, Ukrainian banks' net loan portfolio in UAH grew by 40.2%. Net foreign currency loans increased by 9.6%
compared to 2020. The rate of retail lending exceeded the pre-pandemic COVID-19 level: net loans in UAH to
households increased by 36.9% over the year. Growth in net real estate loans in UAH was 62.4% y/y.
NPLs decreased in the total portfolio by 11.0% to 30.0% in 2021. State-owned banks were the largest contributors
to the decline in NPLs in 2021.
UAH-denominated retail deposits with banks increased by 15.3% in 2021. At the same time, retail term deposits
in national currency grew slower: by 9.6% for the year. The vast majority of new term deposits were for three
months or more. The total amount of individuals' deposits in foreign currency decreased by 1.8% (in USD
equivalent) during the year due to the outflow of term deposits. Funds of business entities in national currency
increased by 26.4% over the year. Funds of businesses in foreign currencies (USD equivalent) increased by 3.9%.
As far as the competitive position is concerned, it should be noted that Oschadbank belongs to the systemically
important Ukrainian banks and ranks second among Ukrainian banks in terms of assets, loans and deposits. As of
the end of 2021 Oschadbank is the largest bank in Ukraine by the number of branches and the second largest bank
by the size of the card business infrastructure (number of ATMs and payment terminals).

3.2 Brief description of current business model
According to its business model, Oschadbank is a universal bank that gives priority to expanding its retail and
micro, small and medium business (MSME), while retaining a firm position in corporate business.
As of the end of 2021, the structure of Oschadbank’s assets was as follows:
55% is investment portfolio; 32% is net loan portfolio; 13% is other assets. The loan portfolio is primarily
represented by the debt of corporate customers: 69%, as well as that of individuals: 18% and MSME customers:
13%. The term deposit portfolio comprises 88% retail deposits, 9% MSME deposits and 3% corporate deposits.
The bigger part of Oschadbank's interest income is generated by loans issued to legal entities and investments in
securities.
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3.3     Main products and services
As a universal bank, Oschadbank offers its customers a broad range of banking products and services.
The main products of retail business include:
 liability products: term deposits, payroll programs, pension and social accounts, special current accounts
and debit cards (including digital and virtual cards);
 asset products: car loans, consumer loans and mortgages, cash loans, credit cards, participation in
government incentive programmes for energy efficiency;
 products generating commission and trade income: payments of individuals, national and international
money transfers, rent of individual safes, foreign exchange transactions, and transactions with banking metals;
 additional services: remote service system Oschad 24/7, certified electronic signature.
The main products of MSME include:
 liability products: term deposits, deposits on demand, and current accounts;
 asset products: loans for working capital replenishment, purchase of vehicles and equipment (in particular
through partnership programmes), overdrafts (including unsecured), loans for associations of condominium co-
owners / apartment houses, lending programmes within the scope of cooperation with international organisations
(WNISEF, EBRD, EIB, and EIF), cooperation programmes with the Entrepreneurship Development Fund (Affordable
Loans 5-7-9%, lending secured by state guarantees, FinancЕast etc.), microlending programme, guarantees, and
bills avalisation;
 additional services:
- CorpLight, a system for remote account management for MSME customers, which meets the requirements of
the present-day market and is among the TOP-3 in the market as per user options;
- programme "Build Yours", which aims to develop small business in Ukraine and includes four elements: training
on separate portal "Build Yours"; partner discounts for Oschadbank’s customers; banking products (bank account,
corporate card, the CorpLight remote service system) and business financing as part of standard MSME
programmes.
The main products of corporate business include:
 loans and overdrafts for corporate business; project financing;
 financing of municipalities, support of energy enterprises, financing of state-owned enterprises against
state guarantees to support government initiatives;
 liability products: term deposits, current accounts of corporate customers, current accounts with a special
use regime and escrow accounts for legal entities;
 additional services:

- Corp2 system of remote management of corporate customers’ accounts, which, inter alia, provides customer
friendly options for managing accounts within the framework of a group of companies, namely the possibility
for representatives of the parent company to review and/or confirm transactions under accounts of all the
companies being members of the group;

- Web-service for exchange of electronic documents for interaction when transferring documents from a
counterparty to Oschadbank using the Exchange of Documents widget (as part of general document flow,
exchange of currency control documents etc.).

As part of development of interbank business and correspondent relations, during 2021 Oschadbank expanded
its network of correspondent banks. As of 31.12.2021, the network of partner banks consisted of 36 banks.
Oschadbank serves 20 banks, for which it opened 53 correspondent loro accounts. Oschadbank opened 43
correspondent nostro accounts in 20 financial institutions, including with the leading American and European
banks. Also, Oschadbank actively maintained cooperation with Ukrainian banks under General Agreements on
Interbank Transactions. As of 31.12.2021, such agreements were concluded with 42 resident banks.
Part of Treasury's activities include the following services:
 government securities (government bonds) purchase/sale transactions on behalf of customers of all business
lines as a primary dealer on organised (stock exchange) and non-organised (over-the-counter) markets;
 organising and executing direct dealing with Oschadbank's customers in foreign currency
purchase/sale/exchange transactions.
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4. Management objectives and strategies to achieve them:
4.1      Mission, goal and corporate values
Oschadbank’s mission is to change itself and initiate positive changes in the country, to be the bank of the first
choice, emotionally close to every Ukrainian.

The strategic goal is to be a profitable, commercially oriented bank with high business sustainability, a leader in
innovation and customer satisfaction.
Oschadbank's corporate values are:
 Human
We strive to become the number one bank for customers and employees. Our team is the driving force behind
positive changes. Each team member benefits from decent conditions for effective work, training, and
development. Our customers are partners who trust us. We create high-quality modern products and services for
them. We are building a barrier-free environment in which everyone will feel comfortable.
 Development
We believe that the growth of each of us is the key to success of the bank as a whole. We are convinced that the
bank's development is an important contribution to building a prosperous state. We encourage initiatives at all
managerial levels, introduce innovations, and are committed to meet the expectations of customers in all areas,
from products and technologies to the quality of services and communications.
 Transparency
We work honestly and transparently. We strictly adhere to the generally recognised principles, regulations of the
National Bank of Ukraine and current legislation of Ukraine. We value decency and always strive to justify the trust
of customers, employees, partners, and the shareholder.

4.2 The bank's strategy
At the beginning of 2021, Oschadbank was guided by the Development Strategy for 2018-2022 approved by the
Highest Governing Body, the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine, in February 2018.
Oschadbank's strategy was designed for five years: from 2018 to 2022 inclusive. It provided for the diversification
and growth of business based on satisfaction of customer needs in a quality manner, internal optimisation of the
structure and processes, development of digital customer service channels, with a gradual achievement of high
and stable profitability by 2022.
This version of the Development Strategy set strategic goals and indicators for their achievement. The key strategic
goals until 2022 have been defined:
1. Growth of assets, including the loan portfolio, namely:
- growth of total assets to UAH 334 billion;
- retail loan portfolio growth – reaching the market share of 11-13%;
- MSME loan portfolio growth – reaching the market share of 7-10%;
- corporate loan portfolio growth – reaching the market share of 18%.
2. Reducing the cost of risk (COR) to 2%.
3. Increase in return on equity (ROE) to 12%.
4. Decrease in cost-to-income ratio (CIR) to 63%.
As part of revision of the Development Strategy of Oschadbank for 2018-2022, taking into account the current
realities, updated forecasts of the macro environment and increased emphasis on the financial performance of
the state-owned banks, following the Principles of Strategic Reforms in the State Banking Sector (strategic
principles) and Core Activities of Oschadbank for 2020-2024 approved by Ordinance of the Cabinet of Ministers of
Ukraine No 1411 of November 11, 2020, the bank elaborated an updated strategic document: the Development
Strategy of Oschadbank for 2021–2024, which was approved by the Bank's shareholder, the Government of
Ukraine (Ordinance of the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine of 12 October 2021).
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In accordance with the Development Strategy of Oschadbank for 2021-2024:

 Oschadbank is a universal bank with strong positions in retail, MSME and corporate segments.
 In the short term (2021 to HY1 2022), the first priority should have been to overcome the crisis caused by
COVID-19. The bank should focus on preserving its business and maintaining its financial capacity.
 In the long term (2023-2024), Oschad will strengthen its market position as a profitable, commercially
oriented universal bank, a leader in terms of innovation and customer satisfaction.
 The strategy implies diversification and business growth with consistent improvements in profitability.
The growth is ensured by maintaining significant lending to the corporate sector and increasing lending to retail
and MSME sectors.
 The bank is to expand its lending business with a focus on private companies, the retail sector and MSME.
The share of corporate business in net loans is to be reduced from 77% in 2021 to 65% in 2024, while the share of
state-owned enterprises is to be reduced from 30% to 20%.
 The main task of the corporate business is to work with the following sectors and customers:
- main focus: large private companies (services, industry, agribusiness, selective energy);
- municipalities and municipal enterprises with good outlook for cooperation;
- weighted cooperation with state-owned companies (taking into account the goal to increase the share of
private business in the portfolio);
- weighted cooperation with infrastructure companies.
The main objective of the Strategy in NPL management is gradual reduction of the NPL portfolio to 10% through
repayment of debts, debt reclassification, write-off against provisions, as well as taking possible measures by the
bank under CMU Resolution No 281 of 15.04.2020 to achieve the planned NPA decrease by using the debt
sale/partial forgiveness instrument.
In accordance with Development Strategy for 2021-2024, Oschadbank is developing its strategic partnership with
the EBRD in terms of engaging the EBRD as an "anchor" investor to prepare the bank for privatisation.
Representatives of Oschadbank together with the EBRD, the Ministry of Finance of Ukraine and the National Bank
of Ukraine have established a standing working group to consider and discuss preliminary conditions of
cooperation within the framework of the bank's privatisation. The work has resulted in signing of a Mandate Letter
by Oschadbank and the EBRD, agreed by the MoF on 22 October 2021, on conditions of future cooperation and
EBRD's provision of up to EUR 100 m long-term financing as a subordinated loan with a possibility of conversion
into Oschadbank shares.

4.3 Criteria for measuring success and achievements
An analysis of Oschadbank's financial indicators for 2021 allows us to state that the bank has consistently adhered
to the vector of development that was defined in its strategic documents.
These documents provide for a stronger focus on the commercial success and set a strategic objective – to prepare
the bank for privatisation. The figure below provides an updated review of the bank's strategic directions,
objectives and target indicators.
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4.4 Significant changes in targets and achievements
In 2021, Oschadbank acted pursuant to its Development strategy for 2021-2024. However, due to the full-scale
invasion and start of military operations by the russian federation in February 2022, the bank's strategic objectives
and tasks were revised.
Being aware of the role and importance of Oschadbank as a systemically important one for the country's economy,
since the beginning of the war, the bank has been continuously developing and taking measures to support the
country's economy, support micro, small and medium businesses as well as large business entities.
On May 7, 2022, the Cabinet Ministers of Ukraine approved the Main (Strategic) Lines of Action for State-Owned
Banks During Martial Law and Post-War Economic Recovery.
The strategic lines of action envisage the following:
 during martial law it is neither relevant nor feasible to meet the peacetime expected performance
indicators for state-owned banks as set out in the Strategic Principles for Reforming the State-owned Banking
Sector (Strategic Principles) as amended on September 2, 2020, nor is it possible to meet the key aspects, priorities
and performance indicators set out in each of the state-owned banks' development strategies;
 during martial law and post-war economic recovery, the mission of state-owned banks is to actively
contribute to ensuring financial stability of Ukraine, maintaining and supporting stable functioning of the banking
sector, financing priority sectors of the economy, and ensuring uninterrupted functioning of critical infrastructure
enterprises (facilities), including those that are state-owned;
 one of the strategic goals during martial law and post-war economic recovery is to ensure financial
support of priority sectors of the economy and enterprises (facilities) of the critical infrastructure;
 The main priorities in activities of state-owned banks should include, but not be limited to, financing of:
- business entities suffered from the armed aggression of the russian federation against Ukraine and/or for
prevention of such aggression, in particular, for satisfaction of needs of the Armed Forces of Ukraine;
- agrarian sector of economy for the purpose of food supply of the country;
- and related industries that support operations of agricultural enterprises;
- enterprises (facilities) of critical infrastructure;
- enterprises of food industry, food retail and related sectors,
- infrastructure projects and transport and logistics infrastructure of the country and projects related to the
development of new logistics solutions;
- support for the relocation of enterprises that were located in regions of Ukraine where active hostilities
took place;
- projects to develop production capacities for import substitution of products imported from russia and/or
belarus.
In addition, Oschadbank, amid martial law and significant restrictions on the use of a number of settlement
instruments, continues to take actions aimed at reducing non-performing assets and foreclosed property.
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It should also be noted that taking into account the current situation and in accordance with the NBU operational
rules, banks shall update the distressed asset management strategy and the operational plan for implementing
the distressed asset management strategy no later than 90 calendar days after the termination or lifting of martial
law.

5. Performance results and further growth
5.1     Major events of 2021
The continued COVID-19-caused crisis posed numerous challenges and threats, which, according to the NBU
estimations, were complicated by slow economic growth. However, Ukraine ended the year showing economic
growth and resumed lending.

Oschadbank's key achievements by business line.

Retail business. In 2021, Oschadbank actively and steadily lent to borrowers for the purchase of new and used
cars, which allowed it to take the first place in the car lending market. During 2021, 7,224 car loans to the amount
of UAH 4.0 bn were issued, which is UAH 2.1 bn more than in 2020.
In 2021, the number of banks issuing mortgages increased, but Oschad retained its leading position with a market
share of 20.4%. In total, Oschadbank launched mortgage centres in 2021 and issued 2,551 mortgages worth UAH
1.9 bn, i.e. 1.6 times more than in 2020.
The bank definitively strengthened its position in the cash lending market that is new to it. In 2021, Oschadbank
issued 19.3 th. cash loans for UAH 1.4 bn, which is UAH 0.7 bn more than in 2020.
During 2021, Oschadbank increased its card loan portfolio. The total amount of the credit limit on credit cards
used by customers is UAH 5.1 bn, which is UAH 0.8 bn more than in 2020.
The growth in lending was ensured by effective deposit-raising efforts: Oschadbank is one of the leaders in the
banking market in terms of the dynamics of the individuals' deposit portfolio with 22% market share as of the end
of 2021. Oschadbank ranks 2nd in the retail deposit market, with a cost of funds raised below the market.
The total balances on individual accounts at the end of the year stood at UAH 123.5 bn. At the same time, the
bank is consistently diversifying the structure of funds acquired from individuals in the direction of reducing the
share of funds in foreign currencies.
In 2021, Oschadbank registered its own international payment system, My Transfer, and launched it commercially.
It also launched a new transfer service without opening accounts using SWIFT.
In 2021, Oschadbank launched the updated OschadPAY mobile application, which enables cashless payments
using a smartphone based on Android version 8.0 or higher with an NFC module.  In addition, OschadPAY users
have the following options: logging into the app using biometrics, PIN or password; sending a receipt as a text
message, e-mail or any available method; viewing, filtering and searching for transactions; creating a list of goods
and reflecting them in the receipt.
Oschadbank ranks second in the acquiring market in terms of the number of POS terminals and is actively
developing this sphere. During 2021, additional services were implemented such as DCC, Instalment credit,
purchase with cash back, tips on waiter's card. Internet acquiring customers were switched to 3DS 2.0 technology.
AtlasWeekend and AtlasBukovel cashless projects were implemented. Internal business processes were
optimised: connection to acquiring on the terms and conditions of the Public Agreement (Offer) was introduced,
reporting on transactions through the Merchant portal service was introduced.
Oschad ranks second among Ukrainian banks by the number of active payment cards and users of digital service
channels (87,008 customers were financially activated through the Oschad 24/7 service in 2021). Oschadbank
launched the new Mobile Oschad application, which will fully replace the Oschad 24/7 application during 2022.
The new mobile app is built on the Flutter platform, which ensures rapid implementation of changes, system
flexibility and improves its performance.
Oschadbank provides services to legal entities for crediting and paying salaries and scholarship using payment
cards. In 2021, the number of active salary accounts of individuals gives the bank the 2nd place with market share
of 25.5% (1.286 m active accounts), and the number of active salary agreements with legal entities gives it the 4th
place with market share of 7.4%% (28.6 th. salary project agreements). The average monthly salary fund
transferred to salary accounts is UAH 14.7 bn, which is every seventh hryvnia of all salary funds transferred to
salaried staff or 14.5% of all private entrepreneurs in Ukraine. A partnership project with Naftogaz was
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implemented. For 2021, revenues from sales within salary projects were UAH 2.3 bn. The amount of used credit
card limits in salary projects was UAH 3.2 bn, which amounted to 23% of Oschadbank's total retail loan portfolio.
For 2022, the prospective tasks are to increase market share of the bank's salary project portfolio as well as to
diversify this portfolio by increasing the share of the commercial segment and "free market" customers (without
concluded salary project agreements with legal entities) in it.
26% of all pensioners in the country receive their pensions through Oschadbank; the number of open pension
cards is 2.8 million.
Issue of cards in Oschad24/7 was launched as part of the eSupport programme (≈750,000 cards). Customer
identification through Diia was introduced. Dynamic currency conversion service (DCC) for MasterCard cards in
POS terminals was implemented. Mastercard Instalment service was introduced. Datamart, a system for storing
and processing historical data, was introduced.
Product and data exchange with IPS under the eSupport project was introduced. Microservice of targeted tip
payment for merchant acquiring was introduced. Loyalty programme with choice of trading segment in Oschad24
and grace period of 92 days was implemented.
The following projects were also implemented:
Chat bot:
Self-service services were implemented:
- set and change PIN,
- receive CVV code,
- activation of concierge service,
- setting up a channel for informing about tariffs,
- EDS generation,
- ordering a My Card debit card,
- setting up the Transaction Awareness Service.
September 2021: implementation of a module to use direct links directly to chatbot services (to enable login from
landing pages)
December 2021: launch of chatbot updated structure and flow.
Regarding telephony:
July 2021: launch of an IVR (Sofia contact centre voice assistant), which provides 24 card-based self-service
services.
December 2021: the service of setting up an information channel in the telephone self-service mode was
implemented.
MSME. In 2021, Oschadbank also retained its leading position in the MSME segment, and there was significant
growth in certain areas. In 2021, one of the bank's main objectives was to increase lending volumes, build up the
resource base and significantly improve service conditions for customers in the MSME segment, introduce new
and improve existing banking products, expand the list of services and significantly increase cross-selling of
banking products.
Oschad has been actively supporting the MSME segment, with an additional 25,200 micro, small and medium
business representatives becoming its customers over the 12 months of 2021.
Since the beginning of the year, the balance of debt1 on loans granted to MSME customers increased by
UAH 3.5 bn (by 61.4%) and as of 01.01.2022 made UAH 9.2 bn. Thus, the plan has been over-fulfilled by
UAH 2.3 bn, and the bank took the 4th place in the market in the MSME loan portfolio growth rate in 2021.
The bank is actively working to increase the MSME loan portfolio, cooperates in this direction with various
international organisations (European Investment Bank, European Investment Fund, Entrepreneurship
Development Fund, WNISEF), takes part in government funding programs (as part of customer support for
agribusiness, condominiums, financing of municipalities, affordable loans 5-7-9 etc.), partnership programs for the
purchase of agricultural machinery and equipment, expanding the list of lending programs and improving the
lending terms. During 12 months of 2021, 4,585 loans (that is 54% more than last year), worth UAH 7.3 bn, were

1 Loan principal including discounts/premiums
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issued to MSME customers, of which 3,389 loans worth UAH 2.2 bn were issued within the microlending
programme framework.
Since the beginning of 2021, the balance of overdue indebtedness on loans granted to MSME customers decreased
by UAH 102.6 m (or by 15.3%) and as of 01.01.2022 made UAH 513.6 m.
The share of overdue indebtedness as a whole for the bank in the respective loan portfolio decreased from 10.6%
since the beginning of 2021 down to 5.5% as of 01.01.2022.
Since the beginning of 2021, the balance of funds of MSME customers2 as a whole for the bank increased by 1.1%
or by UAH 0.3 m and made UAH 27.2 bn.
Fee and commission income from transactions with MSME customers for 2021 amounted to UAH 677.4 m. In
comparison with 2020, the fee and commission income of MSME increased by UAH 118.2 m or 21.1%.
During 2021, a number of existing processes were optimised and new processes were developed in the lending
sphere to improve MSME customers' access to finance:
 a new credit policy was approved for customers in the Medium Business segment;
 the Unsecured Loan banking product was introduced;
 a new automatic decision-making process for loans of up to UAH 500 th. was implemented;
 decision-making process for a series of loans was implemented;
 a simplified lending process for MSME customers under partner programmes was implemented;
 Social Enterprises Lending, a new banking product for lending to business entities, whose activities ensure
the implementation of social programmes together with WNISEF and Impact UKRAINE funds, was approved;
 automatic generation of printed forms of agreements for the Microloan to MSME Customers product for
unsecured loans was introduced (the time saving on drawing up such agreements is 70%);
 the package of documents required for making a decision on MSME loans was optimised;
 the list of penalties for MSME loans was reduced and their amounts were optimised;
 the conclusion of vehicle pledge agreements was simplified;
 the list of standard covenants for MSME lending was approved;
 additional complex covenants were abolished for loans up to UAH 3 m;
 standard loan agreements with the possibility of using a floating interest rate were developed;
In addition, the Corplight remote service system continued to be developed during 2021:
 the user interface was changed, existing functions and navigation in the system were improved;
 SWIFT GPI tracker for tracking swift payments was implemented;
 import/export of payments was implemented.
Corporate business. During 2021, the corporate loan portfolio (excluding loans granted before 2014-15 and which
were recognised as distressed loans) increased by more than UAH 63 billion (15% year on year), including a number
of loan agreements with municipalities in the amount of UAH 3.9 billion, which allowed the bank to take the first
place in the lending market in this segment.
The plans4 for the volume of interest (+15%) and fee and commission (+10%) income, and the volume of
fundraising were exceeded.
A number of business processes and regulatory requirements for corporate business customers servicing were
optimised:
 Changes were made to the credit process: Optimisation of the loan agreement, the package of documents,
the procedure for disbursing funds, the possibility of using a variable interest rate was introduced, the list and the
minimum recommended amount of fees and commissions were changed;
 Powers among the Management board, the Credit Committee (the "CC") and the CC Sub-Committee were
redistributed;

2 Excluding transformations of customer accounts payable
3 The decision to carry out financial restructuring of the debt of one of the customers reduced the growth rate of CBD CP from UAH 6 bn to
UAH 3.2 bn.
4 In terms of non-problematic corporate clients
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 The bank revised the method of calculating complex profitability, after which the business got the
opportunity to offer customers market loan rates;
 The ability to exchange electronic documents with a qualified electronic signature (the "QES") for
corporate business customers using the web portal platform was introduced;
 Settlements among participants of the wholesale electricity market of Ukraine were implemented in the
procedure for repayment of debts occurred in the wholesale electricity market in compliance with the Law of
Ukraine On Measures Aimed at Repaying Debts Formed in the Wholesale Electricity Market No 719-IX of June 17,
2020;
 A banking product using escrow accounts for capacity auctions was approved and capacity auctions
started to be serviced within the framework of the approved banking product;
 A mechanism for contractual debiting of funds from customer accounts (based on trilateral agreements)
was implemented to ensure the performance of natural gas supply contracts.
NPL management. In 2021, Oschadbank achieved 101% of the planned NPL repayment indicators determined in
the Distressed Asset Management Strategy and 136% of the overall repayment plan for loans recognised as
distressed.
In 2021, one of the important tools for cleaning the bank's balance sheet from NPLs was debt write-off against
provisions. In this area, Oschadbank achieved 123% of the planned indicators of debt write-off against provisions
as determined in the Distressed Debt Management Strategy. Among the assets that were written off against
provisions, the write-off of bank debt of UAH 4.7 billion and receivables of UAH 1.6 billion is worth mentioning.
In 2021, Oschad continued to be a "user" of the Law of Ukraine On Financial Restructuring. Thus, in the framework
of this law, the restructuring of LLC ADH was carried out, financial restructuring procedures of Dniprospetsstal
PJSC and, together with Ukrgasbank, of JSC Concern AVEC and Co were initiated.
In 2021, property worth UAH 675.3 m (total sale price) was sold from the balance sheet of Oschadbank, while the
total book value of this property was UAH 518 m.
On December 3, 2021, the Supervisory Board approved the Procedure Sale of Non-Performing Assets of JSC
"Oschadbank" at Public Tenders (Dutch Auctions). On December 28, 2021, at the proposal of the Workout
Committee and in accordance with the appeal of the Management board, the Supervisory Board decided to give
consent for the first sale of debt through an electronic Dutch auction (auctions were held in 2022).
In 2021, Oschadbank ensured the introduction of amendments to the bank's internal regulatory documents on
the selection of collection companies and interaction with them, which implemented requirements of the current
Ukrainian legislation connected with the adoption of the Law of Ukraine On Amending Certain Laws of Ukraine to
Protect Debtors in Settlement of Overdue Debts, as well as regulations of the National Bank of Ukraine, which were
adopted to regulate provisions of this Law.
During 2021, Oschadbank continued to develop the field of information technologies, in particular:
• monitoring of the following information systems of the bank was introduced: SBON, Central Electronic Archive,
Electronic Document Management System, Omnitracker, Informational Data Bus;
• technical support for a number of online services for the omnichannel sales model and remote servicing of
customers, government bodies, partners and other contractors was implemented;
• automated regression testing of individual ABS business processes before the each new release was introduced,
the introduction of automated testing for the Corporate Customer-Bank system (Corp-2) is planned;
• mobile Device Management based on VMware solution was introduced in order to prevent data compromise
and minimise the risks of information leakage when using mobile terminals;
• the Collegiate Bodies of the Bank universal module was put into trial operation, which provides optimisation and
automation of the working process of Oschadbank collegial bodies' meetings. At the moment, based on the
universal module, the work of 4 Committees (Information Security Management System Committee (SMSC),
Technical Council, Operational Risks Management Committee, Product Committee) has been set up;
• the Exchange of Currency Supervision Documents with Customers module of the Personal Accounts Platform
was put into trial operation; automation of the process of document transfer to the bank;
• automation of business agreements accounting was introduced in 10 regional directorates and scaling to all
regional directorates is planned;
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• automated exchange and processing of data/registers from the Pension Fund of Ukraine for payment of
assistance under the eSupport programme to accounts of customers opened with Oschadbank and other
Ukrainian banks in accordance with Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine No 1272 of 09.12.2021;
• the Naftogaz widget was put into commercial operation for concluding Service Agreements with households;
• the network infrastructure of the bank's Data Processing Centres (DPCs) was upgraded, Cisco ACI (Application
Centric Infrastructure) technology was introduced and the replacement of outdated network equipment was
initiated;
• refinements to ensure customers identification using the Diia app in SBON + and ABS "Bars MMFO" software
were implemented.
As for cash collection units:
the launch of the project on centralisation of cash collection, conversion and safekeeping of currency valuables
units was carried out (at the level of Kyiv and Zhytomyr regional directorates and changes in the labour
organisation at Oschadbank).
As for Treasury operations:
- reorganisation of Treasury in connection with the introduction of trading with domestic government
bonds (bringing the structure of the securities trader into compliance with the licencing requirements of the
National Securities and Stock Market Commission) and the separation of direct dealing for trading in government
bonds and for foreign currency purchase/sale/exchange transactions;
- cancellation, by the Supervisory Board upon request of the Management board of the zero tolerance level
for the interest rate risk of the government bonds trading book;
- establishing the maximum possible value at risk (VaR) for Treasury's trading operations with government bonds
and approving the trading strategy for buying/selling government bonds;
- introduction of activities related to the purchase/sale of government bonds on the organised (exchange) and
non-organised (over-the-counter) secondary markets for customers of all business lines;
- carrying out activities on the arrangement of the bank's transfer pricing system and preparation of the
Funds Transfer Pricing Methodology (FTP) project.

5.2    Results of Y2021
As of December 31, 2021, Oschadbank is universal with the status of a systemically important bank of Ukraine.
The bank is sufficiently capitalised and ensures profitable activity, and compliance with NBU requirements.
Oschadbank steadily holds the 2nd position in the market in terms of net assets, loans and deposits.
The bank has a balanced structure of assets, ensures a sufficient level of liquidity to fulfil all obligations and carries
out effective management of the balance sheet taking into account the country's economy inherent risks.
Despite the COVID-19 pandemic and other challenges of 2021, Oschadbank's assets remained almost at the level
of Y2020. At the same time, there were positive changes in the structure of assets and liabilities, namely:
- assets: UAH 11.5 billion increase in the loan portfolio, or by 18.2%, with a simultaneous reduction of investments
in government securities and highly liquid assets;
- liabilities: diversification of funding sources, increase in funds raised from customers (by UAH 5.3 billion, or by
2.8%) and repayment of external borrowed funds within the established deadlines in accordance with loan
agreements (by UAH 5.5 billion, or by 33.8%).
Due to the focused work of Oschadbank team to implement the Development Strategy during 2021, the bank
managed to achieve significant business growth in most areas of activity.
Retail business. In 2021, the bank managed to achieve the set goals in this area. The dynamic growth of the net
credit portfolio of individuals (by UAH 4.7 billion, or by 52.8%) secured the bank the 5th place in the market by
this indicator. The main drivers of growth in 2021 were highly competitive products (car loans, mortgage loans,
credit cards), which was caused by optimisation of procedures, improvement of decision-making processes for
such loans, acquisition of new car dealers and real estate agencies, as well as strengthening of cooperation with
such customers, and active implementation of modern technologies and innovative approaches.
The balances on individual accounts at the end of the year stood at UAH 123.5 bn. Oschadbank ranks the 2nd in
the market of deposits from the population (having the cost of raising funds lower than the market), which
indicates the trust of the population in the state-owned bank. At the same time, the bank is consistently
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diversifying the structure of funds acquired from individuals in the direction of reducing the share of funds in
foreign currencies.
MSME. 2021 was a breakthrough year for the bank in terms of servicing MSME (5th place in the lending market).
The net loan portfolio of MSME increased by UAH 3.7 billion, or by 71.1%. The increase in the loan portfolio was
facilitated by the full transformation, automation and simplification of the credit process.  In lending to MSME,
the bank cooperates with various international organisations (the European Investment Bank, the European
Investment Fund, the Entrepreneurship Development Fund, WNISEF), participates in state financing programmes
(as part of customer support for agribusiness, condominiums, financing of municipalities, affordable loans 5-7-9
etc.), partnership programmes for the purchase of agricultural machinery and equipment. The bank strengthened
its leading positions in terms of balances on accounts of MSME customers and ranks the 3rd in the liabilities
market. In order to meet the needs of MSME customers, the bank has significantly expanded the functionality of
CorpLight, the remote account servicing system. Lending using state guarantees on a portfolio basis was
introduced.
Corporate business.
During the year, the bank continued a gradual renewal and diversification of the corporate loan portfolio, by
acquiring low-risk borrowers, paying special attention to process optimisation and product/service improvement.
At the same time, the net loan portfolio of corporate customers increased by UAH 3.1 billion5, or by 6.4%, primarily
due to the growth in state-owned companies and alternative energy and city councils segments. Since the
beginning of the year, balances on accounts of corporate customers increased by 23.4%, mainly due to the funds
on current accounts in national currency.
NPL management.
One of the priority work areas of Oschadbank in 2021 was management of non-performing assets (NPL). For 2021,
bank ranks the first among state-owned banks in the sphere of reducing overdue debt. In 2021, the volume of
non-performing loans decreased by 31.9%, with non-performing loans mainly concentrated in the portfolio of
legal entities.
In 2021, the prerequisites were created and Oschadbank began to use such a tool of distressed debts settlement
as the sale of claim rights at a discount. Oschad was the first among the state-owned banks to sell the claims under
an asset transaction of a corporate debtor at a Dutch auction.
Investments.
A significant part of the assets is the portfolio of securities, which provides the bank with a high level of secondary
liquidity, protection against exchange rate fluctuations, as well as obtaining risk-free interest income. In 2021, the
volume of Oschadbank's investments decreased by UAH 1.6 billion, which is in line with the bank's strategic lines
of action to reduce the share of state investments in the bank's assets through an increase in asset lending.
For 2021, a profit of UAH 1.1 billion was obtained, which is higher than the planned targets.
In general, the bank's net interest income increased by 67.2% compared to Y2020, primarily due to the increase
in the volume of the bank's loan and investment portfolio and due to a decrease in interest expenses as a result
of the bank's consistent policy of reducing the cost of resources.
Oschadbank ensured constant positive growth dynamics of net fee and commission income, namely 25% growth
for Y2021.  The main driver of such income growth is transactions with bank payment cards.
The result from transactions with foreign currency amounted to UAH 0.9 billion.
At the same time, the bank received a negative result from financial instrument transactions carried at fair value
through profit or loss of UAH 5.3 billion, mainly due to the re-valuation of indexed government bonds.
Provisions for expected credit losses amounted to UAH 1.8 bn, an increase by UAH 0.3 bn YoY.
The bank worked hard to reduce OPEX and improve its infrastructure. The increase in operating expenses
amounted to UAH 0.4 billion, or 3.8% YoY, which is explained primarily by the increase in prices due to inflation.
In 2021, Oschadbank transferred a part of its net profit for the payment of dividends of UAH 832.9 m to the State
Budget of Ukraine (in accordance with the timeline and amount set by law).

5 net increase in corporate business portfolio including distressed debts
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5.3     Prospects of further development
Russia's full-scale military invasion of Ukraine radically changed all spheres of life in the country. Active hostilities
in many regions of Ukraine lead to the destruction of infrastructure and production facilities, the breakdown of
technological links between regions, the death of citizens and a significant increase in forced migration. Blocking
seaports and reducing the export of grain crops from Ukraine under the current conditions threatens the food
security of the world.
Disruptions to supply chains and workflows, uneven demand, increased business costs, and the physical
destruction of many businesses' assets have driven up consumer prices. Prices for food, pharmaceutical products
and fuel have risen sharply. The impact of the discount rate on the functioning of the money and currency markets
under current conditions is limited.
With the beginning of the war, financial institutions introduced loan holidays and reduced fees and commissions
for using their services. This had a negative impact on interest and fee and commission income. Besides, significant
volumes of created provisions for expected losses due to the consequences of the war have a significant impact
on the banks' performance.
Since the first days of the russian aggression, the Government and the National Bank of Ukraine took a number of
measures aimed at protecting the economy, maintaining the state's defence capability, and the uninterrupted
functioning of the banking system. From February 24, 2022, the official exchange rate of hryvnia to the US dollar
was fixed, control over the movement of capital was implemented: investments and repatriation of company
revenues abroad were prohibited, the operation of the foreign exchange market of Ukraine was paused: foreign
currency could be purchased only to pay for critical imports and only in non-cash form, the limit for withdrawing
funds abroad was set. Stable functioning Oschadbank is facilitated by the well-established remote work process.
The National Bank of Ukraine has retained full freedom to carry out cashless settlements, and introduced a special
tool for supporting bank liquidity: unsecured refinancing.
Actions of the Government and the National Bank of Ukraine contribute to the prudent use of international
reserves.
The deficit of the state budget in the first days of the war became the biggest financial problem of the country.
Budget funds are directed to countering military invasion, solving humanitarian problems, and recovering the
economy. Since the beginning of March, the Ministry of Finance of Ukraine has held a number of auctions for the
sale of military bonds. The most important factor in securing sources of financing for the Ukrainian economy is the
Government's work with international partners. A collection of funds for the support of the Ukrainian army was
arranged. The Government's primary actions aimed at softening the shocks caused by the first weeks of the
military confrontation include tax reductions, administrative price regulation for a number of food products and
fuel, and price fixing for utility services.
The final assessment of economic losses from russia's full-scale aggression against Ukraine will depend on the
duration of the hostilities. The key to the rapid recovery of Ukraine is the further implementation of structural
reforms, acquiring large-scale international support and integration into the European Union.
The overall decline in business activities and the fall in demand for loans and banking services will continue to
have a negative impact on banks' profitability. Credit risk losses are expected to increase given the gradual impact
of the economic crisis on borrowers' activities.
The management personnel focuses on supporting stable operations of Oschadbank in the existing circumstances.
Oschadbank, as a critical infrastructure facility, is included in the list of authorised banks that operate in special
period conditions.
The bank Supervisory Board, Management Board and specialised Committees continue to perform their functions.
The bank has taken measures to relocate staff and arrange safe work using remote access to the bank's IT
resources.
In martial law, the work to ensure a sufficient amount of liquidity has been enhanced, in order to provide timely
service to corporate and retail customers of the bank. On an ongoing basis, damage/losses to the bank's property
due to the military aggression are monitored, with an assessment and forecast of losses due to the financial
position deterioration/Oschadbank's counterparties` activity termination.
Currently, the bank operates within the existing business model and developed plans for ensuring business
continuity.
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The structure of Oschadbank's current loan portfolio and, accordingly, the key competences of corporate business
units, Risk Department and Legal Department allow to quickly and effectively adapt the bank's current strategy in
terms of asset transactions of legal entities to the challenges of wartime.
Thus, realising the role and importance of the status of a state-owned bank, Oschadbank took an active part in the
implementation of numerous state programmes and supported strategic sectors of the economy. The bank took
an active part in the development of the electricity market, actively participating in legislative initiatives and
providing technical support for the implementation of its reform and development.
The bank's status as an authorised is determined at the legislative level in matters of servicing the electricity and
gas markets, pension and other social benefits.
Oschadbank's leading positions in financing enterprises producing and distributing electricity, municipalities,
agricultural producers, green energy development projects and investment projects, including the construction of
commercial and residential real estate, are the evidence of the bank's readiness to participate in overcoming
consequences of the military aggression and recovering the economy of Ukraine.
Since the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine introduced changes to Resolution No 28 of January 24, 2020 in terms of
the extension of the financial government support programme to wholesale and retail trade establishments for
the purpose of food safety, the possibilities for financing large retail chains are expanding.
The loan portfolio in part of the retail business will decrease, as repayment will prevail over disbursements,
primarily in terms of car, cash and energy loans. Lending will gradually resume with the introduction of a number
of restrictions, the purpose of which is to minimise risks and establish the market.
Interest rates will be increased by approximately 3% for new car loans for the next 3-4 months, and then they are
planned to be revised.
In general, liabilities of individuals will have a positive growth trend. It is predicted that funds will flow into the
basket of cheaper resources:
 Term deposits will continue to flow out. The projected percentage of re-depositing is 74% in the national
currency, and 64-66% in USD and EUR. About 80% of the volume of non-re-deposited term deposits will be
accumulated on current accounts. Acquisition of new funds is forecasted at the level of March-April of the current
year;
 Current account balances are growing.
Fee and commission income is forecasted taking into account:
 a limited number of working branches (fact of March-April: 50-70%), which results in the decrease of
income from population payments, money transfers, insurance transactions etc. Currently, 80% of the branch
network is working;
 reduced tariffs for acquiring, respectively, are set at the level of 0.6% with a possible increase to 0.8% (in
fact, from 01.05.2022, payment systems dramatically changed the amount of Interchange for non-cash
transactions to 0.3%, which is twice as low as forecasts);
 reduction of revenues from BPC transactions to the level of interchange received from other banks of
0.3% (previously, on average, the business received ≈ 1.4%).
 to maximise income from currency exchange transactions, including due to the use of payment cards.
Fee and commission expense is reduced in the forecast, as the cost of payment of Interchange fees and
commissions is also reduced to the level of 0.3%.
Salary projects, Mobile Oschad and trade acquiring:
In trade and Internet acquiring, the following is planned: implementation of acquiring service on partner
equipment and Internet acquiring under the terms and conditions of the Public Agreement (offer),
implementation of an acquiring chatbot for communication with the bank and service companies, release of
regional units from non-specific functionality and concentration on business functions, implementation of
payment acceptance with UnionPay cards.
In Salary projects, it is planned to continue work on cross-selling products to existing customers, acquiring existing
corporate customers of the bank to salary projects, and intensifying work on acquiring new customers to the bank
for servicing.
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Special attention also will be paid to transferring customer service to remote service channels using Mobile Oschad
and increasing the volume of transactions carried out by customers using it. It is also planned to carry out work on
the activation of existing customers and increase the number of customers connected to this tool.
We consider the development of digital channels for individual customer servicing and the implementation of
remote identification to be one of the key directions of retail business development for the coming years, in
particular:
- development of a chat bot, expansion of the range of services and products;
- expansion of its functionality and acquisition of new customers due to the introduction of remote
identification, sale of a full range of retail banking products to customers;
- implementation of the full range of lending products (card and cash loans, car loans, mortgage lending) in
all remote service channels;
- expansion of the use of artificial intelligence technologies (Sofia voice assistant) for sales of products to
retail customers in various service channels (chat bot, mobile Oschad);
- development of paperless technology for servicing individuals.
Oschadbank will continue to transform the service model for MSME customers in order to improve efficiency,
ensure sustainable growth and further improve the quality of their service, and will strengthen its position in the
MSME market as a universal bank, a leader in terms of innovation and meeting the customer needs of micro, small
and medium businesses.
At the same time, the bank will focus on:
 active growth of the MSME loan portfolio;
 automation and digitalisation of MSME products, services and processes.
At the end of 2022 (taking into account the hostilities in Ukraine), it is planned to increase the credit portfolio of
MSME customers by 30%-40%, as well as to increase liabilities by 10-12% compared to the beginning of the year.
In addition, in 2022, a 30% decrease in fee and commission income from transactions with MSME customers is
forecasted, which is associated with a decrease in customer business activity due to hostilities in Ukraine,
disruption of logistics and loss of sales markets by customers.
When managing non-performing assets and foreclosed property, Oschadbank ensures the achievement of goals
and fulfilment of tasks set by the Distressed Asset Management Strategy and the Operational Plan for the
Implementation of the Distressed Asset Management Strategy.
At present, Oschadbank, amid martial law and significant restrictions on the use of a number of settlement
instruments, continues to take actions aimed at reducing non-performing assets and foreclosed property:
- we continue claim-related work with respect to assets recognised as distressed until February 24, 2022,
and with respect to assets for which procedural deadlines have expired (for which there are no legal restrictions
on debt collection); participate in the appointed court sessions, including in video conference mode;
- we are in contact with HO borrowers who cooperate with the bank, in order to monitor the status of their
business and the status of preservation of the collateral property, as well as with the purpose of resuming
payments under obligations to the bank;
- it is planned to continue the work on auctioning (in accordance with the Dutch auction principle) the rights
of claim under asset transactions of both individuals and legal entities;
- the issue of resuming work with collection companies is being considered, taking into account the
circumstances of martial law in Ukraine;
- debt write-off procedures against provisions continue;
-  active work is being done to find buyers for foreclosed property (except for the property that is located
in the immediate vicinity of the zone of active hostilities).
As for Treasury operations:
- introduction of a transfer pricing system in the bank with a gradual refusal from reallocation of resources in the
intra-system market;
- ensuring brokerage activity services on government securities purchase/sale transactions under request and due
to customers of all business lines;
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- participation in agreeing business requirements to finalise Oschad 24/7 remote access system in terms of
automating the government securities purchase/sale process in the secondary market;
- support of processes of building and reallocation of functions and tasks with determination of the structural unit
which will, in agreement with the Assets and Liabilities Management Committee and within delegated authority,
manage assets and liabilities of Oschadbank.
The main tasks of the bank's operational activities during martial law:
 improving the efficiency of the bank's operation activities by optimising and automating processes;
 taking necessary measures for further centralisation of cash collection and property and facilities

management  units;
 implementation of the first stage of work to upgrade the current ABS architecture to a microservice

architecture;
 together with the National Bank of Ukraine, a project is being implemented to implement the ISO 20022

international standard for exchange of payment messages;
 digitalisation of work of collegial bodies;
 diagnostics of key data management processes recorded in bank automated systems. Development (following

the diagnostics) of a detailed action plan to increase the maturity level of processes in order to improve the
quality of critical business information;

 creation of a separate business continuity team of the bank;
 completion of the implementation and automation of the IT risk management process and information

security, taking into account the current status of risk management at the bank.
A number of measures are taken to achieve these goals, which will contribute to the effective and prompt
performance of high-priority tasks, due to constant interaction with contractors and the effective work of
operational units.
In terms of business continuity, implementation of previously approved strategic projects and work with all
structural units to improve existing internal processes of Oschadbank continues.
Key areas of project activities in 2022 include:
1) comprehensive review and optimisation of the structure, processes and personnel;
2) improvement of the online service for payments by individuals and legal entities;
3) continuing the development of a modern automated management accounting system;
4) improvement of CorpLight remote service system;
5) development of the web portal for customers and introduction of new online services for interaction with
state authorities and partners.
In relationship with MFIs and other foreign counterparties, Oschadbank will take measures to ensure the largest
possible amount of financial and/or other support for the bank, as well as its customers from priority sectors of
the Ukrainian economy. Appropriate support may include guarantee lines, targeted lending programmes, in
particular with an element of donor assistance, risk sharing programmes, technical assistance programmes etc.
Oschadbank will continue transforming its business model to improve efficiency, ensure sustainable growth and
further improve the quality of customer service and strengthen its market position as a profitable, commercially
oriented universal bank and a leader in terms of innovation and customer satisfaction.
At the same time, the bank will focus on:
 changing the asset structure by increasing the share of loans through active lending with the support of
high-quality credit risk management;
 active growth of retail business and MSME;
 changing the structure of the corporate portfolio by active cooperation with private sector customers;
 automation and digitalisation of products, services and processes;
 optimisation and development of staff competencies, including its effective motivation;
 strengthening the focus on the quality of customer service and long-term relations with them.
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The main risks for implementing the development strategy still remain:
 geopolitical risk;
 prolonged negative impact of the COVID-19 pandemic;
 the risk of reversal/stagnation of reforms in the country and/or significant changes in the macro
environment;
 the risk of expertise deficit in the changing technological environment;
 competition challenges and lack of automation;
 the risk of change in the strategic partners’ and potential investors’ interests.

6. Key resources of the bank
6.1 Human capital
Oschadbank is among the top 3 largest employers in the financial sector.
Almost the entire year 2021 was spent in quarantine and prevention of Covid-19. Oschadbank team skilfully
adapted to new challenges and changes in the work format. The pace and quality of work processes were
maintained and even increased due to the concentration of efforts, as evidenced by the bank's financial
performance results.
Cumulatively since the beginning January 2021, the headcount of the bank decreased by 3,096 persons or 11.2%.
The main factors of decrease in the headcount was the introduction of a limit on the actual headcount in 2021
and the planned reduction of non-business functions in the network, which was carried out to fulfil the bank's
strategy.

The average staff turnover rate for the year is 1.6%, which is a low and stable indicator and corresponds to the
green level in the system of operational risk indicators (KRI).
The percentage ratio of HO staff to the total headcount of the bank is 17.5%, which indicates that the bank is
becoming more and more business-oriented and the staff of regional business units constitute a higher specific
weight than other units.
In 2021, 3,167 employees were hired at Oschadbank. At the same time, it is worth noting that the number of hired
employees, in the annual equivalent, on average, has been stable for several years. So, in 2020, 3,356 employees
were hired.
Among the employees hired in 2021:
• Head Office: 837 persons;
• RDs: 2,330 persons;
• 19 strategic and top-level employees.
Recently, Oschadbank has significantly rejuvenated. So, 35% of  employees are young people aged 30 to 40, 20%
of whom are heads of various levels units. At the same time, there are all generations, starting from BB (Baby
Boomers) to Generation Y, in teams of various units.
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It can be confidently asserted that Oschadbank is a reliable employer for all generations.
It should be separately noted that the bank is also a reliable employer and fulfils its social role for privileged
categories of staff, namely 3,839 (16%) of such employees work at the bank. These include single mothers/fathers,
caretakers, adoptive parents, widows/widowers and maternity employees. Their rights in labour relations are
reliably protected by the state. In addition, people with disabilities are guaranteed a job here. Oschadbank, which
years in a row fulfils and even exceeds compliance with the ratio for providing jobs for people with disabilities. As
of the end of 2021, the bank had 1,088 such employees, with the required quota of 938.
The staff training, assessment and development system ensures on an ongoing basis that Oschadbank's
employees have the necessary level of professional knowledge and skills. In 2021 the transformation of most
training events from classroom to remote format continued; and work on creating new training content accessible
to every employee of the bank didn’t stop. During the year, employees of all categories and areas were involved
into the studying process.
For the first time, Oschadbank introduced the Succession Programme for staff development. A systematic training
of the bank's talent pool at the TOP level was started.
For this purpose, the Succession Procedure (Minutes of the Supervisory Board No 19 of April 7, 2021), key
managerial positions and a list of 25 successors were approved.
STUDYDIVE iDP, a platform for creation of individual development plans, was launched in September.
In addition, electronic Alpina Digital Business Library was launched, and four training and development activities,
including a business simulation on managing the bank, were carried out in a face-to-face format.
In 2021, the Oshadbank was living in the pandemic. Therefore, a corresponding large-scale awareness and
prevention campaign was launched on all available information resources. Three waves of vaccination were also
arranged for the staff in July, October and December 2021. At all times, staff compliance with sanitary and hygienic
requirements and conduct rules in offices and workplaces was strictly monitored. Full-fledged remote work of
staff with access to all necessary systems and resources of the bank was officially introduced in the bank. Remote
work is regulated by separate IRDs, namely the Remote Working Procedure During Quarantine approved by
Management Board Resolution No 289 of 28.04.2021.

6.2    Infrastructure
Oschadbank’s infrastructure is coherent with the scale and structure of its operational activities. Consistent
development and improvement of the infrastructure is conducted with due account of targets determined by the
strategy.
Oschadbank works based on the business model of universal bank and is, at the same time, a systemically
important bank to the national economy. This requires possession of the own considerable infrastructure and
technology capacity represented, above all, by a modern IT component and advanced sales channels. As of today,
Oschadbank possesses centralised IT systems, automated processes of customer service and lending, own contact
centre and payment card processing, and modern data storage. The IT processes are structured with due account
of information security requirements.
As regards the sales channels, it is worth outlining the traditional sales channel through the branch network, and
remote service channels, which the bank has considerably developed over the last years.
As of December 31, 2021, Oschadbank’s network comprised 1,604 institutions, including 24 regional directorates
and 1,580 territorially autonomous non-accounting branches (excluding 421 branches suspended by the decision
of Oschadbank Management Board, located in Donetsk and Luhansk regions, which are not controlled by the
Ukrainian authorities).
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The bank consistently modernises the branch network, gradually increasing the number of new-format branches.
In 2021, 10 branches were transferred to the new format. As of December 31, 2021, Oschadbank’s network
comprised 672 new format institutions, of which 25 are inclusive branches, i.e. comprehensively adapted to
servicing individual customers with disabilities. One more dimension of the network transformation is closing
inefficient branches and relocation of branches to places more attractive for business development. In 2021, 241
inefficient branches were closed.
A separate aspect is provision of banking services in areas where there are significant restrictions for normal
community functioning and economic life. With the help of 10 units of remote service and 5 mobile units, of which
two based on KrAZ armoured vehicles working along the demarcation line and in humanitarian and logistics
centres in Donetsk and Luhansk regions, support of customers was continued in distant locations, where
Oschadbank is the only point of access to financial services.
The alternative sales channels are represented by remote digital service. The key channel of remote customer
service for retail business is mobile banking based on Oschad 24/7 application, whose users are 5.8 million persons
(which is 800 million more than last year).

6.3   Capital, liquidity and cash flows
Capital
In 2021, there was no additional emission of shares or increase of capital by other means. There was no sale or
purchase of Oschadbank’s shares.
During the reporting year, capital ratios exceeded the limits as required by the National Bank and the Basel
Committee on Banking Supervision.
Liquidity ratios
Oschadbank complied with liquidity ratios set by the NBU during 2021. Thus, as at 01.01.2022 the short-term
liquidity ratio (N6) is 70% (while no less than 60% is required), the liquidity coverage ratio (LCR) for all currencies
is 258% (while no less than 100% is required), liquidity coverage ratio (LCR) in foreign currencies is 150% (while
>100% is required), net stable funding ratio is 180.2% (while >90% is required).
Primary and secondary provisions of liquidity
In 2021, Oschadbank constantly maintained sufficient provisions of primary liquidity (cash, correspondent
accounts with the NBU and correspondent accounts with other banks) and secondary liquidity (portfolio of
domestic government bonds and NBU deposit certificates). The significant volume of liquid assets in Oschadbank’s
portfolio allows covering the customer funds’ outflow even in case of the stress scenario, without threat to
business continuity.
Customer resource base
In 2021, the main source of funds was attraction of customer funds (from both individuals and legal entities). At
the same time, 65% of the total customer funds are funds of individuals.
External borrowings
Oschadbank's external borrowings were serviced in accordance with terms and conditions stipulated by
agreements. The bank had sufficient liquidity in foreign currencies and plans to continue to service its external
debt as scheduled.
During 2021, Oschadbank also complied with covenants stipulated by external borrowing agreements. With regard
to the risk of breaching financial covenants (ratios whose observance is explicitly required by the respective
agreements), which exists due to negative external influences, the bank is confident in its creditors' support and
does not expect early repayment demands even in the event of short-term breaches of covenants in the future.

7. Risk management
7.1   Risk management strategy, system and policies
Bank develops and updates policies for management of all risks deemed significant. As of today, Oschadbank has
the following risk management policies:
 Credit Risk Management Policy;
 Liquidity Risk Management Policy;
 Foreign Exchange Risk Management Policy;
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 Bank Book Interest Rate Risk Management Policy;
 Market Risk Management Policy;
 Operational Risk Management Policy;
 Compliance Risk Management Policy.
The risk management policies are approved by the Supervisory Board, which also establishes the risk appetite
indicators.
Oschadbank enforced, in its internal regulatory documents, and ensured the mechanism of veto right that may be
used by the head of risk management unit and head of compliance unit regarding decisions of the Management
Board and collegial bodies established by the Management Board. The head of risk management unit uses this
right in cases when implementation of such decisions may lead to violation of the approved risk limits, as well as
in other cases determined by the Supervisory Board; the head of compliance unit uses this right in cases when
implementation of such decisions may result in violation of requirements of the current legislation, relevant
standards of professional associations applicable to the bank, conflict of interest, as well as in other cases
determined by the Supervisory Board.
Operational risks
Operational risk, by its nature, is inherent to all business processes of Oschadbank. It represents the probability of
losses or additional losses or failure to receive planned income due to deficiencies or errors in the organisation of
internal processes, intentional or unintentional actions of employees or other persons, failures in information
systems or as a result of external factors. Operational risk includes legal risk, but excludes reputation risk and
strategic risk.
 To manage operational risk, Oschadbank applies the following tools:
 maintenance of internal and external operational risk events database and analysis of information
accumulated in it (Loss Data Base, External Data Collection);
 risk and internal controls self-assessment (Risk Self-Assessment);
 preventive analysis of operational risks before the introduction of new products/significant changes
(Scenario Analysis);
 monitoring of key risk indicators for operational risk (Key Risk Indicators);
 monitoring of key operational risk metrics;
 operational risk stress testing;
 assessment of the amount of capital required to cover losses due to operational risks.
Oschadbank has the Operational Risks Management Committee that monitors the level of operational risk,
reviews reports on operational risks and makes decisions on how to manage operational risks.

7.2   Compliance
One of the significant risks determined by the Risk Appetite Statement is compliance risk.
The main objective of the compliance unit is to control over the bank's compliance with legislation, regulations,
market standards, fair competition rules, standards of professional associations applicable to the bank, corporate
ethics rules, internal documents of the bank, settlement of conflicts of interest, as well as to ensure functioning
of the risk management system through timely identification, measurement, monitoring, control, reporting and
provision of recommendations on mitigating the compliance risk.
The following compliance documents have been implemented and are in force in Oschadbank pursuant to the
Regulation on Organisation of Risk Management System in Ukrainian Banks and Banking Groups approved by NBU
Resolution No 64 of 11.06.2018 (as amended): Code of Conduct (Ethics); Policy of Identification, Prevention and
Management of Conflicts of Interest; Whistleblowing policy of the bank; Compliance Risk Management Policy.
Methodology of Compliance Risk Assessment.
The whistleblowing mechanism introduced at Oschadbank provides for protection measures for whistle-blowers,
as well as an appropriate response and procedure for dealing with reports on inappropriate conduct/ violations in
the bank's activities.
The updated Policy of Identification, Prevention and Management of Conflicts of Interest specifies measures to
settle conflicts of interest of bank Management Board and Supervisory Board Members.
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The veto right mechanism is ensured by participation of the Chief Compliance Officer in meetings of the
Management Board and collegial bodies established by the Management Board, and is also regulated in internal
regulations governing the activities of the said collegial bodies. In addition, the veto right override mechanism is
regulated in Oschadbank.
In order to develop the risk management culture in the bank and adherence of all bank staff to corporate values,
the compliance unit provides training for the bank staff on compliance with legislation, relevant standards of
professional associations applicable to the bank, the risk management culture, taking into account the code of
conduct (ethics).

7.3   Internal control system organisation framework
In accordance with NBU Resolution No 88 of 02.07.2019 "On Approval of the Organisation of Internal Control
System in Ukrainian Banks and Banking Groups", Oschadbank has introduced and continues to increase demands
to the internal control system organisation through:
- control by management bodies of the bank over compliance with the requirements of legislation and
internal bank requirements by units of the bank;
- ensuring reporting by collegial bodies within the delegated authority to the governing bodies they are
subordinated to;
- setting forth in the bank's internal documents the powers, accountability, roles, responsibilities and
procedures for interaction between the bank's units and employees as well as control measures;
- control over information security and information exchange.
Internal Audit as a system of control over Oschadbank's activities is implemented by the Supervisory Board to
assess and improve the internal control system and as a part of the supervisory function of the bank activities – to
provide the Supervisory Board and Management Board with necessary support (assistance) in fulfilling their
responsibilities to achieve the goals. The Supervisory Board determines plans and working procedures, and
monitors the activities of the internal audit function. An external review of Oschadbank's internal audit function
was carried out in 2021. According to KPMG, which carried out the review, the bank's internal audit function
generally meets international standards of professional practice and the code of ethics of internal auditor, which
represents the highest score.
Internal Audit Department reports to the Supervisory Board and its Committees; periodic reporting based on
results of the internal audit includes information on implementation of the audit plan, aggregated information on
the identified risks, assessment of the internal control system and recommendations to minimise the impact of
risks and improve processes. In addition, the bank Supervisory Board Audit Committee plays an important role in
shaping a partnership between the bank's senior management and the audit function to ensure effective
interaction in organising the internal control and risk management systems.

7.4 Influence of the NBU resolution No 64
Requirements of NBU Resolution No 64 of 11.06.2018 (as amended) were implemented by Oschadbank during
2019 and 2020. Currently, the bank's risk management strategy, system and policy meet requirements of NBU
Resolution No 64.
Oschadbank has implemented the principles of the risk management system, which are provided for by
requirements of the regulator and, accordingly, approved in accordance with these requirements, top-level
internal bank documents on risk management (Risk Appetite Statement, Risk Management Strategy, policies for
managing material risks (credit risk, operational risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk of the banking book, market
risk, compliance risk).

7.5      Significant types of risks and plans to mitigate them
To ensure the bank's financial stability, business continuity and achievement of certain business objectives, in
order to identify, assess, monitor and control risks inherent in the bank; the bank has developed and implemented
a Risk Appetite Statement and Risk Management Strategy. In accordance with these documents, the bank has
determined the structure of material risks and set limits/restrictions, as well as determined the risk appetite for
all types of these risks. Such significant types of risks include: credit risk, liquidity risk, market risks, bank book
interest rate risk, operational risk and compliance risk.
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8. Relations with the shareholder and related parties, impact of these
relations on the bank’s performance, and managing these relations
8.1      Relations with the shareholder
In accordance with the Charter, the founder of Oschadbank is the state. Oschadbank is fully owned by the state.
Relations between the bank and the shareholder are based on the principle "a bank owned by the state and
working for the state", based on the fact that the shareholder:
 defines the main (strategic) directions of the bank activities and strategy of the bank management as part
of the overall state-owned banks management strategy;
 ensures impartial and transparent management;
 does not interfere in the current operational activities;
 builds interaction on a mutually beneficial commercial basis;
 conducts regular monitoring and assessment of activities.
The shareholder regulates authorities of Oschadbank’s management bodies in accordance with Article 7 "State-
Owned Banks" of the Law of Ukraine On Banks and Banking.
Also, based on the principle of distribution of functions among the management bodies of the bank set out in
Article 7 of the Law On Banks, and pursuant to the Principles of Strategic Reforms in the State Banking Sector
(strategic principles) approved by the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine on 2 September 2020, to regulate the
interaction among the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine, the Ministry of Finance of Ukraine and Oschadbank, on
29.10.2021 a framework agreement on cooperation was concluded, which aims to provide certainty on the
interaction among the parties, to guarantee the commercial independence of the bank in achieving its objectives,
to provide the Ministry of Finance of Ukraine with an appropriate level of accountability and the ability to
participate in certain important management and commercial issues of the bank in order to privatise the bank.
The Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine and Oschadbank will act in accordance with the best international practices
of corporate governance on any issues not explicitly regulated in the Framework Agreement or the current
legislation.
Oschadbank, as a state-owned bank, supports the Government of Ukraine in performing the state social and
economic programmes. In particular, being aware of the necessity of providing financial services to socially
vulnerable groups (poor, internally displaced persons, residents of regions in decline etc.), the bank builds its
business with due account of the social mission.

8.2   Relations with the related parties
Oschadbank's internal regulatory documents take into account requirements of the Regulation on Organisation of
Risk Management System in Ukrainian Banks and Banking Groups (approved by NBU Resolution No 64 of
11.06.2018) with respect to transactions with parties related to the bank. The bank carries out transactions with
related parties in accordance with the procedure and conditions that may not be different from the procedure
and conditions of transactions carried out with other customers, except for procedures determining the
authorities of collegial bodies to make decisions on transactions with related parties. In order to monitor
compliance with legal requirements and the bank's internal documents when lending to related parties,
compliance unit provides compliance risk opinions for such lending decisions.
To monitor compliance with the regulatory value of the maximum credit risk amount and procedure of
transactions with related parties, while lending to parties related to the bank, the risk management unit provides
relevant opinions for approval of such credit decisions. In 2021, Oschadbank was compliant with the regulatory
value of the maximum credit risk amount under transactions with related parties (N9).
Bank keeps an electronic register of the related parties in accordance with criteria defined by the International
Financial Reporting Standards, in compliance with the Ukrainian legislation in force.

8.3   Cooperation with the EBRD
In 2021, Oschadbank continued its active cooperation with the EBRD.
Since, in accordance with Oschadbank's Development Strategy for 2021-2024 approved by the CMU, the EBRD is
identified as the most likely "anchor" investor in the planned full/partial privatisation, the bank was working on
the EBRD's subordinated loan with an option to convert into Oschadbank's shares. Thus during 2021, among
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others: the bank's due diligence was conducted; the EBRD and Oschadbank signed a Mandate Letter, confirmed
by the IFIs after being authorised to do so by the CMU; the bank received and preliminarily processed draft basic
terms and conditions of the transaction.
In accordance with the Memorandum of Cooperation between Ukraine and the IMF (Letter of Intent), the
roadmap of Oschadbank's entry into market for its "partial or full privatisation" must be approved by the
Government and Oschadbank must "begin formal negotiations with the EBRD on the general terms and conditions
of cooperation in accordance with the approved strategy". With this in mind, an appropriate Oschadbank
Privatisation Roadmap was created and agreed with the EBRD and IFIs and submitted to the CMU for
consideration. Such a roadmap included, inter alia, a detailed timetable for EBRD becoming a shareholder of the
bank.
In addition, the bank worked on an EBRD loan to finance MSME in Ukraine and provide them with non-repayable
investment grants. Commercial terms and conditions and draft agreement have in fact been agreed. The use of
guarantees under the EBRD's TFP (Trade Facilitation Programme) also continued.
While the bank continued to move ahead with the implementation of Transformation Roadmap, fulfilling its tasks
to enhance the attractiveness as an investment destination, various technical assistance programmes were also
implemented under the EBRD sponsorship.
The following EBRD technical assistance projects were successfully completed in 2021:
Development of Management Accounting System: as of 31.12.2021.
The main objectives achieved after the Programme implementation:
• the Concept of Management Accounting System, structure and format of the set of management
reporting on profitability for the Supervisory Board and the Management Board was approved;
• transfer pricing system was automated, pilot;
• development of technological and organisational infrastructure for implementation of the management
accounting system.
Centralisation: as of 25.11.2021.
The main objective of the project was to achieve an optimal solution for centralising the functions performed in
the regional directorates with maximum cost cutting while improving customer service and operational efficiency
and increasing the effectiveness of sales outlets and competitiveness of the bank.

9. Corporate governance
9.1 Main corporate governance model
A fundamental change in the principles and mechanisms of corporate governance of state-owned banks took place
on November 10, 2018 due to the entry into force of the Law of Ukraine "On Amendments to Certain Legislative
Acts of Ukraine on Improvement of Financial Sector Functioning in Ukraine".
The purpose of these legislative changes is to establish a governance system isolated from political influence, bring
the corporate governance system into compliance with recommendations of the OECD, the European
Commission, and Basel Committee on Banking Supervision, improve the competitiveness and efficiency of state-
owned banks, as well as create preconditions for the potential involvement of foreign investors into the capital of
state-owned banks.
The Principles (Code) of Corporate Governance were approved by the Supervisory Board, which take into account
requirements of the current legislation and the best international practices of corporate governance. The Code
reflects the organisation of corporate culture and corporate values of Oschadbank; is a set of voluntary
commitments based on balanced consideration of interests of the Shareholder, which is the state and other
stakeholders, as well as management and supervising bodies.
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9.2   Current implementation status
Oschadbank's corporate governance is in the process of transformation. During the reporting period, a number of
processes that took place during 2019-2021 were completed and a number of positive changes were introduced.
In particular, the composition of the Supervisory Board was changed and fully staffed; the composition of the
Management Board was changed; the bank's classic three-pillar corporate governance system is functioning
effectively. Corporate Secretary Office and Corporate Governance Centre have been established and are operating
effectively. In order to assist the Supervisory Board in exercising its authority to develop, amend, enforce and
monitor the implementation of the bank's Strategy and Business Plan and to implement the bank's transformation
programme, the Supervisory Board established the Strategy and Transformation Committee.
The bank complies in a timely manner with the regulator's requirements for the organisation of the risk
management system. An integrated risk management system for managing risks, reporting and accountable to
the Supervisory Board, is in place. The Supervisory Board regularly monitors the functioning of the risk
management system. Regular meetings are held with the Management Board and heads of control units.
The Supervisory Board updated, as part of annual revision (Minutes of the Supervisory Board No 57 of 28.12.2021),
the Principles (Code) of Corporate Governance (approved by the Supervisory Board (Minutes of the Supervisory
Board No 17 of 23.07.2020), and approved the bank's Succession Procedure and the Remuneration Policy for the
CEO, Deputies CEO and bank Management Board Members (Minutes of the Supervisory Board No 51 of
29.11.2021).
In 2021, as in the previous reporting period, the annual assessment/self-assessment of the Supervisory Board
performance was carried out based on the Procedure for Assessment/Self-assessment of the bank Supervisory
Board Performance approved by the Supervisory Board on 20.02.2020 (Minutes No 3), updated as part of annual
revision (Minutes No 21 of 13.04.2021).
The segregation of powers and functions among the bank's collegiate bodies, the Supervisory Board, Supervisory
Board Committees, the Management Board and Management Board Committees creates a quality system of
checks and balances in the organisation of the bank's corporate governance.
Oschadbank implemented the Code of Conduct (Ethics) approved by the bank Supervisory Board on 23 January
2020 (meeting minutes No 1), updated, as part of annual revision, by the bank Supervisory Board on 29 July 2021
(meeting minutes No 38). For 24/7 access of all parties concerned, the Code of Conduct (Ethics) of the bank is
posted both on the internal portal and external web-page of the bank. At the same time, each new employee is
required to familiarise himself/herself with and sign the Obligation to comply with the Code of Conduct (Ethics) of
the Bank to attach this Obligation to the personal data file of employees. All employees of Oschadbank undergo
annual distance training and testing regarding compliance with the Code of Conduct (Ethics) and on risk
management, in particular compliance risk.
In addition, Oschadbank has developed and approved the internal regulatory document Programme of Employees'
Training and Professional Development in Issues of Risk Management regulating the training and professional
development of employees on risk management. The training programme has been developed in accordance with
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the Regulation on Organisation of Risk Management System in Ukrainian Banks and Banking Groups approved by
Resolution of the NBU's Board No 64 of 11.06.2018. The activities planned in the programme are carried out as
part of the Calendar Plan for training for the bank on an annual basis.
The results of employees' testing in the framework of training courses on risks, including compliance risks, are
analysed by control units in order to take appropriate measures, including make a decision on the need for
repeated training for a particular employee or group of employees, followed by retesting.
General information on the training activities and statistics on the test results are reported, in particular, in
Compliance Risk Assessment Reports for the relevant reporting period submitted for consideration of the
Management Board and approval of the Supervisory Board. Therefore, this ensures control, including by the
Supervisory Board, over the compliance with standards and subsequent development of the risk management
culture in Oschadbank as a whole.
At the same time, in order to strengthen and further develop the risk management culture, there are plans to
develop and implement additional control procedures with participation in training, analysis of the results of
training / testing of all employees of the bank.
The Supervisory Board controls the bank's compliance with the Risk Appetite Statement on a quarterly basis by
reviewing the risk management reports submitted by General Risk Management Department. Changes to the Risk
Appetite Statement are in line with the Business Recovery Plan.
Also, based on the principle of distribution of functions among the management bodies of the bank set out in
Article 7 of the Law On Banks, and pursuant to the Principles of Strategic Reforms in the State Banking Sector
(strategic principles) approved by the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine on 2 September 2020, to regulate the
interaction among the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine, the Ministry of Finance of Ukraine and Oschadbank, on
29.10.2021 a framework agreement on cooperation was concluded, which aims to provide certainty on the
interaction among the parties, to guarantee the commercial independence of the bank in achieving its objectives,
to provide the Ministry of Finance of Ukraine with an appropriate level of accountability and the ability to
participate in certain important management and commercial issues of the bank in order to privatise the bank.
The Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine and Oschadbank will act in accordance with the best international practices
of corporate governance on any issues not explicitly regulated in the Framework Agreement or the current
legislation.

10. Organisational development
10.1 Organisational structure
Oschadbank's organisational structure meets the current legislation and regulations of the National Bank of
Ukraine in terms of efficient delegation of authorities and internal controls.
Oschadbank's Charter defines the following management bodies:
the Highest Governing Body is the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine, which manages corporate rights of the state in
the bank and functions as the supreme governing body;
the Supervisory Board is a collegial management body that, within its competence, manages the bank, supervises
and regulates activities of the Management Board in order to implement the development strategy. The
Supervisory Board does not participate in the day-to-day management of the bank;
the Management Board is the executive body responsible for the day-to-day management of the bank activities.
To ensure the effective management, the Supervisory Board and Management Board establish committees, to
which they delegate a part of their authorities, and control the use of delegated authorities through mechanisms
of accountability.
Oschadbank's system of structural units and network of standalone institutions is built based on the territorial and
functional logic, with due account of the scale and structure of operational activities, with observance of the
principle of reasonable and efficient centralisation of certain functions.
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Organisational structure of the bank as of 31.12.2021

10.2   Information on managers and officials
The Supervisory Board, as of December 31, 2021, was represented by the following team:

• Baiba Apine, Chairwoman of the Supervisory Board, independent Supervisory Board Member;
• Peter Briggs, independent Supervisory Board Member;
• Michael Weinstein, independent Supervisory Board Member;
• Juan Enrique Perez Calot, independent Supervisory Board Member;
• Janne Harjunpää, independent Supervisory Board Member;
• Anton Piatygin, independent Supervisory Board Member;
• Julia Pashko, Supervisory Board Member, state representative from the Financial Policy and Banking
Committee of the Verkhovna Rada of Ukraine;
• Roza Tapanova, Supervisory Board Member, state representative from the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine;
• Oleksandr Rodnianskyi, Supervisory Board Member, state representative from the President of Ukraine.

The Management Board, as of December 31, 2021, was represented by the following team:
 Sergii Naumov, Chairman of the Management Board. Experience in the banking sector is more than 21
years. Key areas of responsibility: strategic change management, treasury, legal block, security, interaction with
financial institutions, personnel management, public relations and mass media;
 Oleh Strynzha, Management Board Member, CFO. He has over 25 years of experience in the banking
sector. Key areas of responsibility: introducing management accounting function and modernising Oschadbank's
financial management function, which aims to increase the bank's efficiency and financial stability.
 Yevhenii Drachko-Yermolenko, Deputy Chairman of the Management Board. Experience in the banking
sector is more than 26 years. Key areas of responsibility: information technology, back office work, cash collection,
FX supervision, information security;
 Volodymyr Lytvyn, Deputy Chairman of the Management Board. Experience in the banking sector is more
than 11 years. Key areas of responsibility: depository activity, NPL management, utility area;
 Anton Tiutiun, Management Board Member in charge of Retail Business. Experience in the banking sector
is more than 21 years. Key areas of responsibility: retail business, e-commerce and payment facilities, central
customer service unit, work with premium customers, marketing.
 Arsen Miliutin, Management Board Member in charge of NPL management. In total, he has 20 years of
experience in legal services, 15 of which he worked with Ukrainian and foreign banks and other financial
institutions, including state-owned ones.

10.3   Principles of the bank's corporate standards
In its activities, the staff of Oschadbank acts pursuant to moral, ethical and business rules and principles defined
by the Code of Conduct (Ethics), which contains requirements for the conduct of the bank staff in social networks,
and aimed at preventing reputational risks for the bank.
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The bank has anti-bribery and anti-corruption policies, procedures and minimum standards to prevent bribery and
corruption among Bank employees, managers and any third parties. These provisions are contained in the
following internal regulations of the bank:
 Compliance Risk Management Policy;
 Code of Conduct (Ethics);
 Anti-corruption Programme.
Oschadbank has appointed Anti-Corruption Officer, who is the official in charge of the prevention of corruption in
accordance with the Law of Ukraine On Prevention of Corruption. In accordance with the Anti-Corruption
Programme, the main task of the Anti-Corruption Officer is to prepare, ensure implementation and control the
implementation of measures to prevent, combat and detect corruption and ensure compliance with the rules of
ethical conduct in Oschadbank.
The existing whistleblowing mechanism of Oschadbank provides for protection measures for whistle-blowers and
a procedure for reviewing and responding to such reports, which is set out in the Whistleblowing Procedure of
Oschadbank.  The work of Oschadbank team is based on the principles of transparency, mutual respect, and
partnership. The Collective Agreement was concluded between the administration and labour collective. It
regulates rights and obligations of parties on issues of professional, labour, and social and economic relations.

11. Environmental and social aspects of activities
11.1 Environmental aspects
Oschadbank actively supports customers who are modernising their houses with raising energy efficiency and
introducing green technologies.
Thus, during 2021 the bank issued 10.1 th. "warm" loans for the total amount of over UAH 418 m under the house
warming loan programmes.
Oschadbank's product called "Green Energy" allows the households to use the loan for purchase of equipment
and materials for green energy production (electricity production through solar, wind, biomass energy etc.). In
2021, the respective loans were issued for the total amount of over UAH 46.7 m.
It should be mentioned that, when implementing joint programmes on lending to MSME customers with
international organisations (EIF, EIB, Entrepreneurship Development Fund), Oschadbank is required to comply
with the European environmental regulations prohibiting the financing of activities harmful to the environment.
As part of the EBRD's Trade Facilitation Programme, Oschadbank is committed to meet the EBRD's environmental
and social requirements to projects.

11.2 Social responsibility
In 2021, Oschadbank continued activities aimed at strengthening its reputation as a socially responsible institution.
Oschadbank has two key areas of charity activities.
The first strategic area is support for the Tabletochki Charitable Foundation, with which Oschad has been
cooperating since 2017.
As in previous years, funding was provided to help children with cancer in several ways. During the year,
Oschadbank's customers provided financial assistance to Tabletochki through special terminals called "Put Like
That Matters", via information and payment terminals and the Internet and Oschad 24/7 mobile banking. The total
amount of donations by Oschadbank customers to the Tabletochki Foundation through these channels exceeded
UAH 350 th. in the reporting year.
On 11 September 2021, Oschadbank's team joined the DobroRun 2021 charity run arranged by the Tabletochki
Foundation. Oschadbank staff, including CEO Sergii Naumov, together with their relatives and friends took part in
the sporting event in Kyiv and Odesa. In total, there were over 150 participants from Oschadbank. The bank's
charitable contribution in support of the event amounted to UAH 100 th.
More than two thirds of the total (namely, two million hryvnias out of three): this is the share of the charitable
sum collected through Oschadbank's branch from the total results of the Coins for Children campaign initiated by
the National Bank of Ukraine to support the Tabletochki Foundation in the reporting year. Oschad is the
undisputed number 1 among all banks participating in the programme in terms of the volume of charitable
donations made through its cash offices. The campaign involved collecting 25 kopecks (soon to be out of
circulation) to donate to help children with cancer.
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The second area of social responsibility is support for inclusive projects.
Oschadbank is an active participant in the Business without Barriers movement, which was established under the
initiative of the First Lady of Ukraine Olena Zelenska.
In the reporting year, Lysychansk became the second city in Luhansk Oblast after Severodonetsk, where
Oschadbank opened an inclusive branch adapted for comfortable servicing of all customers, including those with
visual, hearing and locomotor disabilities. The branch is equipped with a ramp, tactile tiles, a manager call button,
a cash register with a lowered cash window and a special manager's workstation to provide convenient services
to people with disabilities. Oschad has a network of 25 inclusive branches.
In addition, thanks to Oschadbank and Mastercard, people with visual and hearing impairments managed to watch
the new Ukrainian film Pulse. The bank and the payment system financed a special sound recording for the blind
and adapted subtitles for the deaf. Among Oschadbank's similar inclusive projects in 2021 was funding, jointly
with VISA, the multimedia performance PATH TO..., which involved integrating sign language into the
choreography and dramaturgy. This performance was at the Ukrainian House on the occasion of the 30th
anniversary of Ukraine's independence.
Among other social responsibility projects implemented by the bank in 2021, the partnership with the all-
Ukrainian information campaign to protect the rights of consumers of financial services Know Your Rights can be
mentioned. This campaign was founded by the National Bank together with the Parliamentary Commissioner for
Human Rights. The aim of the programme is to improve citizens' awareness of their rights and duties when using
financial services. The bank also implemented an educational campaign for children and teenagers related to the
launch of the LIKE YOU card and continued the Build Your Own programme, which celebrated its 4th anniversary
in the reporting year, for future and existing entrepreneurs.
In addition, Oschadbank supported the creation of a free online course Overcoming the Crisis. Economic
Challenges of Today by Vox Ukraine think tank. The course was developed with the support of the Prague Civil
Society Development Fund. Analytical partners of the project: Ukrainian Health Centre, СEDOS and Kyiv School of
Economics.

12. Awards of the bank during the reporting period
Awards received by the bank in 2021:

 Director of Micro, Small and Medium Business Department of Oschadbank Natalia Butkova-Vitvitska was
named one of the top three bankers in Ukraine to head the SME segment. Rating by Business magazine.

 II place in the Leader of State Programmes for SME Support category. Rating by Business magazine.
 I place in the Best Loan Product for Business category with partnership programmes for micro, small and

medium business. PaySpace Magazine Awards 2021 award.
 II place in the est Financial Chatbot category. PaySpace Magazine Awards 2021 award.
 III place in the Best Online Banking for Entrepreneurs category with CorpLight for Business. PaySpace

Magazine Awards 2021 award.
 II place in the rating of the most comfortable banks in Ukraine. Forbes Ukraine Magazine.
 I place in reliability rating of largest Ukrainian retail banks in the first half of 2021. Money magazine.
 I place in The Best Loans for Business in 2021 category with Renewable Credit Line programme for SME

customers. Prostobank Awards award from Prostobank Consulting.
 I place in the Best Unsecured Overdrafts for Business in 2021 category with Unsecured Overdraft product.

Prostobank Awards award from Prostobank Consulting.
 I place in the Best Secured Consumer Loans in 2021 category with Real Estate-Secured Loan programme.

Prostobank Awards award from Prostobank Consulting.
 II place in the Best Car Loans in 2021 category with Oschad Drive programme. Prostobank Awards award

from Prostobank Consulting.
 III place in the Best Loans in the Secondary Housing Market in 2021 category with Zvisno, housing and

Zvisno, convenient programmes. ProstobankAwards award from Prostobank Consulting.
 Sergii Naumov, CEO of Oschadbank, was included in the TOP-3 in the Bankers category. Financial

Recognition 2021 rating, Financial Club Awards.
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 First place among leading banks of Ukraine. 50 Leading Banks of Ukraine 2021 rating, Financial Club
Awards.

 І place in the Cash Collection category. 50 Leading Banks of Ukraine 2021 rating, Financial Club Awards.
 І place in the Savings Deposit category. 50 Leading Banks of Ukraine 2021 rating, Financial Club Awards.
 І place in the Servicing of Individuals in Branches category. 50 Leading Banks of Ukraine 2021 rating,

Financial Club Awards.
 II place in the Classic Deposit category. 50 Leading Banks of Ukraine 2021 rating, Financial Club Awards.
 II place in the Credit Cards category. 50 Leading Banks of Ukraine 2021 rating, Financial Club Awards.
 II place in the Car Loans category. 50 Leading Banks of Ukraine 2021 rating, Financial Club Awards.
 III place in the Mortgage Loan category. 50 Leading Banks of Ukraine 2021 rating, Financial Club Awards.
 III place in the Overdraft for Legal Entities category 50 Leading Banks of Ukraine 2021 rating, Financial

Club Awards.
 Anton Tiutiun, Deputy CEO of Oschadbank, for the third time was named Best Retail Business Manager.

FinAwards 2021 award from Minfin.com.ua and Finance.ua
 II place in the Technology and Innovation category. FinAwards 2021 award from Minfin.com.ua and

Finance.ua
 II place in the Best Bank for SME Customers category. FinAwards 2021 award from Minfin.com.ua and

Finance.ua
 12th place in TOP-50 most expensive domestic brands from Korrespondent magazine. Oschadbank brand

was valued at $131.82 m.
 The best bank for businessmen. Rating of the TOP-100. Ratings of the Biggest. Finace magazine.
 I place in the Retail Bank category among state-owned banks. Banks of 2021, Finance Club ratings.
 Best bank for social media in Ukraine 2021 (SMM) according to Global finance and banking review.
 Best online financial education and training in Ukraine 2021 (Build your own) according to Global finance

and banking review.
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Independent auditor’s report 

 
 
To the Shareholder and the Supervisory board of  
Joint Stock Company «State Savings Bank of Ukraine»  
 
Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements 
 
Qualified Opinion 
 
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Joint Stock Company «State Savings 
Bank of Ukraine» (the Bank) and its subsidiaries (the Group), which are presented on pages  
1 to 116 and comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021 
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated 
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies. 
 
In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for qualified opinion 
section of our report, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all 
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021 and its 
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), and comply with the 
requirements for the preparation of financial statements established by Law of Ukraine 
«On accounting and financial statements in Ukraine» No. 996-XIV. 
 
Basis for qualified opinion 
 
The Group’s accounting policy in respect of its buildings is revaluation model. IAS 16 «Property, 
plant and equipment» requires revaluations to be made with sufficient regularity to ensure that the 
buildings’ carrying amount does not differ materially from their fair value at the end of each 
reporting period. In the presence of information, which indicates that the fair value of buildings as 
at 31 December 2019 could materially differ from their carrying amount, no revaluation was 
performed as at that date which constitutes a departure from IAS 16. Our audit opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2019 was modified 
accordingly. As discussed in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group revalued 
its buildings as at 1 December 2020 and recorded a cumulative change in the fair value of buildings 
in other comprehensive income for 2020 in the amount of UAH 201,274 thousand and in 
operating expenses for 2020 in the amount of UAH 243,973 thousand. The period these 
recognised gains and losses from revaluation of buildings relate to, as well as the effect of the 
departure from IFRS on depreciation charge and income tax expense for the year ended  
31 December 2020 have not been determined. 
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We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). 
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for 
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ (IESBA) 
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence 
Standards) (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 
the consolidated financial statements in Ukraine, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified 
opinion. 
 
Material uncertainty related to going concern 
 
We draw attention to Note 3 and Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group, 
which indicates that since 24 February 2022 the Group's operations are negatively affected by the 
ongoing military invasion of Ukraine, with the magnitude of further developments or the timing of 
their cessation being uncertain. As stated in Note 3, these events or conditions, along with other 
matters as set forth in Note 31, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant 
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect 
of this matter. 
 
Key audit matters incorporating the most significant risks of material misstatements, 
including assessed risk of material misstatements due to fraud 
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. In addition to the matter 
described in the Basis for qualified opinion section, we have determined the matters described 
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. These matters were addressed 
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter 
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context. 
 
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the 
consolidated financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. 
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. 
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters 
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements.  
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Key audit matter 
 

How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Allowance for loans and advances to customers  
 
Due to the significance of loans and advances 
to customers, which account for 32% of 
Group’s total assets, and the complexity of 
judgement that is required to be applied by 
the Group’s management for timely 
identification of impairment events and 
measurement of expected credit losses 
(«ECL») in accordance with IFRS 9 Financial 
instruments («IFRS 9»), we considered this 
area as a key audit matter. 
 
The calculation of ECL on a collective basis 
involves estimation techniques that use 
significant unobservable inputs and factors, 
complex statistical modelling and expert 
judgement. These techniques are used to 
determine probability of default, projected 
exposure at default and loss arising at default 
based on available historical data and external 
information, which is adjusted for forward 
looking information, including forecast of 
macroeconomic variables. 
 
Additionally, for individually assessed 
defaulted loans, the Group applies judgment 
to estimate fair value of collateral and 
expected cash flows under a range of 
scenarios, considering the events related to 
the COVID-19 outbreak. 
 
The use of different modelling techniques and 
assumptions could produce significantly 
different estimates of ECL. This could have a 
material effect on the financial results of the 
Group. 

Information on the allowance for expected 
credit losses on loans and advances to 
customers is included in Notes 3 and 29 to 
the consolidated financial statements. 

 

 

 
 

 
We reviewed the methodology and models 
developed by the Group to identify 
impairment events and calculate the 
allowance for expected credit losses. 
 
To test allowance calculated on a collective 
basis we evaluated underlying statistical 
models, key inputs and assumptions used and 
assessed incorporation of forward-looking 
information in the calculation of expected 
credit losses.  
 
For significant credit exposures we evaluated 
impairment indicators and staging. For 
significant corporate individually assessed 
exposures, we challenged assumptions on 
estimated future cash flows, including value 
of collateral and probabilities of expected 
outcomes, considering possible effects from 
COVID-19 on borrowers’ financial position. 
 
We also assessed the disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements about the 
Group's allowance for expected credit losses 
on loans and advances to customers.  
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Key audit matter 
 

How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Valuation of investment securities at fair value through profit or loss 
 
Valuation of investment securities at fair 
value through profit or loss with embedded 
derivative feature was a key area of 
judgments for the Group’s management due 
to complexity of the model, subjectivity of 
assumptions and valuation techniques.  
 
Due to the significance of investment 
securities at fair value through profit or loss, 
which account for 18% of Group’s total assets, 
and the complexity of judgement applied by 
the Group’s management in valuation process 
we considered this matter to be a key audit 
matter. 
 

Information and judgments on the investment 
securities at fair value through profit or loss is 
presented in the Notes 3, 13 and 26 to the 
consolidated financial statements. 
 

 
Our audit procedures included obtaining 
understanding of the process of fair value 
assessment, key sources of inputs and 
assumptions. 
 
We evaluated the model, assumptions and 
judgements applied by the Group’s 
management, including the determination of 
volatility of exchange rates.  
 
We analysed the Group’s management 
judgement in respect of the source of input 
data used in the valuation model, that 
included historical exchange rates, terms of 
financial instruments and discount rates, and 
assessed mathematical accuracy of the 
calculations.  
 
We also assessed the disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements about the 
Group's investment securities at fair value 
through profit or loss. 
 

 
 
Other information included in the Group’s consolidated management report and the Bank’s 

Annual Information of the Issuer of Securities for 2021 

 

Other information comprises the information included in the Group’s consolidated management 
report and the Bank’s Annual Information of the Issuer of Securities (including the Corporate 
Governance Report) for 2021, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon. Management is responsible for the other information.  
 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we 
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report 
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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Responsibilities of management and the Supervisory board for the consolidated financial 

statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
The Supervisory board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial 
statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

► Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

► Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. 

► Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
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► Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

► Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

► Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the 
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of 
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

 
We communicate with the Supervisory board’s audit committee regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide the Supervisory board’s audit committee with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied. 
 
From the matters communicated with the Supervisory board’s audit committee, we determine 
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements 
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.  
 
Report in accordance with requirements of Section IV paragraph 11 «Instruction on 

preparation and publication of financial statements of banks in Ukraine» as approved by 

Resolution of the Board of National Bank of Ukraine No. 373 dated 24 Осtober 2011 (as 

amended) 

In accordance with Section IV paragraph 11 of «Instruction on preparation and publication of 
financial statements of banks in Ukraine» as approved by Resolution of the Board of National Bank 
of Ukraine No. 373 dated 24 Осtober 2011 (as amended) («Instruction No. 373»), we report the 
following: 
 
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit of the Group’s consolidated 
financial statements, Consolidated management report is prepared in accordance with 
requirements of Section IV of Instruction No. 373 and information given is consistent with the 
consolidated financial statements. 
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We are required to report if we have identified material misstatements in the Consolidated 
management report in light of the knowledge and understanding obtained during the course of the 
audit of the Group’s consolidated financial statements. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

 
Pursuant to the requirements of Article 14 paragraph 4 of Law of Ukraine «On audit of financial 
statements and auditing activity» No. 2258-VIII (the «Law No. 2258-VIII») and pursuant to the 
«Requirements to the information applicable to the audit or review of the financial statements 
prepared by capital market and organized commodity market participants supervised by the 
National Securities and Stock Market Commission (the NSSMC)» approved by the NSSMC Decision 
№555 dated 25 July 2021 (hereinafter – «NSSMC Requirements») we provide the following 
information in our Independent Auditor’s Report, which is required in addition to the requirements 
of International Standards on Auditing.  
 
Appointment of the auditor and period of engagement 
 
We were first appointed for three years as independent auditors to perform a statutory audit of 
the Group’s consolidated financial statements on 4 December 2019 by the Supervisory board of 
the Bank. The period of total uninterrupted engagement for performing the statutory audit of the 
Group is three years. 
 
Consistency of the independent auditor’s report with the additional report to the Supervisory 
board’s audit committee 
 
We confirm that this independent auditor’s report is consistent with the additional report to the 
Supervisory board’s audit committee of the Bank, which we issued on 22 July 2022 in accordance 
with Article 35 of Law No. 2258-VIII. 
 
Provision of non-audit services 

We declare that no prohibited non-audit services referred to in Article 6 paragraph 4 of Law 
No. 2258-VIII were provided. In addition, there are no non-audit services which were provided by 
us to the Bank or its controlled entities and which have not been disclosed in the consolidated 
financial statements or the Group’s consolidated management report. 
 
Reporting under the NSSMC requirements  
 

► Full legal name of the Bank, information on the ultimate controlling party as well as the 
ownership structure are disclosed in Note 1 to the Bank's consolidated financial statements.  

► As at 31 December 2021, the Bank has a subsidiary: PrJSC “Mortgage loans refinancing 
agency”, which is located in Kyiv at 77 Saksaganskogo St. 

► As at 31 December 2021, the Bank was not a controlling party or a participant of a non-
banking group.  

► The Bank is a public interest entity in accordance with the Law of Ukraine "On accounting 
and financial statements in Ukraine" No. 996-XIV.  
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(in thousands of UAH)

Notes

For the year ended
31 December

2021

For the year ended
31 December

2020
(restated*)

Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost
and at fair value through other comprehensive income 5 17,809,587 15,099,630

Interest income on financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss 5 3,542,954 3,367,312

Interest expense 5 (7,989,345) (10,476,135)
Net interest income 13,363,196 7,990,807

(Accrual)/reversal of allowance for expected credit losses on
interest bearing assets 29 (1,838,786) (1,559,903)

Net interest income after change in allowance for expected
credit losses on interest bearing assets 11,524,410 6,430,904

Fee and commission income 6 9,802,378 8,043,794
Fee and commission expense 6 (3,597,784) (3,080,856)
Dealing in foreign currencies, net 199,216 116,749
Translation differences, net 682,879 (2,868,733)
Net gain/(loss) on transactions with financial instruments at fair

value through profit or loss 7 (5,330,992) 6,302,082
(Accrual) /reversal of allowance for expected credit losses on

other financial assets and guarantees (233,938) (88,888)
(Accrual)/reversal of allowance for impairment losses on non-

financial assets (9,140) 25,649
Gains/(losses) arising on initial recognition of financial assets at

an interest rate higher or lower than the market rate 9,300 (126,246)
Net profit from transactions with debt financial instruments at

fair value through other comprehensive income 2,351 2,363
Net gain/(loss) on modifications of financial assets 29 (748,303) (1,153,822)
Other income/(expenses) 348,072 291,300
Net non-interest income 1,124,039 7,463,392

Operating income 12,648,449 13,894,296

Personnel expenses 8 (6,313,172) (6,004,433)
Depreciation and amortization 8 (1,861,325) (1,675,247)
Revaluation of investment property 8 − (175,669)
Other administrative and operational expenses 8 (3,422,073) (3,317,230)

Profit from operating activities 1,051,879 2,721,717
Profit/(loss) from derecognition of financial assets measured at

amortized cost − 10,721
Profit before tax 1,051,879 2,732,438

Income tax benefit 9 2,338 43,933
Net profit for the year 1,054,217 2,776,371

Attributable to:
Shareholder of the Bank 1,054,540 2,776,334
Non-controlling interest (323) 37
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1. ORGANIZATION

The Bank is a legal successor of the State Specialized Commercial Savings Bank of Ukraine registered by the
National Bank of Ukraine (hereinafter – the “NBU”) on 31 December 1991, registration No. 4. Open Joint Stock
Company “State Savings Bank of Ukraine” was established in accordance with the Decree of the President of
Ukraine No. 106 dated 20 May 1999 and the Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine No. 876 dated
21 May 1999, by converting the State Specialized Commercial Savings Bank of Ukraine into Joint Stock
Company “State Savings Bank of Ukraine” in the form of an open joint stock company. Open Joint Stock
Company “State Savings Bank of Ukraine” was registered by the NBU on 26 May 1999, registration No. 4. The
change of name to Public Joint Stock Company “State Savings Bank of Ukraine” was registered on
7 June 2011. On 5 June 2019, the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine adopted Resolution No. 568 Issue of Joint
Stock Company “State Savings Bank of Ukraine”, which was officially published and came into force on
10 July 2019, according to which the type of public joint stock company “State Savings Bank of Ukraine” was
changed from public to private and renamed it to the joint stock company “State Savings Bank of Ukraine”
(“the Bank”). The Charter was revised accordingly and was agreed with the National Bank of Ukraine.
On 18 July 2019, its state registration was done.

The Bank is operating under a banking license issued by the National Bank of Ukraine. The Bank has a general
license issued by the NBU for conducting foreign currency transactions and a license issued by the National
Securities and Stock Market Commission (the “NSSMC”) for operations with securities.

The Bank’s primary business is maintaining bank accounts and attracting deposits from legal entities and
individuals, issuing loans, transferring payments, trading in securities and operating with foreign currencies.

The Bank is not a member of the Individual Deposit Guarantee Fund, since all the deposits placed by
individuals are guaranteed by the State.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, 100% of the Bank’s shares were state-owned.

The registered address of the Bank is at: 12G Hospitalna str., Kyiv, 01001, Ukraine.

As at 31 December 2014, the Bank suspended all types of financial transactions in the parts of Luhansk and
Donetsk regions, which are not controlled by Ukrainian authorities.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared for the Bank, PrJSC “Home Loans Refinancing
Agency” (collectively referred to as “the Group”):

Name
Country

of operation

Participatory/voting interest (%)
as at

31 December
2021

31 December
2020

Type
of activities

JSC “State Savings Bank of Ukraine” Ukraine Parent company Banking
PrJSC “Home Loans Refinancing Agency” Ukraine 70.86 70.86 Loan refinancing

PrJSC “Home Loans Refinancing Agency” was established on 17 February 2012. The primary activity of the
company is refinancing mortgage loans through the issue of mortgage securities.

These consolidated financial statements were approved by the Management Board on 1 August 2022.

2. OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

The growth of the Ukrainian economy in 2021 was 3.4% after falling in 2020 by 4%. Difficult conditions
associated with the consequences of the corona crisis have significantly affected the growth of real GDP.

The strengthening of domestic inflationary pressures in 2021 was caused by the high level of inflation in the
World. There was an increase in energy prices, transportation and the cost of housing for the population,
increased the cost of food in the consumer basket. The inflation rate rose sharply in the middle of the year.
Consistent conduct of transparent monetary policy by the National Bank of Ukraine and increase of the
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discount rate from 6% to 9% per annum contributed to the reversal of the upward trend in consumer prices in
Ukraine - from 11% in September inflation gradually slowed to 10% per annum by the end of 2021.

The volume of foreign exchange reserves at the end of 2021 was at the level of 4 months of future imports
and amounted to USD 31 billion. During the past year, the supply and demand of foreign currency in the
interbank market have been almost balanced. The rapid improvement in external price conditions for Ukrainian
exporters was offset by the dynamic increase in imports and the outflow of capital from non-residents with
Ukrainian domestic government bonds (UDGB). That was due to the slow pace of economic recovery in
Ukraine and the escalation of military and political threats.

The volume of non-residents' investments in government securities decreased to UAH 83.9 billion (about USD
3 billion in equivalent), which is the lowest value since December 2020. The negative information background,
due to the growing geopolitical tensions around Ukraine, determined a decrease in the propensity to invest in
UDGB by both non-residents and legal entities and individuals.

The high level of debt dollarization leads to a deterioration of the economy's resilience to external shocks and
financial stability of the economy. Therefore, the accelerated growth of bank lending in UAH to the real
economy is an important factor in reducing the currency risks of the economy. Due to the intensification of
lending in 2021, it was possible to reduce the level of dollarization of corporate debt from 72% to 66%.

The banking system remained stable, well-capitalized, liquid and profitable. In 2021, the inflow of funds into
the banking system continued. The capital adequacy of the banking system of Ukraine remains higher than
the normative values. The adequacy of regulatory capital of banks at the end of 2021 comprised 18%, and
Tier 1 capital - 12%, which is by 8% and 5% respectively higher than the normative values (10% and 7%). The
decrease of these indicators of banks' capitalization compared to December 2021 is due to the introduction by
the National Bank of a requirement to cover 50% of the estimated amount of banks' operational risk.

During the year, banks had enough liquidity to absorb shocks. The short-term liquidity ratio of LCR was fulfilled
by most banks with a significant margin. From the beginning of April 2021, the introduction of the Net Stable
Financing Ratio (NSFR) from the level of 80% began, with a gradual increase by 10% every six months. By
the end of 2021, all banks already complied with NSFRv requirements at a level exceeding 100%.

In 2021, the net loan portfolio of Ukrainian banks in UAH grew by 40.2%. Net foreign currency loans increased
by 9.6% compared to 2020. The rate of retail lending exceeded the pre-corona crisis level as the net loan
portfolio in UAH grew by 36.9% over the year. The increase in net real estate loans in UAH was 62.4% y-to-y.

The part of non-performing loans in the total portfolio decreased by 11.0% over the year to 30.0%. State banks
made the largest contribution to reducing the part of NPLs in 2021. They had a high growth rate of the loan
portfolio and wrote off old non-performing loans to implement the relevant strategies.

During 2021 the amount of UAH funds of individuals in banks increased by 15.3%. At the same time, term
deposits of individuals in the national currency grew more slowly - by 9.6% over the year. The vast majority of
new term deposits were attracted for a period of three months. The total amount of deposits of individuals in
foreign currency for the year decreased by 1.8% (in USD equivalents) due to the outflow of time funds. The
funds of legal entities in the national currency increased by 26.4% over the year. Funds of legal entities in
foreign currencies (in USD equivalent) increased by 3.9%.

In 2021, the banking sector received the highest profit in history - UAH 77.5 billion (+ 95.4% y\y), primarily due
to the rapid increase in operating income and reduced accrual of provisions.

In August 2021, the international rating agency Fitch Ratings confirmed Ukraine's long-term issuer default
ratings (IDRs) in foreign and national currencies at the “B” level. The rating of the country ceiling at the level
of "B" and short-term IDR in foreign and national currencies at the level of "B" were also confirmed. The forecast
was changed from "stable" to "positive". In September 2021, Standard & Poor's reviewed Ukraine's rating and
left Ukraine's long-term and short-term sovereign credit ratings in foreign and national currencies at “B/B” level
with a stable outlook.
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As at 1 January 2022 the Bank is a specialized savings bank and belongs to the systemically important banks
of Ukraine. The bank ranks second place among Ukrainian banks in terms of assets and is second in terms of
the volume of customer funds raised.

The management focuses on maintaining the Group's stable operations, which corresponds to the existing
circumstances and available information. However, there is a possibility of external factors that may have a
negative impact on the stability of the banking system as a whole, and thus on the results of operations and
financial condition of the Group, the nature and consequences of which are currently impossible to determine.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1. Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”) and the requirements of the Law of Ukraine On Accounting and Financial Reporting in Ukraine
#996-XIV on preparation of financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Bank and the companies
regarding which the Bank is exposed to or has rights to variable returns from its involvement and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over these companies.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
from the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Bank
and to the non-controlling interest. Total comprehensive income of the subsidiaries is attributed to the owner
of the Bank and to the non-controlling interest even if this results in a deficit balance of the non-controlling
interest.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses, and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interest

Non-controlling interest represents the portion of profit or loss and net assets of the subsidiary and special
purpose entity not owned, directly or indirectly, by the Bank’s shareholder.

Non-controlling interest is presented separately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and within equity in the consolidated statement of financial position, separately from
the Parent’s share capital.

3.2.   Basis of presentation

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of UAH, unless otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for buildings
and financial instruments that are measured at revalued amount or fair value, respectively, at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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Going concern basis

This consolidated financial statements were prepared on a going concern basis. During the preparation of the
financial statements, the Group’s management assessed the Group’s ability to continue its operations in future,
taking into account hostilities in Ukraine, which have already caused and continue to cause significant negative
consequences for the economy of the country as a whole and for the Group's customers as described in
Note 31.

The Group has analyzed the potential impact of military aggression against Ukraine on its financial position
and future financial results. The Group’s estimates and forecasts for the next 12 months based on the following
assumptions:

- macroeconomic forecast based on the May Focus Economics Consensus Forecast for Ukraine;
- deposits and current accounts of individuals and legal entities are forecasted at a constant level –

during March-May the Group does not observe significant outflow of funds;
- loan portfolio – for retail business remains stable; for corporate clients – relaunch and growth of lending

to critical industries in safe regions, increase the term of lending under government lending programs
will allow to receive interest income under such programs for a longer period;

- decrease of commission income to 70% of pre-war level due to decrease of transactions volume and
reduction of the number of branches at the occupied territories. At the same time, the Group is taking
a prudent approach to the restoration of tariffs for commission services, planning to gradually renew
tariffs for payments, transfers, cash transactions, acquiring, and at the same time maintaining reduced
commissions for critical transactions;

- credit risks in the forecast period are growing, which requires recognition of additional provisions for
expected credit losses;

- the Group's operating expenses are projected at last year's level, taking into account additional costs
aimed at improving information security and ensuring the continuity of the Group's operations;

- regulatory requirements take into account all officially approved at the forecast date plans of the NBU
to introduce new requirements during the forecast period. At the same time, the Group is considering
the possibility of postponing the implementation of certain requirements of the NBU at the end of the
forecasted period, given the actual situation and capabilities of the banking system at that time.

Assumptions underlying management's going concern assessments do not take into account external factors
that may change in the future, namely: changes in capital market conditions in Ukraine and in the world as a
whole, other and / or macroeconomic impacts not included in the Group's estimates, geopolitical changes,
significant changes in legislation, including banking, changes in reporting and accounting standards, changes
in tax legislation, as well as other changes that may occur in the future and over which the Bank has no
influence.

The Group's management believes that over the next 12 months, the Group expects to meet its obligations on
time and in full, including the scheduled repayment of about USD 181 million of external borrowings. Also, the
Group plans for additional lending to strategic corporate clients. The source of repayment of liabilities and
increase in lending will be the accumulated liquidity, redemption of Ukrainian state bonds and, as well as, if
necessary, attracting the NBU’s refinancing loans. Balances on correspondent accounts and deposit
certificates of the National Bank of Ukraine are projected at the level of UAH 22,6 billion equivalent, which will
ensure the liquidity needs.

Taking into account the expected credit losses due to the military aggression of the russian federation against
Ukraine, there may be a lack of capital to meet the NBU’s regulatory requirements by the end of 2022. Under
such conditions, the Bank plans to activate recovery plan, which provides for additional capitalization at the
expense of the shareholder, the amounts of which can not be reliably measured at the moment . In accordance
with Resolution #23 of the National Bank of Ukraine of 25 February 2022 (as amended), the Bank is not subject
to sanctions during martial law for violations of capital, liquidity, credit risk and investment ratios.

Based on its forecasts of the liquidity position, capital adequacy ratios, expected credit losses the Group's
management considers that it would be appropriate to prepare these financials statements on the going
concern basis.
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However, there is still a material uncertainty, primarily due to the unpredictable impact of ongoing hostilities on
the territory of Ukraine on the assumptions underlying management’s assessments, that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

This uncertainty and the respective risk of the Group's insolvency, e.g. breach of capital ratios, are significantly
mitigated by the status of the Bank (defined by the National Bank of Ukraine as systemically important), and
by the Bank being an entity of critical infrastructure - both to be considered in case of additional capitalization
of the Bank being a state-owned bank.

Reclassifications

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for 2021, the Bank decided to approximate the format of
disclosure of indicators and titles of the main forms of financial reporting to the format of financial statements
based on taxonomy of financial statements according to International Financial Reporting Standards in a single
electronic format approved by Order of the Ministry of Finance of Ukraine #595 “On Approval of the Translation
of the Taxonomy of Financial Statements under International Financial Reporting Standards 2021”, dated
12 November 2021. Accordingly, certain changes were made in the presentation of comparative information
for 2020 to bring it into line with the new data presentation format as disclosed below:

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR 2020

As previously
reported

Effect
of the change

in presentation Restated

(Accrual)/reversal of allowance for expected
credit losses and losses on modifications of
interest bearing assets (2,713,725) 2,713,725 −

included reversal/(accrual) of allowance for
expected credit losses on interest bearing
assets (1,559,903) 1,559,903 −

(Accrual)/reversal of allowance for expected
credit losses on interest bearing assets − (1,559,903) (1,559,903)

Net (loss)/gain on foreign exchange
transactions (2,751,984) 2,751,984 −

Dealing in foreign currencies, net − 116,749 116,749
Translation differences, net − (2,868,733) (2,868,733)
Net other income 178,138 (178,138) −
Gains/(losses) arising on initial recognition of

financial assets at an interest rate higher or
lower than the market rate − (126,246) (126,246)

Net profit from transactions with debt financial
instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income − 2,363 2,363

Net gain/(losses) on modifications of financial
assets − (1,153,822) (1,153,822)

Other (expense)/income − 291,300 291,300

Operating income 13,905,017 (10,721) 13,894,296

Operating expenses (11,172,579) 11,172,579 −
Personnel expenses − (6,004,433) (6,004,433)
Depreciation and amortization − (1,675,247) (1,675,247)
Revaluation of investment property − (175,669) (175,669)
Other administrative and operational expenses − (3,317,230) (3,317,230)
Profit from operating activities − 2,721,717 2,721,717
Profit / (loss) from derecognition of financial

assets measured at amortized cost − 10,721 10,721
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

As previously
reported

Effect
of the change

in presentation Restated
Assets
Due from banks 46,350 (46,350) −
Property, equipment and intangible assets 9,725,445 (9,725,445) −
Fixed assets − 7,913,375 7,913,375
Intangible assets − 1,812,070 1,812,070
Other assets 2,888,522 (2,888,522) −
Other financial assets − 476,602 476,602
Other non-financial assets − 2,458,270 2,458,270

Liabilities
Other liabilities 1,948,998 (1,948,998) −
Provisions − 634,094 634,094
Other financial liabilities − 512,606 512,606
Other non-financial liabilities − 802,298 802,298

Equity
Revaluation reserve for securities at fair value

through other comprehensive income 976,060 (976,060) −
Revaluation reserve for financial assets at fair

value through other comprehensive income − 429,062 429,062
Revaluation reserve for investments in equity

instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income − 546,998 546,998

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 1 JANUARY 2020

As previously
reported

Effect
of the change

in presentation Restated
Assets
Due from banks 112,583 (71,902) 40,681
Property, equipment and intangible assets 9,948,101 (9,948,101) −
Fixed assets − 8,553,607 8,553,607
Intangible assets − 1,394,494 1,394,494
Other assets 2,417,095 (2,417,095) −
Other financial assets − 265,409 265,409
Other non-financial assets − 2,223,588 2,223,588

Liabilities
Other liabilities 1,807,105 (1,807,105) −
Provisions − 526,697 526,697
Other financial liabilities − 562,740 562,740
Other non-financial liabilities − 717,668 717,668

Equity
Revaluation reserve for securities at fair value

through other comprehensive income 1,018,205 (1,018,205) −
Revaluation reserve for financial assets at fair

value through other comprehensive income − 639,249 639,249
Revaluation reserve for investments in equity

instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income − 378,956 378,956
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR 2020

As previously
reported

Effect
of the change

in presentation Restated

Revaluation reserve
for securities at fair
value through other

comprehensive
income

Allocation of the amount
of revaluation reserve

Revaluation reserve
for financial assets

at fair value through
other

comprehensive
income

Revaluation reserve
for investments in
equity instruments

at fair value through
other

comprehensive
income

1 January 2020 1,018,205 (1,018,205) 639,249 378,956
Other

comprehensive
income/
(expenses) for the
year, net of income
tax (42,145) 42,145 (210,187) 168,042

31 December 2020 976,060 (976,060) 429,062 546,998

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR 2020

As previously
reported

Effect
of the change

in presentation Restated

Cash flows from operating activities

Due from banks 67,824 (27,147) 40,677
Other assets 436,808 (436,808) −
Other financial assets − 93,062 93,062
Other non-financial assets − 370,893 370,893
Other liabilities 125,937 (125,937) −
Other financial liabilities − 149,202 149,202
Other non-financial liabilities − (23,265) (23,265)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property and equipment and intangible
assets (1,295,610) 1,295,610 −

Purchase of fixed assets − (754,063) (754,063)
Purchase of intangible assets − (541,547) (541,547)

3.3.   Functional currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency that
best reflects the economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to the Bank, its
subsidiary and special purpose entity (the “functional currency”). The functional and currency of presentation
of these consolidated financial statements is Hryvnia (“UAH”). All amounts are rounded to thousands, unless
otherwise indicated.

Foreign currency transactions

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into UAH at the appropriate
spot exchange rates ruling at the reporting date. Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the
exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. Gains and losses arising from these translations and
from the settlement of foreign exchange transactions are included in net gain on foreign exchange transactions.
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The official exchange rates at reporting date used by the Group in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements are:

31 December
2021

31 December
2020

UAH/USD 1 27.2782 28.2746
UAH/EUR 1 30.9226 34.7396

3.4.   Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and reported net in the consolidated statement of financial position
when the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and the Group intends either
to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Such right of setting off
(a) must not be contingent on a future event and (b) must be legally enforceable in all of the following
circumstances: (i) in the normal course of business, (ii) the event of default and (iii) the event of insolvency or
bankruptcy. Income and expense are not offset in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income unless required or permitted by IFRS or interpretation. In accounting for a transfer of
a financial asset that does not qualify for derecognition, the Group does not offset the transferred asset and
the associated liability.

3.5.   Financial assets and financial liabilities

3.5.1.Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost (AC), fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
as at FVTPL:

 It is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and

 Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI test) on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt instrument is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated by
the Group as at FVTPL:

 It is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets; and

 Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI test) on the principal amount outstanding.

For debt financial assets measured at FVOCI, gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for the following, which are recognised in profit or loss in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost:

 Interest income using the effective interest method;

 Expected credit losses (ECL) and reversal of provision for impairment losses; and

 Foreign exchange gains and losses.



Translation form Ukrainian original

JOINT STOCK COMPANY “STATE SAVINGS BANK OF UKRAINE”

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(in thousands of UAH)

16

When a debt financial asset measured at FVOCI is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured
at FVTPL.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income. This election is made on an
investment-by-investment basis. Gains and losses on such equity instruments are never reclassified to profit
or loss and no impairment is recognised in profit or loss. Dividends are recognised in profit or loss unless they
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment, in which case they are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Cumulative gains and losses recognised in other comprehensive income are
transferred to retained earnings on disposal of an investment.

In addition, on initial recognition the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets
the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial instruments are reclassified when the Group changes its business model. Equity investments are not
reclassified.

Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at a portfolio
level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to management.
The information considered by the Group includes:

 The policies and objectives set for portfolio management and the implementation of these policies in
practice. These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration
of any related liabilities or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

 The manner the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Group’s management;

 The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and the way those risks are managed;

 The way managers of the business are compensated – e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

 The frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its
expectations about future sales activity. However, information about sales activity is not considered
independently, but as part of an overall assessment of how the Group’s stated objective for managing
the financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are realised.

Financial assets that are held for trading or managed and performance of which is evaluated on a fair value
basis are measured at FVTPL because they are neither held to collect contractual cash flows nor held both to
collect contractual cash flows and to sell financial assets.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money, for the credit risk associated with
the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs
(e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as profit margin.
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In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest on the
outstanding part of the principal amount (the “SPPI criterion”), the Group considers the contractual terms of
the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could
change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows so that it would not meet this condition. In making the
assessment, the Group considers:

 Contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;

 Leverage features;

 Conditions for early repayment and extension of the term of financial instrument;

 Terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows from specified assets.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities as measured at amortised cost.

3.5.2.  Recognition and measurement of financial instruments

The Group recognizes financial assets and liabilities in its consolidated statement of financial position when it
becomes a party to the contractual obligation of the instrument. Regular way purchase and sale of the financial
assets and liabilities are recognised using settlement date accounting.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or a financial liability (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial asset or financial liability, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The best evidence of fair value is price in
an active market. An active market is one in which transactions for asset or liability take place with sufficient
frequency and volume to provide pricing information on permanent basis. Fair value of financial instruments
traded in an active market is measured as the product of the quoted price for the individual asset or liability
and the quantity held by the Group. This is the case even if a market’s normal daily trading volume is not
sufficient to absorb the quantity held by the Group and placing orders to sell the position in a single transaction
might affect the quoted price.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the transaction
price (i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received). If the Group determines that the fair value at
initial recognition differs from the transaction price, it accounts for that instrument at the date of initial
recognition as follows:

 At valuation price, if that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical
asset or liability (i.e. a Level 1 input) or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from
observable markets. The Group shall recognize the difference between the fair value at initial recognition
and the transaction price as a gain or loss;

 In all other cases, at the measurement adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at initial
recognition and the transaction price. After initial recognition, the Group recognizes that deferred
difference as a gain or loss to the extent that it arises from a change in a factor (including time) that
market participants would take into account when determining the price of an asset or liability.

Any gains or losses on initial recognition of financial instruments received from the shareholder are recognised
in equity.



Translation form Ukrainian original

JOINT STOCK COMPANY “STATE SAVINGS BANK OF UKRAINE”

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(in thousands of UAH)

18

Accounting policies regarding subsequent re-measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities are
disclosed further in the respective accounting policy sections.

For consolidated financial reporting purposes, fair value measurement are categorized into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurement are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

 Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the measurement date;

 Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

 Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a
financial instrument. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the transaction had not
taken place. Transaction costs include fees and commissions paid to agents (including employees acting as
selling agents), advisors, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies and securities exchanges, and
transfer taxes and duties levied upon reregistration of property rights. Transaction costs do not include debt
premiums or discounts, financing costs or internal administrative or holding costs.

3.5.3.  Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)
is derecognised where:

 The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

 The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset, or retained the right to receive
cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to
a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and

 The Group either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is
recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes
the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or purchased option (including a cash-settled
option or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement is
the amount of the transferred asset that the Group may repurchase, except that in the case of a written put
option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision) on an asset measured at fair value, the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and
the option exercise price.

Write-off

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Group has stopped pursuing
the recovery. If the amount to be written off is greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the difference is
first treated as an addition to the allowance that is then applied against the gross carrying amount. Any
subsequent recoveries are credited to credit loss expense. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
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Financial liabilities

Financial liability is derecognized when the obligation is discharged, cancelled, or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amount is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
(see Note 3.5.4.).

3.5.4.   Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Group evaluates whether the cash flows of the modified asset
are substantially different, that is, whether there is a significant difference between the cash flows of the initially
recognised financial asset and the cash flows of the modified asset or the financial asset that replaced it. If the
cash flows are substantially different (referred to as ‘substantial modification’), then the contractual rights to
cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial
asset is derecognised and a new financial asset is recognised at fair value plus any eligible transaction costs.
Any fees received as part of the modification are accounted for as follows:

 Fees that are considered in determining the fair value of the new asset and fees that represent
reimbursement of eligible transaction costs are included in the initial measurement of the asset; and

 Other fees are included in profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on derecognition.

Changes in cash flows on existing financial assets or financial liabilities are not considered as modification, if
they result from existing contractual terms.

Modification of terms is deemed substantial in case of change of currency of financial asset, change of debtor,
combination of two or more financial assets or vice versa, change of type of financial asset. Modification of
terms is considered unsubstantial in case of change of the nominal interest rate, repayment schedule or
maturity extension.

If the modification of a financial asset measured at amortised cost or FVOCI does not result in derecognition
of the financial asset, then the Group first recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset using
the original effective interest rate of the asset and recognizes the resulting adjustment as a modification gain
or loss in profit or loss. Any costs or fees incurred and fees received as part of the modification adjust the gross
carrying amount of the modified financial asset and are amortised over the remaining term of the modified
financial asset.

Financial liabilities

If the contractual terms of the liabilities are renegotiated or otherwise modified, the Group accounts for it as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability, if the modification
of the terms is substantial. The modification of terms is considered substantial if the discounted present value
of the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted using
the original effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent different from the discounted present value of the
remaining cash flows of the original financial liability. If the modification of terms is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original debt, any costs or fees incurred are recognised as part of the gain or loss at the
extinguishment date. If the modification is not accounted for as an extinguishment of the debt, any costs or
fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the liability and are amortised over the remaining term of the
modified liability.

3.5.5.   Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognizes a provision for expected credit losses on all debt financial assets, that are carried at
amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income as well as loan commitments and financial
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guarantee agreements (hereinafter as ‘financial instruments’). An impairment loss is not recognized for equity
instruments.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for the following, for which
they are measured as 12-month ECL:

 Debt investment securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

 Other financial instruments (other than net investments in finance leases) on which credit risk has not
increased significantly since their initial recognition.

12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible
within the 12 months after the reporting date.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial
instrument.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the consolidated statement of financial position

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:

 Financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of these
assets;

 Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: as a provision in other liabilities;

 Debt instruments measured at FVOCI: provision for expected losses is recognized in other
comprehensive income and does not reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

3.6.   Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, unrestricted balances on correspondent accounts with the
National Bank of Ukraine and other banks, advances to OECD and other banks which may be converted to
cash within three months from date of recognition, except for guarantee deposits for operations with payment
cards.

3.7.   Due from banks

In the normal course of business, the Group provides advances and places deposits for certain periods of time
with other banks. Due from banks are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs. Due from banks
with a fixed maturity term are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. Those that do not have fixed maturities are measured at amortised cost based on maturities estimated
by management. Amounts due from banks are carried net of any allowance for expected credit losses.

3.8.   Loans to customers

Loans to customers are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable principal and interest
payments, other than those classified in other categories of financial assets.

At the time of initial recognition, loans are measured based on the results of cash flow testing (SPPI test).
Loans to customers are measured at:

 Amortised cost using the effective interest method less allowance for expected credit losses;

 Fair value through profit or loss. In such case, no expected credit losses are recognised.
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Loans to customers in the consolidated statement of financial position include:

 Loans to customers measured at amortised cost; these loans are initially measured at fair value plus
incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method;

 Loans to customers measured at FVTPL due to non-compliance with the SPPI-criterion; these loans are
measured at fair value with changes recognised immediately in profit or loss; and

 Net investments in finance leases.

Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets are assets that are credit-impaired on initial
recognition. Such assets are initially measured at fair value. Lifetime ECLs are recognised over the expected
life of a financial instrument on a cumulative basis using the effective interest rate adjusted for credit risk.

3.9. Investments

“Investments” caption in the consolidated statement of financial position includes:

 Debt securities measured at amortised cost;

 Debt securities mandatorily measured at FVTPL (including a hybrid instrument with embedded derivative);

 Debt securities measured at FVOCI; and

 Equity investment securities designated by the Group at FVOCI.

Investments at amortised cost

Investments measured at amortised cost are investments in debt securities held within a business model
objective of which is achieved by collecting contractual cash flows that represent solely payments of principal
and interest on the outstanding part of principal amount.

After initial recognition these investments are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. Investments at amortised cost are recorded net of any provisions for expected credit losses.

Investments at amortized cost include “overnight” deposit certificates.

Investments measured at FVOCI

Investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are investments in debt securities
held within a business model objective of which is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows that
represent solely payments of principal and interest on the outstanding part of principal amount, and by means
of sale. Such debt securities are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs.

These securities are then measured at fair value, with revaluation effect recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for impairment losses, foreign exchange gains or losses and interest income accrued using
the effective interest rate method, which are recognised directly in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income. At sale, the gain/(loss) previously recognized in equity is recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. When an investment measured at
FVOCI is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss (see Note 3.5.1.).

Investments measured at FVTPL

Investments measured at fair value through profit or loss are investments in debt securities that do not meet
the criteria for their subsequent measurement at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income. Acquisition costs on such investments are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income when incurred.
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Equity instruments

The Group irrevocably elected to present changes in fair value of equity investments in OCI. This election was
made on an investment-by-investment basis. No impairment loss is recognised on equity investments.

3.10. Derivative financial instruments

In the normal course of business, the Group enters into various derivative financial instruments, including
foreign exchange contracts concluded by the Group with other banks to purchase/sale and exchange
(conversion) of foreign currency and currency rate swaps to manage currency and liquidity risks, and for
trading. Derivative financial instruments are initially measured at fair value at the date of a derivative contract
with subsequent revaluation to their fair value at each reporting date. Derivatives are carried as assets when
their fair value is positive and as liabilities when it is negative. Derivatives are included in financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in the consolidated statement of financial position, or if their amounts
are immaterial, they are included in other assets or liabilities. Gains and losses resulting from these instruments
are included in net gain/(loss) from financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group are not designated as hedges and do not qualify for hedge accounting.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative that is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument with an underlying instrument
that is a financial asset is not separated, but accounted for as part of such a combined financial instrument,
classified as a financial instrument at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives together with the
host contracts are presented under the “Investments” caption in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

3.11. Due to banks, customer accounts, subordinated debt, Eurobonds issued and other borrowed
funds

Due to banks, customer accounts, subordinated debt, Eurobonds issued and other borrowed funds are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, amounts due are stated at amortised cost, and
any difference between net proceeds and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method. Those that do not have fixed maturities are measured at amortised cost based on expected maturities.

3.12. Guarantee contracts issued and letters of credit

Issued financial guarantee and letters of credit

Financial guarantee contracts and letters of credit issued by the Group are credit insurance that provides for
specified payments to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due under the original or modified terms of a debt instrument. Such financial guarantee
contracts and letters of credit issued are initially recognised at fair value.

Subsequently they are carried at the higher of:

 Loss allowance for ECL recognised in accordance with IFRS 9; or

 Fair value less the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with IFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers.

For other loan commitments the Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses.

Liabilities arising from financial guarantees and loan commitments are included within other liabilities.
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Issued performance guarantees

Performance guarantees are contracts, that provide for the payment of compensation in favor of one of the
parties in the event of non-performance by the other party. Performance guarantees are not financial
instruments. Performance guarantees are initially recognized at fair value, which is confirmed by the amount
of the fee received for its issuance, which is subsequently amortized on the Bank’s commission income from
off-balance sheet transactions on a straight-line basis over the term of the performance guarantee.

In the future, performance guarantees are valued at the higher of two values: the amount of amortized
commission and the provision for possible losses under the provided performance guarantee.

3.13. Interest income and expense

Effective interest rate

Interest income and expense are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method. The ‘effective
interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument to:

 The gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

 The amortised cost of the financial liability.

When calculating the effective interest rate for purchased or originated financial instruments other than credit-
impaired assets, the Group estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instruments, but not expected credit losses. For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-
adjusted effective interest rate is calculated using estimated future cash flows including expected credit losses.

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes transaction costs and fees and amounts paid or received
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs include incremental costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or financial liability.

Amortised cost and gross carrying amount

The “amortised cost” of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or
financial liability is measured on initial recognition less principal repayments, plus or less cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any expected credit loss allowance.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is the amortised cost of a financial
asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance.

Calculation of interest income and expense

The effective interest rate of a financial asset or financial liability is calculated on initial recognition of a financial
asset or a financial liability. In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to
the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the
liability. The effective interest rate is revised as a result of periodic re-estimation of cash flows of floating rate
instruments to reflect movements in market rates of interest.

However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the
asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

For financial assets that were credit-impaired on initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying
the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the asset. The calculation of interest income
for such assets does not revert to a gross basis, even if the credit risk of the asset improves.
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3.14. Fees and commission

Other fee and commission income – including account servicing fees, investment management fees, sales
commission, placement fees and syndication fees – is recognised as the related services are performed. If a
loan commitment is not expected to result in the draw-down of a loan, then the related loan commitment fee is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the commitment period.

Other fee and commission expenses relate mainly to transaction and service fees, which are expensed as the
services are received.

3.15. Investment property

Investment property is property (land or a building or part of a building) subject to enforcement activities under
Ukrainian law held to earn rentals under operating leases. Investment property is initially recognised at cost
and subsequently measured at fair value.

3.16. Fixed assets and intangible assets

Fixed assets and intangible assets, other than buildings and properties under construction, are carried at
historical cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization and any recognised impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation on assets under construction and those not placed in service commences from the date
the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation of property, equipment and intangible assets (other than construction in progress and assets not
set in operation) begins on the first day of the month following the reporting month, in which the item of property,
equipment and intangible assets becomes available for use (operation), and is terminated starting from the
first day of the month following the month of disposal of property, equipment and intangible assets.

Depreciation of property and equipment and amortization of intangible assets is charged on the historical
(revalued) cost of property and equipment and intangible assets and is designed to write off assets over their
useful economic lives. It is calculated on a straight-line basis at the following annual rates:

Buildings 0.7%-5%
Furniture, office equipment, and vehicles 5%-33%
Intangible assets 10%-17%

In 2021 and 2020, useful lives of property and equipment and intangible assets were reviewed but not
changed.

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the lease term of the related asset. Expenses related to repairs
and renewals are charged when incurred and included in operating expenses. Improvement expenses are
capitalized when incurred.

An item of property and equipment and intangible assets is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.

Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The Group has adopted a revaluation model for the subsequent measurement of its buildings and properties
under construction. Buildings and properties under construction are carried in the consolidated statement of
financial position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation determined on the
basis of market evidence in the course of the assessment performed by professional valuation experts, less
any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are
performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amounts do not differ materially from those that would
be determined using fair values at the reporting date.
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Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such buildings and properties under construction is
credited to the property revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the
same asset previously recognised as an expense, in which case the increase is recognised as income in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income to the extent of the decrease
previously charged. Decrease in carrying amount arising on the revaluation of such buildings and properties
under construction is charged as an expense to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the
property revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. The decrease is debited directly
in equity to the property revaluation reserve to the extent of any credit balance existing in the property
revaluation reserve in respect of that asset.

During the revaluation of buildings and properties under construction, the accumulated depreciation is
deducted from the initial (revalued) value of the item of property and equipment, and the net carrying amount
obtained on a net basis is revalued to fair value. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued property,
the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the property revaluation reserve is transferred directly to
retained earnings.

Depreciation of revalued buildings is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

The carrying amounts of property, equipment and intangible assets (except for buildings and property under
construction) are reviewed at each reporting date to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their
recoverable amounts. Where carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, assets are written
down to their recoverable amount. Impairment is recognised in the respective period as losses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. After the recognition of an
impairment loss, the depreciation charge for property and equipment is adjusted in future periods to allocate
the assets’ revised value, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

3.17. Leases

Operating leases

A contract or part of a contract is considered a lease if the right to control the use of the underlying asset for a
certain period in exchange for compensation is transferred. Leases of assets under which the risks and
rewards of ownership are effectively retained with the lessor are classified as operating leases. At the lease
commencement date, the lessee estimates the asset for use at cost, which consists of the amount of the initial
estimate of the lease obligation, any lease payments made on or before the lease commencement date, less
any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee and the costs to be incurred, which is required by the terms of
the lease. Subsequently, the lessee, using the cost model, estimates the right-to-use asset less depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses. At the commencement of the lease, the lessee estimates the lease
liability at the present value of the lease payments not paid at that date. To calculate the present value of the
lease payments, the lessee applies an additional borrowing rate if the interest rate stipulated in the lease
cannot be easily determined. After the lease commencement date, the lessee recognizes interest on the lease
obligation.

The Group applies the exemption from short-term lease recognition and to low-value asset lease agreements.
Short-term lease payments and leases of assets where the underlying asset is invaluable are recognized in
the straight-line lease expense over the lease term.

Finance leases

Where the Group is a lessor in a lease which transfers all substantial risk and rewards from ownership to the
lessee, such asset is classified as finance lease and accounts receivable in the amount of net investments in
finance lease and is recognised within loans to customers.

3.18. Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the current and deferred tax expense.
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Current tax

The current tax expense is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before income
tax as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted during the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilized, and/or temporary taxable differences in respect of which the
relevant deductible differences can be used.

Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered, and/or temporary taxable differences in respect of which the relevant deductible differences can be
used.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when
the liability is settled or the asset is realized.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred taxes for the year

Current and deferred taxes are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, except when they relate to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case
the current and deferred taxes are also dealt with in equity.

Operating taxes

The Group also pays other taxes that are charged depending on the Group activities. These taxes are included
as a component of operating expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

3.19. Provisions and contingencies

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).
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When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle an obligation are expected to be recovered from
a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position but are disclosed in
notes to the consolidated financial statements in case the possibility of any outflow in settlement is remote. A
contingent asset is not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position but disclosed in notes to
the consolidated financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

3.20. Share capital

Contributions to share capital are recognised at historical cost. Contributions made before 31 December 2000
are stated at cost, which is restated using the consumer price index to take into account effect of hyperinflation
as required by IAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies.

Costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are deducted from equity, net of any related income taxes.

Dividends on ordinary shares based on the financial results of the year are recognised in equity as a reduction
in the period in which they are declared. Dividends that are declared after the reporting date are treated as a
subsequent event under IAS 10 Events after the Reporting Period and disclosed accordingly. Dividends
subject to mandatory accrual under effective law are accrued as at the reporting date within other liabilities.

Equity reserves

Reserves recognised in equity (other comprehensive income) in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position include revaluation reserve for debt securities at fair value through other comprehensive
income and property revaluation reserve.

3.21. Retirement and other benefit obligations

In accordance with the requirements of the Ukrainian legislation, the Group withholds amounts of pension
contributions from employees’ salaries and pays them to the Pension Fund of Ukraine. Such pension system
provides for calculation of current payments by the employer as a percentage of current total disbursements
to staff. Such expense is charged in the period the related salaries are earned. Upon retirement, an employee
receives retirement benefit payments made by the Pension Fund of Ukraine. The Group does not have any
pension arrangements separate from the state pension system of Ukraine, which requires current contributions
by an employer calculated as a percentage of current gross salary payments. In addition, the Group has no
post-retirement benefits or other significant compensated benefits requiring accrual.

3.22. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made judgement, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, income and expense. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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Key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of uncertainty estimation at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial period include:

31 December
2021

31 December
2020

Loans to customers 74,754,086 63,226,077
Investments 128,686,039 130,251,541
Buildings and construction in progress 2,965,230 3,019,240
Expected credit losses for guarantees and other commitments 806,889 634,094

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements is included in the following notes:

 Classification of financial assets: assessment of the business model within which the assets are held
and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding – Note 3.5.1.

Assumptions and estimations uncertainty

Assessment of ECL

Expected credit losses are estimated as follows:

 Financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present value of all cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive);

 Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference between the gross
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows;

 Undrawn loan commitments: as the present value of the difference between the contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group if the commitment is drawn down and the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive if the loan is provided; and

 Financial guarantee contracts: as the expected payments to reimburse the holder less any amounts that
the Group expects to recover.

Evaluation of expected credit losses reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined
by evaluating a range of possible outcomes, the time value of money, and reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. Estimating provisions for expected credit losses for
financial assets at amortised cost or FVOCI requires complex modelling and using significant judgement on
future economic conditions, expected cash flows and debt service quality. Significant judgement is required
when applying accounting policy requirements to estimate expected credit losses in respect of the following:

 Determining criteria used to identify significant increases in credit risk;

 Selecting relevant models and judgements to estimate expected credit losses;

 Determining quantity and relative weighting of scenarios for each type of product/market and respective
expected credit losses;

 Determining groups of similar financial assets to estimate expected credit losses.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is stipulated by the risk of financial losses in case of default of any
counterparty, customer or market partner. Credit risk primarily arises on interbank commercial and consumer
loans, as well as loan commitments related to the above lending activities; however, it may also arise as a
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result of issuing financial guarantees, letters of credit or bills of acceptance. The credit risk management policy
is described in Note 29.

Credit risk assessment on a loan portfolio involves subsequent assessment of probability of default, respective
loss rates, and conditions that correlate with defaults between counterparties. The Group estimates credit risk
using probability of default (PD), exposure at default (EAD) and loss given default (LGD) and taking into
account adjustments based on forward-looking information.

The Group determines the cost of properties obtained as collateral under lending transactions at fair value.
Since, as at 31 December 2021 and 2020, no active market was available for certain buildings and
constructions, the estimated fair value assessed by professional appraisers was used in determining the value
of collateral rather than their direct market value. Accounting estimates related to the property appraisals in
the absence of the active market-based prices are considered to be a key source of uncertainty due to the fact
that: (i) they are highly susceptible to change from period to period and (ii) a potential impact of change in
estimates may be material.

Provisions for guarantees and other commitments

Judgments and estimates related to the provision for guarantees and other commitments is an area of
significant management judgment because the underlying assumptions used for both the individually and
collectively assessed impairment can change from period to period and may significantly affect the Group’s
results of operations.

Valuation of financial instruments

Financial instruments at FVOCI and derivative financial instruments, including embedded derivatives, are
carried at their fair values. If a quoted market price is available for an instrument, the fair value is calculated
based on this market price. When valuation parameters are not observable in the market or cannot be derived
from observable market prices, the fair value is derived through analysis of other observable market data
appropriate for each product and pricing models which use a mathematical methodology based on accepted
financial theories. Pricing models take into account the contractual terms of financial instruments as well as
market-based valuation parameters, such as interest rates, volatility, exchange rates, and credit rating of
a counterparty. Where market-based valuation parameters are not available, management makes a judgment
as to its best estimate of that parameter in order to determine a reasonable reflection of how the market would
be expected to price the instrument. In exercising this judgment, a variety of tools is used, including proxy
observable data, historical data, and extrapolation techniques. The best evidence of the fair value of a financial
instrument at initial recognition is normally the transaction price if the value of the instrument is not supported
by comparing with available market data.

The Group considers that the accounting estimates and assumptions related to valuation of financial
instruments where quoted markets prices are not available is a key source of estimation uncertainty because:
(a) they are highly susceptible to change from period to period because they require management to make
assumptions about interest rates, volatility, exchange rates, the credit rating of the counterparty, valuation
adjustments, and specific feature of the transactions and (b) the impact that recognizing a change in the
valuations would have on the assets reported in consolidated statement of financial position as well as its
income/(expense) could be material.

Had management used different assumptions regarding interest rates, volatility, exchange rates, credit rating
of a counterparty, offer date, and valuation adjustments, a larger or smaller change in the valuation of financial
instruments where quoted market prices are not available would have resulted in a material impact on the
Group’s net profit reported in the consolidated financial statements.

As described in Note 26, the Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that are not based on
observable market data to estimate the fair value of certain types of financial instruments. Note 26 provides
detailed information about the key assumptions used in the determination of the fair value of financial
instruments, as well as the detailed sensitivity analysis for these assumptions. The Group’s management
believes that the chosen valuation techniques and assumptions used are appropriate in determining the fair
value of financial instruments.
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Estimates of derivative financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are calculated based on the
judgments used to determine the inputs for fair value models of such instruments.

Buildings and properties under construction

The Group provides revaluation of properties (buildings) as part of property and equipment with sufficient
regularity so that the carrying amount does not differ significantly from that, which would be determined using
fair value at the end of the reporting period. The frequency of revaluations depends on changes in the fair
value of the revalued items of property and equipment. If the fair value of a revalued asset differs materially
from its carrying amount, a revaluation is performed.

Real estate (buildings) in property, plant and equipment are stated at fair value. The last valuation was
conducted on 1 December 2020 with the involvement of an independent appraiser. The value of real estate
was determined by an independent appraiser using income and comparative approaches.

The Group believes that the accounting estimates and assumptions used in determining the fair value of
buildings and office space are the same source of uncertainty in the estimates and have the same limitations
as the accounting estimates and assumptions described above for the property obtained as collateral for credit
transactions.

Other sources of uncertainty

While the Ukrainian government has introduced a range of stabilization measures aimed at providing liquidity
to Ukraine’s banks and companies, there continues to be uncertainty regarding the access to capital and cost
of capital for the Group and its counterparties, which could negatively affect the Group’s consolidated financial
position, results of operations, and development prospects.

The effects on the Group’s consolidated financial position of any further deterioration in the liquidity of the
financial markets and the increased volatility in the currency and capital markets cannot be reliably estimated.
Management believes it is taking all the necessary measures to support the sustainability and growth of the
Group’s business in the current circumstances.

4. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRS”)

Amendments to the standards, which come into force on 1 January 2021

The Group applied for the first time certain amendments to the standards, which are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021. The Group has not early adopted any standards, interpretations
or amendments that have been issued but are not yet effective.

The following new or amended standards and interpretations had no significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements:

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – Phase 2 Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16
(IBOR reform Phase 2).

The amendments provide temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting effects when an interbank
offered rate (IBOR) is replaced with an alternative nearly risk-free interest rate (RFR). The amendments include
the following practical expedients:

 A practical expedient to require contractual changes, or changes to cash flows that are directly
required by the reform, to be treated as changes to a floating interest rate, equivalent to a movement
in a market rate of interest

 Permit changes required by IBOR reform to be made to hedge designations and hedge documentation
without the hedging relationship being discontinued
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 Provide temporary relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement when
an RFR instrument is designated as a hedge of a risk component.

Influence of IBOR reform on the Group’s activities presented in Note 29.

COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 Amendments to IFRS 16

On 28 May 2020, the IASB issued COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions - amendment to IFRS 16 Leases.
The amendments provide relief to lessees from applying IFRS 16 guidance on lease modification accounting
for rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic. As a practical expedient, a
lessee may elect not to assess whether a COVID-19 related rent concession from a lessor is a lease
modification. A lessee that makes this election accounts for any change in lease payments resulting from the
COVID-19 related rent concession the same way it would account for the change under IFRS 16, if the change
were not a lease modification.

The amendment was intended to apply until 30 June 2021, but as the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic is
continuing, on 31 March 2021, the IASB extended the period of application of the practical expedient to 30
June 2022.

The amendment applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.

However, the Group has not received COVID-19-related rent concessions, but plans to apply the practical
expedient if it becomes applicable within allowed period of application.

New and revised standards that have been published but not yet effective

The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of
issuance of the Group’s consolidated financial statements are disclosed below.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

In May 2017, the IASB issued IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (IFRS 17), a comprehensive new accounting
standard for insurance contracts covering recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once
effective, IFRS 17 will replace IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts (IFRS 4) that was issued in 2005. IFRS 17 applies
to all types of insurance contracts (i.e., life, non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless of the type
of entities that issue them, as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary
participation features. A few scope exceptions will apply. . The overall objective of IFRS 17 is to provide an
accounting model for insurance contracts that is more useful and consistent for insurers. In contrast to the
requirements in IFRS 4, which are largely based on grandfathering previous local accounting policies, IFRS
17 provides a comprehensive model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant accounting aspects. The
core of IFRS 17 is the general model, supplemented by:

 a specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee approach);

 a simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts.

Credit cards and similar products that provide insurance coverage: most issuers of these products will be able
to continue with their existing accounting treatment as a financial instrument under IFRS 9. IFRS 17 excludes
from its scope credit card contracts (and other similar contracts that provide credit or payment arrangements)
that meet the definition of an insurance contract if, and only if, the entity does not reflect an assessment of
the insurance risk associated with an individual customer in setting the price of the contract with that customer.

When the insurance coverage is provided as part of the contractual terms of the credit card, the issuer is
required to:

 Separate the insurance coverage component and apply IFRS 17 to it

 Apply other applicable standards (such as IFRS 9, IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
or IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets) to the other components.
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Loan contracts that meet the definition of insurance but limit the compensation for insured events to
the amount otherwise required to settle the policyholder’s obligation created by the contract: Issuers of such
loans – e.g. a loan with waiver on death – have an option to apply IFRS 9 or IFRS 17. The election would be
made at a portfolio level and would be irrevocable.

IFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with comparative figures
required. Early application is permitted, provided the entity also applies IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 on or before
the date it first applies IFRS 17.

The Group is currently expects the impact of IFRS 17 on these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

In January 2020, the IASB issued amendments to paragraphs 69 to 76 of IAS 1 to specify the requirements
for classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments clarify:

 What is meant by a right to defer settlement

 That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period

 That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right

 That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity instrument would the
terms of a liability not impact its classification.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and must be
applied retrospectively. The Group is currently assessing the impact the amendments will have on current
practice and whether existing loan agreements may require renegotiation

Reference to the Conceptual Framework – Amendments to IFRS 3

In May 2020, the IASB issued Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations - Reference to the Conceptual
Framework. The amendments are intended to replace a reference to the Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements, issued in 1989, with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting issued in March 2018 without significantly changing its requirements.

The Board also added an exception to the recognition principle of IFRS 3 to avoid the issue of potential ‘day
2’ gains or losses arising for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of IAS 37 or
IFRIC 21 Levies, if incurred separately.

At the same time, the Board decided to clarify existing guidance in IFRS 3 for contingent assets that would not
be affected by replacing the reference to the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and apply
prospectively. The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group.

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use – Amendments to IAS 16

In May 2020, the IASB issued Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use, which
prohibits entities deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment, any proceeds from selling
items produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling
such items, and the costs of producing those items, in profit or loss.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and must be
applied retrospectively to items of property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after the
beginning of the earliest period presented when the entity first applies the amendment.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group.
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Onerous Contracts – Costs of Fulfilling a Contract – Amendments to IAS 37

In May 2020, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 37 to specify which costs an entity needs to include when
assessing whether a contract is onerous or loss-making.

The amendments apply a “directly related cost approach”. The costs that relate directly to a contract to provide
goods or services include both incremental costs and an allocation of costs directly related to contract activities.
General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly
chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

The Group will apply these amendments to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments – Fees in the ’10 per cent’ test for derecognition of financial liabilities

As part of its 2018-2020 annual improvements to IFRS standards process the IASB issued amendment to
IFRS 9. The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new
or modified financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the original financial liability. These
fees include only those paid or received between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or received
by either the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities
that are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first
applies the amendment.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 with earlier
adoption permitted.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group.

Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to IAS 8

In February 2021, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 8, in which it introduces a definition of ‘accounting
estimates’. The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies and the correction of errors. Also, they clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that
period. Earlier application is permitted as long as this fact is disclosed.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group.

Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2

In February 2021, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements, in which it provides guidance and examples to help entities apply materiality judgements to
accounting policy disclosures. The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that
are more useful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with
a requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the
concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments to IAS 1 are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 with earlier
application permitted. Since the amendments to the Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on
the application of the definition of material to accounting policy information, an effective date for these
amendments is not necessary.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of the amendments to determine the impact they will have on the
Group’s accounting policy disclosures.



Translation form Ukrainian original

JOINT STOCK COMPANY “STATE SAVINGS BANK OF UKRAINE”

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(in thousands of UAH)

34

5. NET INTEREST INCOME

Net interest income is presented as follows:
For the year ended

31 December
2021

For the year ended
31 December

2020
Interest income comprises:
Interest income, calculated using effective interest method:
Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost
interest on loans to customers 10,384,207 8,704,190
interest on investments 5,962,999 3,469,187
interest on due from banks 7,600 98,476
other interest income 705 4,565
Total interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost 16,355,511 12,276,418

Interest income on financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income

interest on investments 1,454,076 2,823,212
Total interest income, calculated using effective interest method 17,809,587 15,099,630

Interest income on financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss

interest on investments 2,753,647 2,623,138
interest on loans to customers 789,307 744,174
Total interest income 21,352,541 18,466,942

Interest expense comprises:
Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
interest on customer accounts (6,342,504) (8,840,648)
interest on Eurobonds issued (Note 19) (817,962) (1,210,767)
interest on other borrowed funds (Note 20) (158,274) (213,142)
interest on subordinated debt (Note 22) (68,343) (111,025)
interest on liabilities due to National bank of Ukraine (539,399) (29,468)
interest on liabilities due to other banks − (588)
other interest expense − (1)

Total interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost (7,926,482) (10,405,639)

Interest on lease liabilities (62,863) (70,496)
Total interest expense (7,989,345) (10,476,135)

Net interest income 13,363,196 7,990,807
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6. FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME AND EXPENSE

Fee and commission income and expense are presented as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

2021

For the year ended
31 December

2020
Commission income
Payment card transactions 6,172,062 4,687,524
Cash and settlement transactions 3,140,179 2,937,823
Loan servicing to customers 134,625 120,271
Foreign currency transactions 122,407 108,233
Off-balance sheet transactions 58,270 44,768
Transactions with securities 4,223 3,233
Other 170,612 141,942

Total fee and commission income 9,802,378 8,043,794

Fee and commission expense
Payment card transactions (3,410,208) (2,936,140)
Cash and settlement transactions (125,830) (102,928)
Foreign currency transactions (32,929) (27,005)
Dealing with securities (6,171) (5,347)
Off-balance sheet transactions (12,181) (5,822)
Other (10,465) (3,614)

Total fee and commission expense (3,597,784) (3,080,856)

7. NET GAIN/(LOSS) ON TRANSACTIONS WITH FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

Net gain/(loss) on transactions with financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss is presented as
follows:

For the year ended
31 December

2021

For the year ended
31 December

2020

Trading transactions, net
- derivative financial instruments 2,564 (767)
- investments 627 176
Change in fair value:
- loans to customers (861,076) (294,764)
- investments (4,473,107) 6,597,437
Total net gain/(loss) on transactions with financial instruments

at fair value through profit or loss (5,330,992) 6,302,082
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8. OPERATING EXPENSES

Operating expenses are presented as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

2021

For the year ended
31 December

2020

Personnel expenses
Salary and bonuses 4,578,174 4,374,059
Social security costs 1,110,484 1,061,833
Other short-term employee payments 623,447 567,274
Other employee expense 1,067 1,267
Total personnel expenses 6,313,172 6,004,433

Depreciation and amortization:
Depreciation of fixed assets (Note 15) 1,371,016 1,270,226
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 15) 210,828 196,181
Amortization of intangible assets (Note 15) 279,481 208,840
Total depreciation and amortization 1,861,325 1,675,247

Revaluation of investment property − 175,669

Other administrative and operational expenses
Fixed assets maintenance 1,518,654 1,159,542
Communication services 486,743 487,416
Revaluation of fixed assets − 243,973
Utilities 191,307 130,990
Taxes other than income tax 153,221 128,848
Fuel expenses 123,410 106,378
Office maintenance 81,629 101,964
Security 69,985 68,260
Professional services 106,270 91,809
Leases 133,213 134,533
Insurance 35,090 25,226
Advertising costs 31,656 28,696
Business trip expenses 9,546 8,757
Other expenses 481,349 600,838
Total other administrative and operational expenses 3,422,073 3,317,230

Total operating expenses 11,596,570 11,172,579

9. INCOME TAX

The Group assesses income tax by multiplying the tax rate by the object of taxation, which is determined by
adjusting (increasing or decreasing) the pre-tax financial result (profit or loss), determined in the financial
statements of the Bank in accordance with international financial reporting standards, by the differences which
occur in accordance with the current Ukrainian tax legislation. Amount of differences are determined based on
the data of separated tax accounting.

The income tax rate applicable to the majority of the Group’s 2021 income is 18% (2020: 18%).

Deferred taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes.
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The tax effect of the movements in these temporary differences in 2021 is presented below:

1 January
2021

Credited/
(charged)

to profit or loss

Credited
to other

comprehensive
income

31 December
2021

Tax effect of deductible temporary
differences

Other liabilities 114,137 35,889 − 150,026
Other assets 37,685 (792) − 36,893
Debt securities 3,672 144 − 3,816
Tax losses carried forward 4,087,152 (2,039,375) − 2,047,777
Total deferred tax assets 4,242,646 (2,004,134) − 2,238,512

Deferred tax asset not recognised (3,973,618) 1,992,284 − (1,981,334)
Net deferred tax assets 269,028 (11,850) − 257,178

Other assets  (130,137)  −  −  (130,137)
Debt securities (87,575) 716 57,338 (29,521)
Property, equipment and intangible

assets (247,088) 17,123 449 (229,516)
Allowance for expected credit losses

on the loans to customers (38,061) (3,647) − (41,708)
Total deferred tax liabilities (502,861) 14,192 57,787 (430,882)
Net recognised deferred tax liabilities (233,833) 2,342 57,787 (173,704)

The tax effect of the movements in these temporary differences in 2020 is presented below:

1 January
2020

Credited/
(charged)

to profit or loss

Credited
to other

comprehensive
income

31 December
2020

Tax effect of deductible temporary
differences

Allowance for expected credit losses
on the loans to customers (38,205) 38,205 − −

Other liabilities 94,806 19,331 − 114,137
Other assets 41,992 (4,307) − 37,685
Debt securities 3,793 (121) − 3,672
Tax losses carried forward  4,653,491  (566,339)  −  4,087,152
Total deferred tax assets 4,755,877 (513,231) − 4,242,646

Deferred tax asset not recognised (4,516,725) 543,107 − (3,973,618)
Net deferred tax assets 239,152 29,876 − 269,028

Tax effect of taxable temporary
differences

Other assets (130,137) − − (130,137)
Debt securities (126,011) − 38,436 (87,575)
Property, equipment and intangible

assets (352,798) 52,130 53,580 (247,088)
Allowance for expected credit losses

on the loans to customers − (38,061) − (38,061)
Total deferred tax liabilities (608,946) 14,069 92,016 (502,861)

Net recognised deferred tax liabilities (369,794) 43,945 92,016 (233,833)
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The Tax Code of Ukraine, as amended at the time of preparation of the financial statements, does not have
any restrictions on the timing of the transfer of tax losses of previous years to reduce the object of income tax
in subsequent reporting periods.

The deferred income tax assets as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 were measured based on the tax rates
expected to be applied to the periods when the temporary differences are expected to be utilized.

As at 31 December 2021, deferred tax assets in the amount of UAH 1,981,334 (31 December 2020: UAH
3,973,618 thousand) were not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position as the Bank’s
management believes that the probability that these deferred tax assets will be utilized in the future is low.

Reconciliation of income tax expenses and accounting profit based on the consolidated financial statements
is explained as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

2021

For the year ended
31 December

2020

Profit before tax 1,051,879 2,732,438
Statutory tax rate 18% 18%
Tax at the statutory tax rate 189,338 491,839

Effect of non-deductible expenses 7,362 7,223
Effect of the tax rate that differs from 18% (special purpose entity

in another jurisdiction) 3 1
Change in deferred tax assets not recognised (1,992,284) (543,107)
Effect of writing-off bad debt that does not meet the criteria of bad debt  1,784,891  −
Other adjustments 8,352 111

Income tax benefit (2,338) (43,933)

Current income tax expense 4 12
Recovery of deferred income tax (2,342) (43,945)

Income tax benefit (2,338) (43,933)

Movements in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) are presented as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

2021

For the year ended
31 December

2020

At the beginning of the period (233,833) (369,794)
Change in deferred income tax liabilities recognised in profit or loss 2,342 43,945
Tax effect of property revaluation reserve change 449 53,580
Tax effect on revaluation reserve of securities measured at fair value

through other comprehensive income  57,338  38,436

At the end of the period (173,704) (233,833)

10. EARNINGS PER SHARE

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, the earnings per shares are not disclosed
whereas 100% of the shares belong to the state.
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11. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31 December
2021

31 December
2020

Correspondent accounts 6,712,301 11,327,031
Less: allowance for expected credit losses (7,064) (10,607)
Total correspondent accounts 6,705,237 11,316,424
Cash on hand 10,850,522 10,793,959
Balances with the National Bank of Ukraine 1,445,560 4,442,816

Total cash and cash equivalents 19,001,319 26,553,199

Balances with the NBU are funds placed to ensure daily settlements and other transactions.

Movements in expected credit losses for cash and cash equivalents are presented in Note 29.

As at 31 December 2021 corresponding accounts including cash and cash equivalents in the amount of
UAH 1,815,569 thousand (9.55%) were placed in three banks of one banking group (31 December 2020:
UAH 5,473,916 thousand (20.61%) were placed in one bank), which is the evidence of high concentration.

12. LOANS TO CUSTOMERS
31 December

2021
31 December

2020
Loans measured at amortised cost 72,716,125 60,749,810
Loans measured at fair value through profit or loss (Note 26) 2,037,961 2,476,267

Total loans to customers 74,754,086 63,226,077

Loans measured at amortised cost
Loans to legal entities:
Loans to corporate entities 57,561,182 68,565,135

Less: allowance for expected credit losses (9,513,449) (22,463,185)
Total loans to corporate entities 48,047,733 46,101,950

Loans to state and municipal authorities 11,140,533 5,819,542
Less: allowance for expected credit losses (94,709) (89,449)

Total state and municipal authorities 11,045,824 5,730,093

Mortgage loans 2,075 4,535
Less: allowance for expected credit losses − (1,745)

Total mortgage loans 2,075 2,790

Loans to individuals:
Mortgage loans 3,176,327 2,038,005

Less: allowance for expected credit losses (643,740) (827,692)
Total mortgage loans 2,532,587 1,210,313

Other loans 13,467,535 10,343,099
Less: allowance for expected credit losses (2,379,629) (2,638,435)

Total other loans 11,087,906 7,704,664

Total loans measured at amortised cost 72,716,125 60,749,810

Loans measured at fair value through profit or loss
Loans to legal entities

Loans to corporate entities 2,037,961 2,476,267

Total loans measured at fair value through profit or loss 2,037,961 2,476,267

Movements in the allowance for expected credit losses of loans to customers are disclosed in Notes 29.
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The table below represents the structure of the Group’s borrowers by economic sectors:

31 December
2021

31 December
2020

Analysis by sector
Energy 18,884,112 20,518,538
Individuals 16,643,862 12,381,104
Construction and real estate 11,129,869 11,249,544
Oil, gas and chemical production 7,159,735 7,059,939
Municipal authorities 5,557,726 3,108,068
Trade 5,395,506 5,595,614
Agriculture 5,333,641 3,562,085
Road construction and maintenance 5,279,505 2,911,154
Food and beverage manufacturing and processing 5,159,163 14,940,283
Mining and metallurgy 3,803,019 4,488,383
Transport 1,418,403 133,182
Industrial and consumer goods manufacturing 836,515 1,056,046
Services 458,619 459,015
Engineering 141,605 1,573,212
Press and publishing 30,228 26,099
Financial services 10,220 18,364
Media and communications 8,488 96,256
Other 135,397 69,697

87,385,613 89,246,583

Less: allowance for expected credit losses (12,631,527) (26,020,506)

Total loans to customers 74,754,086 63,226,077

The Group repossessed real estate property and other assets as a repayment of non-performing loans. As at
31 December 2021 and 2020, such assets in the amount of UAH 1,079,230 thousand and UAH 1,570,749
thousand, respectively, were included in other assets (Note 16).

Loans to individuals are presented by the following products:

31 December
2021

31 December
2020

Mortgage loans 3,176,327 2,038,005
Other loans:

Payment card loans 5,296,263 4,399,749
Car loans 4,797,608 2,810,990
Consumer loans secured by real estate and guarantees 1,352,753 1,732,384
Other consumer loans 2,020,911 1,399,976

16,643,862 12,381,104

Less: allowance for impairment losses (3,023,369) (3,466,127)

Total loans to individuals 13,620,493 8,914,977

As at 31 December 2021, loans with gross carrying amount of UAH 36,003,473 thousand (41%) (31 December
2020: UAH 40,220,368 thousand (45%)), were granted to ten borrowers, which represents a significant
concentration.
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13. INVESTMENTS

31 December 2021 31 December 2020

At fair value
through profit or

loss

At fair value
through other

comprehensive
income

At amortised
cost

At fair value
through profit or

loss

At fair value
through other

comprehensive
income

At amortised
cost

Ukrainian government debt securities
Short-term Ukrainian government debt securities − − 5,407,543 − − 19,615,494
Medium-term Ukrainian government debt securities − − 52,858,270 − 8,818,004 41,864,394
Long-term Ukrainian government debt securities 42,786,103 2,254,244 5,772,249 46,152,268 2,358,244 5,765,731
Allowance for expected credit losses − − (114,383) − − (151,842)
Total Ukrainian government debt securities 42,786,103 2,254,244 63,923,679 46,152,268 11,176,248 67,093,777

Other:
Corporate debt securities:
Bonds issued by corporate entities − 548,630 41,439 − 625,886 41,945
Bonds issued by State Mortgage Institution − − 830,542 − − 840,116
Allowance for expected credit losses − − (9,662) − − (10,702)
Total corporate debt securities − 548,630 862,319 − 625,886 871,359

Other debt securities:
Debt commitments of the NBU − − 17,503,835 − − 3,000,411
Bonds issued by local government authorities − − 231,552 − 450,269 302,197
Allowance for expected credit losses − − (2,589) − − (1,442)
Total other debt securities − − 17,732,798 − 450,269 3,301,166
Total debt securities 42,786,103 2,802,874 82,518,796 46,152,268 12,252,403 71,266,302

Equity securities:
Corporate shares − 578,266 − − 580,568 −
Total equity securities − 578,266 − − 580,568 −

Total investments 42,786,103 3,381,140 82,518,796 46,152,268 12,832,971 71,266,302

Movements in the allowance for expected credit losses of investments are disclosed in Note 29.
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As at 31 December 2021, in compliance with the terms of the agreement on storage of cash of the National Bank,
Ukrainian state debt securities with carrying amount of UAH 11,926,503 thousand were pledged as collateral,
namely: state bonds at amortized cost with carrying amount of UAH 3,035,906 thousand; state bonds at fair value
through profit or loss with carrying amount of UAH 8,890,597 thousand. As at 31 December 2020, Ukrainian state
debt securities with carrying amount of UAH 12,302,575 thousand were pledged as collateral, namely: state bonds
at amortized cost with carrying amount of UAH 2,714,572 thousand; state bonds at fair value through profit or loss
with carrying amount of UAH 9,588,003 thousand, were pledged under the same agreement.

As at 31 December 2021, state debt securities at fair value through profit or loss with carrying amount of UAH
428,702 thousand (31 December 2020: UAH 459,748 thousand) were used as collateral for loans received from
the German-Ukrainian Foundation (Note 20).

Under the terms of the general loan agreement concluded with the NBU, the Group pledged Ukrainian state debt
securities. As at 31 December 2021, the value of the transferred assets comprised UAH 11,609,640 thousand (31
December 2020: UAH 31,984,806 thousand). In particular, securities measured at amortised cost of UAH
11,609,640 thousand (31 December 2020: UAH 22,982,181 thousand) and securities at fair value through other
comprehensive income of UAH nil (31 December 2020: UAH 9,002,625 thousand) were pledged.

Company shares are investments in equity instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income, which are represented mainly by shares of Visa and Mastercard payment systems. The Group considers
these shares to be a strategic investment and has no plans to trade them. As at 31 December 2021 the fair value
of shares of Visa and Mastercard payment systems amounted to UAH 548,532 thousand (31 December 2020:
UAH 551,179 thousand). During 2021, the Group received UAH 3,324 thousand of dividends (31 December 2020:
UAH 2,546 thousand).

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

As at 31 December 2021, the Group carried assets within investment property in amount of UAH 633,099
thousand (31 December 2020: UAH 633,526 thousand), that were foreclosed on the Group’s balance sheet during
the procedure of financial restructuring of funds due from a borrower under the Law of Ukraine On Financial
Restructuring and was revalued by independent appraiser using the income method. Based on the Restructuring
Plan made up by the Group and the borrower, the assets were transferred for operating lease to the borrower.

31 December
2021

31 December
2020

Balance at 1 January 633,526 809,070
Additions from subsequent expenditure recognised as asset − 125
Disposals (427) −
Gains/(losses) on fair value adjustment − (175,669)
Balance at 31 December 633,099 633,526

As at 31 December 2021, the income from operating lease comprised UAH 24,866 thousand (31 December 2020:
UAH 47,067 thousand).

Undiscounted cash flows for the operation lease agreement are presented below:

31 December
2021

31 December
2020

2021 − 42,974
2022 43,018 49,113
2023 54,024 49,113
2024 106,175 49,113

Total 203,217 190,313
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As at 31 December 2021 changes of undiscounted cash flows for the operation lease agreement occurred in
result of modification of agreement terms.

15. FIXED ASSETS

Fixed assets are presented as follows:

31 December
2021

31 December
2020

Fixed assets
Buildings 2,960,402 3,000,098
Vehicles 227,589 276,474
Office equipment 1,394,851 1,599,309
Computer equipment 1,505,391 1,939,489
Communication and network equipment 405,694 454,163
Construction in progress 4,828 19,142
Incomplete investments 380,978 524,671
Other property and equipment 67,382 100,029

Total fixed assets 6,947,115 7,913,375

Intangible assets
Computer software 1,959,027 1,681,961
Other intangible assets 90,482 130,109

Total intangible assets 2,049,509 1,812,070

The group "Buildings" within fixed assets includes right-of-use assets.
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Movement of fixed assets is presented below:

Buildings Vehicles
Office

equipment
Computer
equipment

Communi-
cation and

network
equipment

Construction
in progress

Incomplete
investments

Other property
and equipment

Total property
and equipment

Gross carrying amount
1 January 2020 4,058,966 905,868 3,433,976 3,306,190 962,530 25,271 533,262 406,944 13,633,007
Additions other than through business

combinations 243 67 338,383 592,546 64,630 80,327 119,350 − 1,195,546
Revaluation increase/(decrease) (741,567) − − − − − − − (741,567)
Increase/(decrease) through transfers 86,456 − 25,447 44,559 4,860 (86,456) (127,905) 53,039 −
Increase/(decrease) through transfers

from construction in progress, incomplete
investments 86,456 − 25,447 44,559 4,860 (86,456) (127,905) 53,039 −

Increase/(decrease) through other
changes 239,151 − − − − − − − 239,151

Disposals and retirements (223) (14,765) (59,197) (24,405) (5,138) − (36) (8,066) (111,830)

31 December 2020 3,643,026 891,170 3,738,609 3,918,890 1,026,882 19,142 524,671 451,917 14,214,307

1 January 2021 3,643,026 891,170 3,738,609 3,918,890 1,026,882 19,142 524,671 451,917 14,214,307
Additions other than through business

combinations − 12,987 174,980 113,681 71,914 1,130 30,971 96 405,759
Increase/(decrease) through transfers 66,713 − 50,308 32,673 20,676 (15,444) (173,616) 18,690 −
Increase/(decrease) through transfers

from construction in progress, incomplete
investments 66,713 − 50,308 32,673 20,676 (15,444) (173,616) 18,690 −

Increase/(decrease) through other
changes 57,100 − − − − − − − 57,100

Disposals and retirements (11,134) (21,116) (68,726) (20,708) (6,899) − (1,048) (16,668) (146,299)

31 December 2021 3,755,705 883,041 3,895,171 4,044,536 1,112,573 4,828 380,978 454,035 14,530,867
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Buildings Vehicles
Office

equipment
Computer
equipment

Communi-
cation and

network
equipment

Construction
in progress

Incomplete
investments

Other property
and equipment

Total property
and equipment

Accumulated depreciation and
amortization

1 January 2020  520,124  566,914  1,782,082  1,482,204  437,297  −  −  290,782  5,079,403
Depreciation  259,322  62,547  413,664  521,511  140,548  −  −  68,814  1,466,406
Revaluation increase/(decrease)  (242,736)  −  −  −  −  −  −  −  (242,736)
Increase/(decrease) through other

changes  106,231  −  −  −  −  −  −  −  106,231
Disposals and retirements  (13)  (14,765)  (56,446)  (24,314)  (5,126)  −  −  (7,708)  (108,372)

31 December 2020  642,928  614,696  2,139,300  1,979,401  572,719  −  −  351,888  6,300,932

1 January 2021  642,928  614,696  2,139,300  1,979,401  572,719  −  −  351,888  6,300,932
Depreciation  320,495  61,872  426,827  580,413  141,042  −  −  51,176  1,581,825
Increase/(decrease) through other

changes  (167,693)  −  −  −  −  −  −  −  (167,693)
Disposals and retirements  (427)  (21,116)  (65,807)  (20,669)  (6,882)  −  −  (16,411)  (131,312)

31 December 2021  795,303  655,452  2,500,320  2,539,145  706,879  −  −  386,653  7,583,752

Net carrying amount

31 December 2020 2,960,402 227,589 1,394,851 1,505,391 405,694 4,828 380,978 67,382 6,947,115

31 December 2021 3,000,098 276,474 1,599,309 1,939,489 454,163 19,142 524,671 100,029 7,913,375
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As at 1 December 2020, the buildings and office premises owned by the Group were revalued to market value
by an independent appraiser. To determine the fair value of buildings and office premises, the appraiser used
a revenue approach – for office and commercial and office premises located in Kyiv and regional centers and
a comparative approach – for real estate outside the regional centers.

As a result of the revaluation, the value of fixed assets of the group “Buildings” decreased by
UAH 498,831 thousand. The decrease in the value of buildings is reflected in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for 2020 as part of operating expenses in the amount of
UAH 243,973 thousand (Note 8) and as part of income tax refund in the amount of UAH 43,917 thousand as
a part of other comprehensive income – UAH 201,274 thousand, excluding deferred tax effect in amount of
UAH 53,580 thousand.

Had the buildings been accounted for at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
their carrying value would be UAH 1,366,073 thousand as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020:
UAH 1,377,878 thousand).

Certain buildings not yet put into operation are included in the construction in progress category. The
carrying amounts of this buildings as at 31 December 2021 were UAH 4,828 thousand (31 December 2020:
UAH 19,142 thousand).

Intangible assets are mainly comprised of the software licenses.

Movements of right-of-use assets are presented as follows:

Buildings
For the year ended

31 December
2021

For the year ended
31 December

2020
Gross carrying amount
1 January 920,783 681,632
Additions and changes in contract terms 57,100 239,151

31 December 977,883 920,783

Accumulated depreciation
1 January 539,231 236,819
Depreciation 210,828 196,181
Changes in contract terms (167,693) 106,231

31 December  582,366  539,231

Net carrying amount

1 January 381,552 681,632

31 December 395,517 381,552

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recognized expenses under short-term leases in the amount
of UAH 9,464 thousand and leases with low value underlying asset in the amount of UAH 37,092 thousand
(31 December 2020: UAH 10,568 thousand and UAH 32,043 thousand, respectively).
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Movements of intangible assets are presented as follows:

Computer
software

Other
intangible

assets

Total
intangible

assets

Gross carrying amount
1 January 2020 1,883,717 191,367 2,074,084
Additions other than through business combinations 513,353 113,082 626,435
Increase (decrease) through transfers 174,255 (174,255) −
Disposals (1,025) (28) (1,053)

31 December 2020  2,570,300 130,166  2,700,466

1 January 2021 2,570,300 130,166 2,700,466
Additions other than through business combinations 94,597 422,343 516,940
Increase (decrease) through transfers 461,950 (461,950) −
Disposals  (491)  − (491)

31 December 2021 3,126,356 90,559 3,216,915

Accumulated amortization
1 January 2020 680,543 47 680,590
Amortization 208,821 19 208,840
Disposals (1,025) (9) (1,034)

31 December 2020 888,339 57 888,396

1 January 2021 888,339 57 888,396
Amortization 279,481 20 279,501
Disposals (491) − (491)

31 December 2021 1,167,329 77 1,167,406

Net carrying amount

31 December 2021 1,959,027 90,482 2,049,509

31 December 2020 1,681,961 130,109 1,812,070
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16. OTHER ASSETS

Other assets comprise:

31 December
2021

31 December
2020

Other financial assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 48,100 4,464,465

Less: allowance for expected credit losses − (4,418,115)
Total restricted cash and cash equivalents 48,100 46,350

Accounts receivable for securities settlements − 1,642,422
Settlements with money transfer systems 292,964 279,162
Accounts receivable for transactions with other financial instruments − 256,088
Income accrued 245,858 223,172
Other receivables 4,253 6,767

Less: allowance for expected credit losses (122,289) (1,977,359)
Total accounts receivable for transactions and other receivables 420,786 430,252

Total other financial assets 468,886 476,602

Other non-financial assets
Collateral repossessed by the Group 1,079,230 1,570,749
Prepayments:

Deferred expenses 429,052 468,887
Prepayments for purchase of assets 287,963 150,606
Prepaid services 99,394 76,794
Prepaid precious metals 3,625 −
Less: allowance for expected credit losses (77,447) (70,811)

Total prepayments 742,587 625,476

Precious metals 30,100 57,434
Inventories 152,925 192,966
Miscellaneous assets:
Receivables from employees and third parties 73,784 84,832
Obligatory payments 9,009 11,184
Other 5 14

Less: allowance for expected credit losses (73,712) (84,743)
Total miscellaneous assets 9,086 11,287

Receivables on taxes other than income tax
Receivables on value added tax (VAT) 278 3
Receivables on other taxes − 355

Total receivables on taxes other than income tax 278 358

Total other non-financial assets 2,014,206 2,458,270

Movements in allowance for other assets are disclosed in Notes 29.

Restricted cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2020 in amount of UAH 4,418,115 thousand were
represented by the balances on correspondent accounts in domestic and foreign currencies for which of the
allowance for expected credit losses was formed in value 100%. During 2021, according to implement the
strategy of problem debt management the restricted cash and cash equivalents were written off against
allowance in amount of 4,267,670 thousand in UAH equivalent on date of write-off.

Accounts receivable for securities settlements as at 31 December 2020 were represented by the principal
outstanding at the time of repayment, the interest accrued on corporate bonds. After transferring the bonds
and not receiving any payments, respective amounts due were recognised as accounts receivable for
securities and reclassified from investments to other assets. Allowance for accounts receivable for securities
settlements as at 31 December 2020 was recognized for the amount of respective gross carrying amount.
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During 2021, according to implement the strategy of problem debt management, the accounts receivable for
securities settlements in amount of UAH 1,642,422 thousand were written off from allowance for expected
credit losses.

Accounts receivable for transactions with other financial instruments as at 31 December 2020 were included
impaired receivables under letters of credit issued in foreign currency for which of the allowance for expected
credit losses was formed in value 100%. During 2021, according to implement the strategy of problem debt
management, the accounts receivable for transactions with other financial instruments in amount of UAH
244,303 thousand were written off from allowance for expected credit losses.

Precious metals are represented by gold and silver in vault.

17. DUE TO BANKS

Due to banks comprises:

31 December
2021

31 December
2020

Loans received from the National Bank of Ukraine 7,248,487 5,499,287
Correspondent accounts of other banks 359,046 324,695
Liabilities due to other banks 750 −

Total due to banks 7,608,283 5,823,982

Loans received from the National Bank of Ukraine were obtained under a general loan agreement secured by
government securities (Note 13).

18. CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS

Customer accounts comprise:
31 December

2021
31 December

2020

Term deposits:
Balances on term deposits from customers 75,333,748 99,431,692
Balances on other deposits from customers 2,246,985 2,332,576

Demand accounts:
Balances on current accounts from customers 113,665,633 82,519,867
Balances on demand deposits from customers 206,273 1,881,317

Total customer accounts 191,452,639 186,165,452

Balances on other deposits from customers included deposits from customers for which the agreements have
expired and for which customers did not withdraw funds for three or more years.

As at 31 December 2021, total balances on accounts of top ten customers amounted to
UAH 23,140,917 thousand which represented 12% of total customer balances (31 December 2020:
UAH 15,997,748 thousand, which represented 9%). As at 31 December 2021, total balance on accounts of
one largest customer comprised 4% of total balances on customers’ accounts (31 December 2020: 4%).
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The table below represents customer accounts’ structure by industry sectors:

31 December
2021

31 December
2020

Analysis by sector of economy:
Individuals 123,543,068 125,359,459
Energy 17,507,610 9,258,827
Oil, gas and chemical production 8,015,114 6,765,739
Trade 7,546,691 7,221,800
Agriculture 7,484,151 7,625,900
Services 4,378,885 4,107,834
Construction and real estate 4,215,148 3,444,363
Media and communications 3,368,299 3,070,056
Transport 2,981,456 4,873,077
Financial services 2,458,217 3,862,736
Engineering 1,623,620 1,579,524
Industrial and consumer goods manufacturing 1,132,999 1,273,724
State authorities and local governments 1,261,491 1,363,447
Mining and metallurgy 583,837 560,623
Food and beverage manufacturing and processing 362,429 849,502
Press and publishing 85,311 109,445
Other 4,904,313 4,839,396

Total customer accounts 191,452,639 186,165,452

As at 31 December 2021, included in customer accounts are deposits in the amount of UAH 554,160 thousand
(31 December 2020: UAH 54,190 thousand), that are held as a collateral for financial guarantees issued and
other commitments (Note 24).

In 2021, the Group ceased recognizing liabilities on the customer accounts of the Crimean Republican
Administration in the amount of UAH 22,219 thousand, which was terminated in 2014 due to the annexation
of Crimea because of the lack of data to identify customers. At the same time, the Bank recognized provisions
for cover possible payments on these liabilities in full. The provision is designed to cover payments on liabilities
to the customer accounts of the Crimean Republican Administration in case of receipt of all information to
identify the client, as required by current legislation of Ukraine (Note 21).

19. EUROBONDS ISSUED

Eurobonds issued are presented as follows:

31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Currency Maturity

Coupon
rate p.a.,

%
Carrying

 value Maturity

Coupon
rate p.a.,

%
Carrying

value

SSB NO.1 Plc USD
March 2022–
March 2023 9.375 2,964,780

March 2021–
March 2023 9.375 5,142,605

SSB NO.1 Plc USD
March 2022–
March 2025 9.625 4,943,316

March 2021–
March 2025 9.625 6,602,011

Total other borrowed funds 7,908,096 11,744,616
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Changes within the Eurobonds issued are presented as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

2021

For the year ended
31 December

2020

Balance as at 1 January 11,744,616 18,303,877
Repayment on Eurobonds (3,265,654) (9,309,597)
Effect of changes in the foreign exchange rates (424,516) 3,088,405
Interest expense (Note 5) 817,962 1,210,767
Interest paid (964,312) (1,548,836)

Balance as at 31 December 7,908,096 11,744,616

On 5 March and 8 September 2021, the Bank repaid of part of the loan received from SSB NO.1 Plc in March
and July 2011 in the amount of USD 35,000 thousand (a total of UAH 1,907,084 thousand as of the maturity
date). On 18 March and 16 September 2021, the Bank repaid of part of the loan received from SSB NO.1 Plc
in March 2013 in the amount of USD 25,000 thousand (a total of UAH 1,358,570 thousand as of the maturity
date). The repayments amounts were on time, in accordance with the terms of the loan agreements. Along
with the planned repayments of parts of the principal amount of loans, the Bank also paid interest on loans.

On 5 March and 8 September 2020, the Bank repaid of part of the loan received from SSB NO.1 Plc in March
and July 2011 in the amount of SD 35,000 thousand (a total of UAH 1,842,460 thousand as of the maturity
date)1. On March 18 and September 17, 2020, the Bank repaid of part of the loan received from SSB NO.1
Plc in March 2013 in the amount of USD 250,000 and USD 25,000 thousand (a total of UAH 7,467,137
thousand as of the maturity date). The repayments amounts were on time, in accordance with the terms of the
loan agreements. Along with the planned repayments of parts of the principal amount of loans, the Bank also
paid interest on loans.

The Bank is obliged to comply with certain covenants specified in the loan agreement with SSB No.1 Plc in
relation to the Eurobonds issued. Other liabilities include: requirement to submit financial statements according
to the schedule stated below, restriction to declare or pay dividends or make other distributions if this may lead
to delays in repayment of the Eurobonds or if such distributions, in aggregate, exceed 30% of net profits of the
Bank for the relevant period (calculated in accordance with the laws of Ukraine), certain limitations on
transactions with related parties, etc.

In accordance with the terms of the loan agreements, the Bank is required to submit the following financial
statements:

 Audited annual financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS within 180 days from the
reporting date;

 Unaudited interim IFRS financial statements for the six months ending 30 June within 120 days from the
reporting date.

SSB No. 1 Plc has the right to require the Bank to comply with these obligations in accordance with the terms
of the agreements.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020 there were no breaches of the covenants.
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20. OTHER BORROWED FUNDS

31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Currency Maturity

Coupon
rate p.a.,

%
Carrying

value Maturity

Coupon
rate p.a.,

%
Carrying

value

Loans from the European
Investment Bank USD

February 2022
− February

2022 5.87 249,116

February 2021
− February

2022 5.87 772,912

Loans from the European Investment
Bank EUR

June 2022 −
December

2024 4.26 875,573

June 2021 −
December

2024 4.26 1,311,600

Loans from the European Investment
Bank EUR

March 2022 −
September

2024 4.43 887,112

March 2021 −
September

2024 4.43 1,328,870
Loans from the European Investment

Bank EUR
January 2022−

July 2025 3.91 693,502
January 2022−

July 2025 3.91 779,169
Loan from Entrepreneurship

Development Fund EUR
January

2022
2.80

62,269
April 2021−

January 2022 2.80 209,748
Loan from Entrepreneurship

Development Fund UAH March 2022 6.89 50,740  March 2022 8.22 50,350

Total other borrowed funds 2,818,312 4,452,649

Changes in other borrowed funds are presented as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

2021

For the year ended
31 December

2020

Balance at 1 January 4,452,649 4,430,083

Repayment of other borrowed funds (1,221,165) (1,098,849)
Effect of changes in the foreign exchange rates (399,243) 1,126,961
Interest expense (Note 5) 158,274 213,142
Interest paid (172,203) (218,688)

Balance as at 31 December 2,818,312 4,452,649

Under the loan agreement with the European Investment Bank (“EIB”) the Bank is obliged to comply with a
range of information requirements and financial covenants, which include maintaining certain coefficients
(ratios) at determined levels.

As at 31 December 2021, debt securities measured at fair value through profit or loss with carrying amount of
UAH 428,702 thousand (Note 13), were used as a collateral to secure the loans received from the
Entrepreneurship Development Fund (formerly – German-Ukrainian Fund) (2020: debt securities measured at
amortized cost with carrying amount of UAH 459,748 thousand).

In accordance with the terms of the loan agreement with the Entrepreneurship Development Fund, the Bank
should comply, inter alia, with certain covenants and is required to submit financial statements.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020 there were no breaches of the covenants.
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21. OTHER LIABILITIES

Other liabilities include:

31 December
2021

31 December
2020

Provisions
Provisions for expected credit losses for guarantees and other credit

commitments:
Provisions for credit commitments 323,598 266,169
Provisions for financial guarantee contracts 483,290 367,925

 Total provisions for expected credit losses for guarantees and other
credit commitments 806,888 634,094

Other provisions:
Provisions for liabilities to customers 22,219 −

Total other provisions 22,219 −

Total provisions 829,107 634,094

Other financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 428,638 414,899
Other accounts payable:
Accrued expenses for cash operations 39,405 39,265
Accounts payable for other operations 17,297 11,936

Total other accounts payable 56,702 51,201

Accrued expenses 49,159 46,506

Total other financial liabilities 534,499 512,606

Other non-financial liabilities

Taxes payable other than income tax:
Value added tax payables 16,317 11,879
Accounts payable for other taxes and mandatory payments 77,631 96,416

Total taxes payable other than income tax 93,948 108,295
Advances received 72,860 53,609
Accounts payable for payments to banks employees:
Provisions for unused vacations 543,413 489,717

 Accrued bonuses and salaries 86,446 75,933
Other accounts payable for payments to banks employees 285 2,260

 Total accounts payable for payments to banks employees and
advances receives 630,144 567,910
Other 83,345 72,484

Total other non-financial liabilities 880,297 802,298

Total other liabilities 2,243,903 1,948,998

Movements in allowance for expected credit losses for guarantees and other commitments are disclosed in
Notes 29.

Provisions for liabilities to customers were formed to cover payments on liabilities to the customer accounts of
the Crimean Republican Administration in the event of receipt of all information to identify the customer, as
required by current legislation of Ukraine (Note 18).
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Movement in lease liabilities is presented as follows:
For the year ended

31 December
2021

For the year ended
31 December

2020

Balance at 1 January 414,899 465,211
Liabilities recognized 210,339 119,452
Liabilities repayments (197,119) (171,251)
Interest accrual (Note 5) 62,863 70,496
Interest paid (62,344) (69,009)

Balance as at 31 December 428,638 414,899

22. SUBORDINATED DEBT

Subordinated debt is presented as follows:

Currency
Maturity

of the principal
Interest rate,

%
31 December

2021
Interest rate,

%
31 December

2020

USD 19 January 2024 7.03 878,960 7.22 1,276,240

Total subordinated debt 878,960 1,276,240

Changes in subordinated debt are presented as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

2021

For the year ended
31 December

2020

Balance at 1 January 1,276,240 2,462,640
Repayment of subordinated debt (345,470) (1,368,599)
Effect of changes in the foreign exchange rates (39,526) 239,123
Interest expense (Note 5) 68,343 111,025
Interest paid (80,627) (167,949)

Balance as at 31 December 878,960 1,276,240

On 14 January and 15 July 2021, the Group repaid part of the subordinated debt in the amount of
USD 6,250 thousand, which amounted to equivalent of UAH 345,470 thousand at the maturity date. Along with
the scheduled repayments of the principal, the Group also repaid accrued interest.

On 16 January and 16 July 2020, the Group repaid part of the subordinated debt in the amount of
USD 50,000 thousand and USD 6,250 thousand, which amounted to equivalent of UAH 1,368,599 thousand
at the maturity date. Along with the scheduled repayments of the principal, the Group also repaid accrued
interest.

In the event of bankruptcy or liquidation of the Bank, repayment of this debt is subordinated to the repayments
of the Bank’s liabilities to all other creditors.

In accordance with the terms of the loan agreement, the Group should comply, inter alia, with the following
covenants and is required to submit:

 Audited annual financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS within 180 days from the
reporting date;

 Unaudited interim IFRS financial statements for the six months ending 30 June within 120 days from the
reporting date.
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SSB No.1 Plc has the right to enforce obligations of the Bank regarding compliance with the covenants.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020 there were no breaches of the covenants.

23. SHARE CAPITAL

Share capital is presented as follows:

Number
of shares

Nominal value,
UAH thousand

Adjusted amount,
UAH thousand

31 December 2019 42,649 49,472,840 49,724,980
31 December 2020 42,649 49,472,840 49,724,980
31 December 2021 42,649 49,472,840 49,724,980

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the nominal value of each share amounted to UAH 1,160,000. All shares
rank equally and carry one vote.

These consolidated financial statements reflect the amount of paid share capital carried at cost, which was
adjusted for the effect of hyperinflation in the amount of UAH 252,140 thousand that existed before
31 December 2000.

In 2020, based on the financial result of 2019, the Group paid out a portion of profit in the amount of
UAH 76,548 thousand to the general purpose fund of the Budget of Ukraine in accordance with the resolution
of the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine dated 24 April 2020 #328 On Approval of the Basic Standard for
Deducting the Share of Profits, Aimed at Paying Dividends on the Results of Financial and Economic Activities
in 2019 of Companies whose Statutory Capital Includes Corporate Rights of the State.

In 2021, based on the financial result of 2020, the Group paid out a portion of profit in the amount of
UAH 832,897 thousand to the general purpose fund of the Budget of Ukraine in accordance with the resolution
of the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine dated 28 April 2021 #415 On Approval of the Basic Standard for
Deducting the Share of Profits, Aimed at Paying Dividends on the Results of Financial and Economic Activities
in 2020 of Companies whose Statutory Capital Includes Corporate Rights of the State.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Bank’s share capital was established and paid in by cash, by
Ukrainian government debt securities and using the profit to increase share capital, in amount of
UAH 49,724,980 thousand, taking into account effect of hyperinflation as required by IAS 29 Financial
Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies.

The cash contributed to the Bank share capital are used for the activities envisaged by the Bank Charter.

24. CONTINGENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

In the normal course of business, the Group is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in
order to meet the needs of its customers. These instruments, involving varying degrees of credit risk, are not
reflected in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk under contingent liabilities and contractual commitments to
extend credit, in the event of non-performance by the other party where all counterclaims, collateral, or security
prove being impaired, is represented by the contractual amounts of those instruments.

The Group uses the same credit control and management policies in undertaking off-balance sheet
commitments as it does for operations recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the nominal or contractual amounts of contingent liabilities and credit
commitments were as follows:

31 December
2021

31 December
2020

Contingent financial liabilities and credit commitments
Irrevocable commitments on loans and unused credit lines 18,317,761 14,199,955
Financial guarantees issued and similar commitments 1,206,390 739,221
Letters of credit and other contingencies 1,033,730 1,071,489

Total contingent financial liabilities and credit commitments 20,557,881 16,010,665

As at 31 December 2021, non-financial guarantees amounted to UAH 294,315 thousand (31 December 2020:
UAH 7,291 thousand).

As at 31 December 2021, provisions for contingent financial liabilities and credit commitments, including
financial guarantees and other liabilities amounted to UAH 806,888 thousand (31 December 2020:
UAH 634,094 thousand); provisions for non-financial guarantees amounted to UAH two thousand
(31 December 2020: UAH nil) (Notes 21, 29).

As at 31 December 2021, guarantees issued and other liabilities were provided by cash deposits in the amount
of UAH 554,160 thousand (31 December 2020: UAH 54,190 thousand) (Note 18).

Increase of loans to customers within loans and credit line limits is approved by the Group on a case-by-case
basis and depends on the borrowers’ financial performance, debt service quality, and other conditions.
As at 31 December 2021, the total amount of such revocable commitments amounted to
UAH 10,849,678 thousand (31 December 2020: UAH 11,983,230 thousand).

The total amount of debt for unused credit lines, letters of credit and guarantees under the agreements do not
necessarily represent future cash claim, since the expiration or cancellation of those commitments without
providing funds to the borrower could be possible.

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had commitments to purchase intangible assets for the amount of
UAH 218,942 thousand (31 December 2020: UAH 137,580 thousand).

Litigations

From time to time and in the normal course of business, claims against the Group are received from customers
and counterparties. Management believes that no material losses will be incurred and, accordingly, no
provision has been made in these consolidated financial statements.

Taxation

Due to presence in the Ukrainian legislation, in particular, tax legislation, of provisions allowing more than one
interpretation, and also due to the practice developed in a generally unstable environment by the tax authorities
of making arbitrary judgment of business activities, Ukrainian tax authorities may take a stricter position in their
interpretation of the law during the tax audits. Combined with possible efforts to increase collection of taxes to
meet state budget requirements this could increase the level and frequency of inspections by the tax
authorities. In particular, it is possible that transactions and activities that were not challenged in the past, may
be challenged. As a result, significant additional taxes, penalties and fines may be assessed. Such uncertainty
may relate to the valuation of financial instruments, allowances for expected credit losses, operations with
non-residents and the market level for pricing of deals.

In respect of certain areas, the Ukrainian tax legislation does not contain clear guidance. From time to time,
the Group uses the interpretation of such uncertain areas, based on the provisions of current Ukrainian
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legislation, intergovernmental legislative acts on avoidance of double taxation, which results in application by
the Group (the tax agent) of the tax rates which are based on intergovernmental agreements. As noted above,
such tax positions may be subject to detailed inspection. The impact of any claims by the tax authorities cannot
be reliably estimated; however, it may be material to the financial position and/or general operations of the
Group.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has neither overdue liabilities in paying taxes (presence/absence of tax
liability) nor unpaid fines for violating the laws in the financial services area, including those dealing with the
securities market. The Group believes that it has already made all tax payments, and, therefore, no allowance
has been made in the consolidated financial statements. Tax records remain open to review by the tax
authorities for three years.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no contingent assets and/or liabilities with a high probability of their
recognition in the balance sheet, except for those reported in the financial statements as at 31 December 2021
and for the year then ended.
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25. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties of the Bank, as defined by IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures, represent:

а)  A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the reporting entity if that person:

i)  has control or joint control over the reporting entity;

іі)  has significant influence over the reporting entity; or

ііі)  is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the
reporting entity.

b) An entity is related to the reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:

i)  the entity and the reporting entity are members of the same bank (which means that each parent,
subsidiary, and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

іі)  one entity is an associate or a joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or a joint venture
of a member of a bank of which the other entity is a member);

ііі)  both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the reporting
entity or an entity related to the reporting entity. If the reporting entity is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related to the reporting entity;

vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in а);

vii)  a person identified in a) i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Transactions and balances with related parties comprise transactions with government, government-related
entities (both directly and indirectly), key management personnel of the Group, and entities, if any, that are
controlled, jointly controlled, or significantly influenced by them.

Government-related entities are entities that are controlled, jointly controlled, or significantly influenced by the
government bodies.

Government refers to the Government of Ukraine, government agencies, and similar bodies, whether local,
national or international.

In considering each possible related party relationship, one should pay analyze substance of the relationship
and not merely the legal form.

Related party transactions and balances which are transactions with the government as well as entities related
to public authorities (directly or indirectly) are disclosed as other related party transactions.
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The Group’s balances with its related parties as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are presented in the table below.

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
Key

management
personnel of

entity
Other related

parties

Transactions
with related

parties
Total

in category

Key
management
personnel of

entity
Other related

parties

Transactions
with related

parties
Total

in category
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents − 1,643,983 1,643,983 19,001,319 − 4,513,976 4,513,976 26,553,199
Loans to customers 4,187 23,950,951 23,955,138 74,754,086 7,046 16,478,006 16,485,052 63,226,077
Investments − 127,865,514 127,865,514 128,686,039 − 128,905,873 128,905,873 130,251,541
Other financial assets − 100 100 468,886 − 100 100 476,602

Liabilities
Due to banks − 7,396,047 7,396,047 7,608,283 − 5,696,257 5,696,257 5,823,982
Customer accounts 58,267 28,407,921 28,466,188 191,452,639 68,988 20,073,226 20,142,214 186,165,452
Other borrowed funds − 113,009 113,009 2,818,312 − 260,098 260,098 4,452,649
Other non-financial liabilities 12,068 − 12,068 880 297 12,841 − 12,841 802 298
Contingent liabilities and credit

commitments, including allowance
for expected credit losses 1,879 3,747,448 3,749,327 31,701,876 1,936 5,996,372 5,998,308 28,001,186
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Included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 were the following amounts
which arose due to transactions with related parties:

For the year, ended 31 December 2021 For the year, ended 31 December 2020
Key

management
personnel of

entity
Other related

parties

Transactions
with related

parties
Total

in category

Key
management
personnel of

entity
Other related

parties

Transactions
with related

parties
Total

in category
Interest income 902 12,627,371 12,628,273 21,352,541 880 11,327,069 11,327,949 18,466,942
Interest expense (1,557) (1,490,296) (1 491 853) (7,989,345) (2,782) (1,017,687) (1,020,469) (10,476,135)
Fee and commission income 111 405,903 406,014 9,802,378 109 374,044 374,153 8,043,794
Fee and commission expense − (55,920) (55,920) (3,597,784) − (31,488) (31,488) (3,080,856)
Net (loss)/gain on transactions with

financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss − (4,472,480) (4,472,480) (5,330,992) − 6,597,613 6,597,613 6,302,082

Net profit from transactions with debt
financial instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive
income − (1,425) (1,425) 2,351 − 492 492 2,363

(Accrual)/reversal of allowance for
expected credit losses on interest
bearing assets − 305,274 305,274 (1,838,786) − (72,557) (72,557) (1,559,903)

Net gain/(loss) on modifications of
financial assets − (38,198) (38,198) (748,303) − (388,203) (388,203) (1,153,822)

Other income/(expense) − 7,006 7,006 348,072 − 5,172 5,172 291,300
Personnel expenses (167,609) − (167,609) (6,313,172) (125,858) − (125,858) (6,004,433)
Other administrative and operational

expenses − (118,132) (118,132) (3,422,073) − (118,108) (118,108) (3,317,230)
Key management personnel

remuneration: (168,382) − (168,382) (6,313,172) (127,613) − (127,613) (6,004,433)
- short-term employee benefits (158,273) − (158,273) (119,368) − (119,368)
- social charges (10,109) − (10,109) (8,245) − (8,245)
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26. FAIR VALUE

IFRS defines fair value as the price that would be received from an asset sale or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The estimated fair values have been determined by the Group using available market information, where it exists,
and appropriate valuation methodologies. However, judgement is necessarily required to interpret market data to
determine the estimated fair value. Management has used all available market information in estimating the fair
value. The estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the Group could realize in a
market exchange from the sale of its full holdings of a particular instrument or pay in the transfer of liabilities.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring
basis and fair value of buildings

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities, as well as the Group’s buildings, are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets and financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used):

Assets/liabilities
Fair value
hierarchy Valuation techniques and key inputs

Investments 1 Quoted bid prices (unadjusted) in an active market (available to the Group on
assessment date) for identical investments. Fair value is assessed using market
approach.

2 Discounted cash flows.
Future cash flows are estimated based on the inputs that are observable, either
directly or indirectly, and the estimates use one or more observable prices for orderly
transactions in the markets that are not considered active.

3 Discounted cash flows.
Future cash flows are estimated based on both observable and unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs include assumptions regarding future financial
performance of the issuer and its risk profile.
The fair value is calculated using the adjusted option pricing model for European
currency options (Garman-Kohlhagen’s form of the Black-Scholes’s formula). The
following input data are used in the calculations:
 strike rate of US dollar against UAH. Defined as the average US dollar exchange

rate against UAH on the interbank market for the month preceding the date of
issue of the relevant series of bonds with indexed value (according to the
indexation mechanism provided for in the terms of issue). For the Ukrainian
government bonds with indexed value received by the Group as contribution to
the share capital, strike rate was in the range UAH 14.81-27.23 per US dollar for
a package of bonds depending on the date of issue of relevant series of UDGB;

 forward US dollar exchange rate against UAH. Determined based on the risk-
free rate of return in the US dollars (according to the yield to maturity of the
United States government securities) as well as the national currency
(according to zero-coupon yield curve published by the National Bank of
Ukraine). As at 31 December 2021, the estimated value of the forward US dollar
in UAH, which is adopted for calculating the fair value of the embedded option,
ranged from 32.43 UAH/USD for 1.56 year time horizon to 63.40 UAH/USD for
10.14 year time horizon (31 December 2020: from 37.48 UAH/USD for
2.56 year time horizon to 72.26 UAH/USD for 11.14 year time horizon);

 volatility of the US dollar against UAH. Defined as the annual volatility of
interbank US dollar against UAH. As at 31 December 2021, the volatility of the
US dollar against the hryvnia was 16.06% (31 December 2020: 17.24%);

 discount rate. The discount rate is determined according zero-coupon yield
curve published by the National Bank of Ukraine. As at 31 December 2021, the
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Assets/liabilities
Fair value
hierarchy Valuation techniques and key inputs

discount rate ranged from 12.13% per annum for the term of 3.53 years to
9.82% per annum for the period of 10.14 years (31 December 2020: from
11.14% per annum for the term of 2.56 years to 9.41% per annum for the period
of 11.14 years).

Loans measured at fair
value through profit or
loss

3 Discounted cash flows.

Future cash flows are estimated based on expected cash flows attributable to the
repayment of loans and are risk-adjusted considering the Group’s analytical
evaluations of respective amounts and maturities and taking into account the
probabilities of their origination. Cash flows are discounted applying risk-free
interest rates adjusted for systemic risk in respective currencies determined
according zero-coupon yield curve published by the National Bank of Ukraine.

Real estate: capital
investments on
construction in
progress

3 The Group engages professional independent appraisers to determine the fair
values of its constructions in progress.

To assess the fair value of constructions in progress, a combination of market,
income and cost approaches is used, considering time from the beginning of
construction, degree of readiness of construction and prospect of completion of the
valuation objects.

Prospective low-readiness projects that have been purchased or recently started
can be evaluated using a cost approach. The cost approach shows an estimate of
the cost of replacing or replacing an object minus all types of wear (physical,
functional, economic).

Real estate: buildings
Investment property

3 The Group engages professional independent appraisers to determine the fair
values of its buildings and office premises and investment property by using sales
comparison approach, and for items for which there are no market analogues,
income capitalization approach is used. In the sales comparison approach,
the prices of market-based sales of comparable properties in the immediate
proximity are adjusted with reference to differences in main parameters (such as
property space). The main parameter used in this valuation technique is the price
per square meter of a property.

The following table summarizes financial instruments and real estate carried at fair value using a fair value
hierarchy. The levels reflect the ability of direct determination of the fair value based on the market data:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

31 December
2021
Total

Assets
Investments at fair value through profit

or loss:
Ukrainian government debt securities − − 42,786,103 42,786,103
Investments at fair value through other

comprehensive income:
Ukrainian government debt securities − 2,254,244 − 2,254,244
Other debt securities − − 548,630 548,630
Equity securities 548,532 − 29,734 578,266
Loans measured at fair value through profit

or loss
Loans measured at fair value through profit
or loss − − 2,037,961 2,037,961
Real estate:
construction in progress − − 7,199 7,199
buildings − − 2,564,885 2,564,885
Investment property − − 633,099 633,099

Total 548,532 2,254,244 48,607,611 51,410,387
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

31 December
2020
Total

Assets
Investments at fair value through profit
 or loss:
Ukrainian government debt securities − − 46,152,268 46,152,268
Investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income:

Ukrainian government debt securities − 11,176,248 − 11,176,248
Other debt securities − − 1,076,155 1,076,155
Equity securities 551,179 − 29,389 580,568
Loans measured at fair value through profit
or loss

Loans measured at fair value through profit
or loss − − 2,476,267 2,476,267
Real estate:
construction in progress − − 19,142 19,142
buildings − − 2,618,546 2,618,546
Investment property − − 633,526 633,526
Total 551,179 11,176,248 53,005,293 64,732,720

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group did not carry out transfers between Level 1 and
Level 2 hierarchies of fair value. The Group policy determines that the transfers between the levels of the fair
value hierarchy is considered to be made at the reporting date.

The following tables present movements in fair values of Level 3 for financial instruments measured at fair value:

Investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Debt
securities

Debt
securities

1 January 2021 1,076,155 1 January 2020 1,148,533
Total income and expense: Total income and expense:
In profit or loss: 143,904 In profit or loss: 138,157
interest income 139,640 interest income 201,865
trading result (1,425) trading result 492
 (accrual)/release of allowance for expected

credit losses 4,851
(accrual)/release of allowance for expected

credit losses 4,832
modification gain/(loss) 838 modification gain/(loss) (69,032)

In other comprehensive income: (46,227) In other comprehensive income: 32,035
 net change in fair value of investments at

FVOCI (50,718)
net change in fair value of investments at

FVOCI 30,165
reclassification of investment revaluation 4,491 reclassification of investment revaluation 1,870

Coupon income collected (120,846) Coupon income collected (207,898)
Sale (504,356) Sale (34,672)

31 December 2021 548,630 31 December 2020 1,076,155
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Investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Equity
securities

Equity
securities

1 January 2021 29,389 1 January 2020 22,404
Total income and expense: Total income and expense:
In profit or loss: 1,965 In profit or loss: 1,198
dividends 1,965 dividends 1,198

In other comprehensive income: 345 In other comprehensive income: 6,985
 net change in fair value of investments at

FVOCI 345
net change in fair value of investments at
FVOCI 6,985

Dividend collection (1,965) Dividend collection (1,198)

31 December 2021 29,734 31 December 2020 29,389

Investments measured at fair value through profit or loss

Debt
securities

Debt
securities

1 January 2021 46,152,268 1 January 2020 38,578,398
Total income and expense: Total income and expense:
In profit or loss: (1,718,833) In profit or loss: 9,220,575
interest income 2,753,647 interest income 2,623,138
net change in fair value (4,473,107) net change in fair value 6,597,261
trading result 627 trading result 176

Coupon income collected (1,646,705) Coupon income collected (1,646,705)
Purchase 956,138 Purchase −
Repayment (956,765) Repayment −

31 December 2021 42,786,103  31 December 2020 46,152,268

Loans measured at fair value through profit or loss

Loans measured
at fair value

through profit
or loss

Loans measured
at fair value

through profit
or loss

1 January 2021 2,476,267 1 January 2020 2,849,932
Total income and expense:   Total income and expense:
In profit or loss: (71,768) In profit or loss: 449,410
interest income 789,308 interest income 744,174

net change in fair value (861,076) net change in fair value (294,764)

Interest income collected (145,933) Interest income collected (148,518)
Repayment (220,605) Repayment (339,187)
Reclassification − Reclassification (335,370)

31 December 2021 2,037,961 31 December 2020 2,476,267

Sensitivity analysis of fair value of Level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value

Sensitivity of the fair value measurement for Level 3 financial instruments to reasonably possible changes in
inputs used is presented below:

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Fair value of investments measured at fair value through profit or loss (domestic government debt securities
with indexed value denominated in hryvnias) consists of the fair value of the principal contract and the fair
value of the embedded option. The table below provides information on the sensitivity of the fair value
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measurement of investments, measured at fair value through profit or loss, taking into account the sensitivity
to market indicators (indicators), the change of which affects the fair value of the financial instruments (the
forward exchange rate of the US dollar to the hryvnia, the volatility of the dollar USD to hryvnia and discount
rates):

Government securities

Change in fair value of embedded derivative
Change of index 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Forward USD/UAH exchange rate +1% -1% 365,979 (365,448) 389,024 (388,735)
Volatility of USD/UAH exchange rate +1 p.p. -1 p.p. 30,361 (25,843) 30,403 (25,620)
Discount rate +1 p.p. -1 p.p. (1,490,143) 1,576,001 (2,001,558) 2,130,014

The fair value of the embedded option is most sensitive to the changes in discount rates by 1 p.p.
increase/decrease in discount rate would result in the fair value of the option decrease/increase by UAH (-
1,490,143)/+1,576,001 thousand as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: by UAH 2,001,558)
/+2,130,014 thousand).

The Group also carried out a simulation of the fair value change of the hybrid instrument on the basis of
changes that were objectively feasible – an increase in the forward rate of the US dollar to the hryvnia by 10%
and simultaneous increase of discount rates by 1 p.p. If the above scenario is implemented, the fair
value of the investments will increase by UAH 2,042,756 thousand as at 31 December 2021 (31 December
2020: UAH 1,710,892 thousand). Reduction of the forward exchange rate of the US dollar to the hryvnia by
5% and reduction of discount rates by 1 p.p. will result reduction in the fair value of investments of UAH 320,455
thousand as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: increase in the fair value of UAH 90,850 thousand).

Investments at fair value through other comprehensive income

Other securities

Risk premium applied on
observable discount rate as at
(input) Change in input Fair value Change in fair value

31 December 2021 + 1 п. п. - 1 п. п. 578,404 (5,578) 5,636
31 December 2020 +1 p.p. -1 p.p. 1,105,544 (12,705) 13,041

Sensitivity analysis of the fair value of loans measured at fair value through profit or loss

Presented below is the sensitivity of the fair value of loans measured at fair value through profit or loss to the
changes in the inputs by 1 p.p.

Discount rate as at Change in discount rate Change in fair value
31 December 2021 + 1 п. п. - 1 п. п. (92,745) 99,345
31 December 2020 +1 p.p. -1 p.p. (101,945) 109,311

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis (but fair value disclosures are required)

Other financial instruments

For financial assets and liabilities that have a short term maturity, it is assumed that the carrying amounts
approximate their fair value. Accordingly, for other financial assets and other financial liabilities, the carrying
value is approximately equal to their fair value. This assumption is also applied to demand deposits and current
accounts without defined maturity.
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The management believes that, except for included in the table below, the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
Carrying
amount

Fair
value

Carrying
amount

Fair
value

Assets

Loans to legal entities 59,095,632 60,363,084 51,834,833 54,684,561
Loans to individuals 13,620,493 11,649,598 8,914,977 7,953,976
Investments 82,518,796 82,331,323 71,266,302 71,365,575

Total assets 155,234,921 154,344,005 132,016,112 134,004,112

Liabilities
Customer accounts 191,452,639 191,443,362 186,165,452 186,520,518
Eurobonds issued 7,908,096 8,004,686 11,744,616 12,388,354
Other borrowed funds 2,818,312 2,590,535 4,452,649 4,274,884
Subordinated debt 878,960 870,802 1,276,240 1,314,237

Total liabilities  203,058,007 202,909,384 203,638,957 204,497,993

The following table gives information about how the fair values of these financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined (in particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used):

Financial assets/
financial liabilities

Level of the
fair value
hierarchy Valuation techniques and key inputs

Due from banks 2 Discounted cash flows.
Future cash flows are estimated based on the inputs that are observable, either
directly or indirectly, and the estimates use one or more observable prices for
orderly transactions in the markets that are not considered active.

Loans to customers at
amortised cost

3 Discounted cash flows.
Future cash flows are estimated based on both observable and unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs include assumptions regarding future financial
performance of a counterparty and its risk profile.

Investments at
amortised cost

2 Discounted cash flows.
Future cash flows are estimated based on the inputs that are observable, either
directly or indirectly, and the estimates use one or more observable prices for
orderly transactions in the markets that are not considered active.

Due to banks 2 Discounted cash flows.
Future cash flows are estimated based on the inputs that are observable, either
directly or indirectly, and the estimates use one or more observable prices for
orderly transactions in the markets that are not considered active.

Customer accounts 2 Discounted cash flows.
Future cash flows are estimated based on both observable and unobservable
inputs.

Eurobonds issued 2 Discounted cash flows.
Future cash flows are estimated based on the inputs that are observable, either
directly or indirectly, and the estimates use one or more observable prices for
orderly transactions in the markets that are not considered active.

Other borrowed funds 2 Discounted cash flows.
Future cash flows are estimated based on the inputs that are observable, either
directly or indirectly, and the estimates use one or more observable prices for
orderly transactions in the markets that are not considered active.

Subordinated debt 2 Discounted cash flows.
Future cash flows are estimated based on the inputs that are not observable
directly, and the estimates use one or more unobservable prices for orderly
transactions in the markets that are not considered active.
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31 December 2021,
fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets

Loans to customers − − 72,012,682 72,012,682
Investments − 81,124,630 1,206,693 82,331,323

Total − 81,124,630 73,219,375 154,344,005

Liabilities
Due to banks − 7,608,283 − 7,608,283
Customer accounts − 191,443,362 − 191,443,362
Eurobonds issued − 8,004,686 − 8,004,686
Other borrowed funds − 2,590,535 − 2,590,535
Subordinated debt − 870,802 − 870,802

Total − 210,517,667 − 210,517,667

31 December 2020,
fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets

Loans to customers − − 62,638,537 62,638,537
Investments − 69,994,519 1,371,056 71,365,575

Total − 69,994,519 64,009,593 134,004,112

Liabilities
Due to banks − 5,823,982 − 5,823,982
Customer accounts − 186,520,518 − 186,520,518
Eurobonds issued − 12,388,354 − 12,388,354
Other borrowed funds − 4,274,884 − 4,274,884
Subordinated debt − 1,314,237 − 1,314,237

Total − 210,321,975 − 210,321,975

27. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximizing the return to the shareholder through the optimization of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of share capital, reserves, and accumulated deficit as disclosed in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity, and borrowed funds, which include subordinated debt
disclosed in Note 23.

The Group reviews the capital structure on a regular basis. As a part of this review the cost of capital, its
components and the risks, that are inherent to the Group and might cause the loss of a component of capital
are comprehensively analyzed. The Group balances its overall capital structure, in particular, through new
share issues as well as the issue/redemption of subordinated debt.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group complied with the requirements of the National Bank of Ukraine
regarding adequacy of the regulatory capital.
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28. REGULATORY MATTERS

The adequacy of the Group’s capital is monitored using, among other measures, the ratios established by the
Basel Capital Accord 1988 and the ratios established by the NBU in supervising the Group and companies
controlled by the Group.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require that the Group maintain
minimum amounts and ratios of total and Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets.

Quantitative measures established by the Basel Committee to ensure capital adequacy require that the Group
maintain minimum amounts and ratios of total capital (8%) and Tier 1 capital (4%) to risk-weighted assets.

The following table analyses the Group’s regulatory capital resources for capital adequacy purposes in
accordance with the Basel Capital Accord 1988:

31 December
2021

31 December
2020

Regulatory capital:
Tier 1 capital
Share capital 49,724,980 49,724,980
Accumulated deficit (30,106,919) (30,334,988)
Total Tier 1 qualified capital 19,618,061 19,389,992

Tier 2 capital
Revaluation reserves 2,256,281 2,550,611
Subordinated debt 306,880 565,492
Total Tier 2 qualified capital up to a limit of 100% total Tier 1 capital 2,563,161 3,116,103

Total regulatory capital 22,181,222 22,506,095

Capital ratios:
Total regulatory capital as a percentage of total risk-weighted assets 16.61% 16.93%

Total Tier 1 capital as a percentage of total risk-weighted assets 14.69% 14.59%

29. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

Risk management is fundamental to the Group’s business and is an essential element of the Group’s
operations. The main risks inherent in the Group’s operations are: market risk, credit risk, concentration risk,
liquidity risk, interest risk and currency risk. The Group’s risk management policies in relation to those risks
are described below.

The Group establishes a comprehensive and effective risk management system, taking into account the Bank’s
Development Strategy, the Bank’s Risk Statement and other internal regulatory documents, which define the
nature and volume of Bank’s operations, risk profile and Bank’s system importance.

From the functional point of view, risk management of business processes and clear division of responsibilities
between the Bank’s branches are implemented using the principle of three lines of protection.

 First line − at the level of the Bank’s business units and the Bank’s business support units. These units
accept and are responsible for the risks and report daily on management of such risks, in accordance
with the functions set out in the provisions of that unit;

 Second line − at the level of the risk management and compliance units;

 Third line − at the level of the internal audit unit for verification and evaluation of the effectiveness of the
risk management system.



Translation form Ukrainian original

JOINT STOCK COMPANY “STATE SAVINGS BANK OF UKRAINE”

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(in thousands of UAH)

69

The organizational structure of risk management provides clear division of the functions, responsibilities and
powers of risk management among all bodies of the risk management system and employees of the Bank, as
well as their responsibility in accordance with such division.

Risk management functions are distributed among the following bodies of the risk management system:

 The Supervisory Board of the Bank;

 Risk Management Committee of JSC “Oschadbank”;

 The Management Board of the Bank;

 Committees established by the Board of the Bank:

 Risk management department;

 Compliance department;

 The Bank’s internal audit department;

 Business and support departments, including those working with non-performing assets.

The Supervisory Board of the Bank conducts its activity in accordance with the Resolution of the Cabinet of
Ministers of Ukraine dated 10 July 2019 No. 643.

The Bank’s Supervisory Board is fully responsible for creating a comprehensive and effective risk management
system for risks the Bank is exposed to in its operations. General risk management strategy of the Bank is
determined by the Bank’s Supervisory Board.

To ensure compliance with the risk management policies, the Supervisory Board adopted Decision No. 1 dated
20 June 2019 (Issue 6) on the establishment of standing committees of the Bank’s Supervisory Board, namely:
Audit Committee, Nominating and Remuneration Committee, Risk Committee, Strategy Committee. Also, by
Decision No. 3 of the Supervisory Board dated 25 July 2019 the Regulation on the Supervisory Board Risk
Committee of JSC “Oschadbank” was approved, which defines functions and responsibilities of the committee
members. In particular, the functions of the Committee include control over taking into account the Bank’s
business model and risk management strategy for pricing / setting tariffs for banking products, and if the
prices/tariffs do not cover the risks of JSC “Oschadbank”, developing measures and submitting them for
consideration and approval (decision-making) of the Supervisory Board of JSC “Oschadbank”; control over
implementation and compliance with risk exposure declaration, risk management strategy and other internal bank
documents; control over implementation of measures for prompt elimination of deficiencies in the functioning of
the risk management system, implementation of recommendations and observations of the internal audit
department, external auditors, the National Bank of Ukraine and other supervisory bodies; control and supervision
of capital and liquidity management strategies, as well as all risks of JSC “Oschadbank” defined by the declaration
of risk exposure, in particular, credit, market, operational, reputational and other significant risks of
JSC “Oschadbank”, defined as such in accordance with internal regulation documents of JSC “Oschadbank”;
consideration of reports and submission of proposals (including measures to promptly eliminate deficiencies).

The Management Board of the Bank ensures the fulfillment of tasks, decisions of the Bank’s Supervisory Board
on the implementation of the risk management system, including the Risk management strategy and policies,
risk management culture, procedures, methods and other measures of effective risk management.

The Regulations on standing committees established by the Bank’s Management Board set out the right for
the Head of the Risk Management department and the Head of the Compliance department to impose a ban
(veto) on the decisions of committees established by the Bank’s Management.
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In order to bring the organizational structure of the risk management system in compliance with the
requirements of the Resolution of the Board of the National Bank of Ukraine dated 11 June 2018 No. 64
On Approval of the Regulation on the Organization of the Risk Management System in Banks of Ukraine and
Banking Groups, the risk management general department and the compliance department were established
on 17 September 2019.

The Director of the Risk Management General Department is reported to by:

 Credit Risk and Assets Valuation Department − to ensure effective performance of credit risk management;.

 Strategic Risk and Forecasting Department − to ensure effective operations in managing liquidity risk,
interest rate risk and currency risk.

The activities of these divisions are aimed at identifying, analyzing, assessing, monitoring and controlling risks
within the Bank and supporting decision-making of the relevant risk committees in terms of risk management.

The Compliance department ensures control over the Bank’s compliance with legislation, internal regulatory
documents and relevant standards of professional associations, which are applied to the Bank, etc.

These departments are independent from other areas of business.

The Bank’s internal audit department reviews and evaluates the effectiveness of the Bank’s first- and second-
level risk management systems, including the assessment of the effectiveness of the internal control system.

Business and support departments, including NPL departments, accept risks and are responsible for these
risks and report on the ongoing management of such risks.

The Group manages the following risks:

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss for the Group as a result of a borrower’s or a counterparty’s failure to meet
its contractual obligations. Credit risk arises mainly from loans and investment securities. For risk management
reporting purposes, the Group considers and consolidates all the elements of credit risk exposure (such as
individual customer and counterparty default risk, as well as risks specific to certain countries and industries).

When granting and maintaining loan commitments (commitments on undrawn loans, letters of credit and
guarantees), the management applies the same procedures for their consideration, approval, and
maintenance as for loans issued. The maximum off-balance sheet credit risk is disclosed below in section
Effect of security .

The Group is constantly improving its approaches to assessing the level of credit risk according to national
standards and assessing credit risk (prudential reserves) taking into account the requirements of the National
Bank of Ukraine to determine the amount of credit risk on active banking operations, approved by NBU Board
Resolution No. 351 dated 30 June 2016, changes and additions.

 The credit risk management process is defined in the following internal documents of the Bank: Declarations
of risk exposure of JSC “Oschadbank”, Risk Management Strategies of “JSC Oschadbank”, Credit Risk
Management Policy of JSC “Oschadbank”, Credit Policy of JSC “Oschadbank”, as well as methodologies and
regulations determining the procedure for assessing the level of credit risk / reduction of the usefulness of
financial instruments.

The basic methods used in the credit risk management process are:

 Assessment of the Group’s counterparty financial condition, including determination of the internal credit
rating/scoring of the counterparty, at the stage of decision making on lending and during the lending
period;

 Assessment of loan terms, including collateral;
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 Calculation and establishment of credit limits for borrowers/banks of related counterparties of the Group;

 Accreditation of independent appraisers of pledged property of the borrowers of the Group;

 Regular monitoring of the availability and condition of collateral items;

 Risk assessment of the Group loan portfolio;

 Regular management reporting;

 Accreditation of insurance companies;

 Accreditation of construction sites and developers/managers.

The Group risk management includes the following stages:

 Identification of risks − identification of risks sources;

 Risk assessment − identification and assessment of the identified risks;

 Risk control − setting limits for the size of acceptable risks;

 Risk monitoring – process of continuous monitoring of risk sources.

In order to manage credit risk, the Group performs financial and economic analysis of counterparties, analysis
of credit and investment projects, setting limits and restrictions on active operations, portfolio risk management.

Еstablishing limits for individual borrowers and groups of borrowers which are determined based on the
recommendations of the relevant credit department and risk management department of the Group, and
approved by the relevant authorized collegial body of the Bank. In case the amount of a loan exceeds the limit
within the authority of the Management Board, the loan is approved by a decision of the Supervisory Board.
The Group also mitigates its credit risk by obtaining collateral and using other security arrangements.

Currently, the Group lending decision-making process is largely centralized. The Credit Factory system has
been introduced and is used to analyze the creditworthiness of individual borrowers and decide on the
transaction by verifiers who are members of small credit committee for retail business. The decisions on
carrying out active operations with large corporate customers are taken by the Bank’s Credit Committee.

In making its lending decisions, the Group assesses its potential borrowers based on their financial position,
credit history, and the exposure associated with a loan to a particular borrower, using an internal rating scale.

In assessing risks and making decisions on granting a loan to a specific borrower-legal entity or individual
entrepreneur who is receiving a loan for his business activities, the Group takes into account financial
condition, creditworthiness and solvency of the borrower, performs market analysis, as well as of the industry-
related risks where the borrower carries out its business activities, including market positions of the borrower’s
business, and considers factors such as the quality of its management, geographic location, level of suppliers/
customers concentration, leverage, liquidity and sufficiency of collateral offered in terms of the credit risk.

The decision-making procedure for granting consumer loans in the Group is standardized. The maximum limits
on loans are set depending on the applicant income, stability of the potential borrower’s future earnings,
liquidity and quality of collateral.

To support borrowers in order to overcome the negative consequences associated with COVID-19, during
2021 the Bank mainly carried out debt restructuring:

 by changing the loan repayment schedules – delay of payments (in full or in part);

 extending the loan repayment maturities and applying a new repayment schedule that corresponds to
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the borrower's ability to generate the appropriate cash flow;

 changing the terms of repayment of overdue debt on the principal amount of debt by evenly distributing
the principal amount of debt for the entire term of the loan;

 postponement of interest payments on loans;

 reduction of the interest rate (both on a permanent and temporary basis).

In addition, the Bank provided waivers for covenants, that were or could be violated due to pandemic and
quarantine measures, or temporary mitigation / revision of covenants and credit terms. In particular, the
obligatory / minimum payment of 5% of the amount of the used loan was temporarily canceled for the loans
under the BPK. According to the support mechanism provided by the state program "5-7-9", the state
reimbursed the interest costs of customers for loans to replenish working capital.

For individually assessed borrowers, when calculating provisions / impairment as of January 1, 2022, the Bank
took into account the risks for borrowers faced due to the COVID-19 pandemic: the scenarios were amended
(higher probability of liquidation scenario was considered), debt repayment schedules were taken into account,
in accordance with the concluded restructuring programs provided to borrowers to reduce the debt burden for
the period of quarantine restrictions.

The concentration of credit risks is assessed for the portfolio of active operations as a whole, as well as for its
individual components. The Management Board of the Bank has approved restrictions (limits) on active
operations by sectors of economy, geographical regions, and a number of loan products.

Credit risk assessment for risk management purposes is complex and requires the use of a specific model, as
the exposure to credit risk varies depending on changes in market conditions, expected cash flows and time.
The Group assesses credit risk using probability of default (PD), exposure at default (EAD), and loss given
default (LGD), based on forecast information.

In accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9, the assessment of impairment is based on the model of
expected credit losses (hereinafter – “the impairment model”).

Assessment of ECL on financial assets

General provisions

IFRS 9 requirements for impairment assessment apply to all debt instruments at amortised cost or FVOCI,
including loan commitments and financial guarantees.

In accordance with IFRS 9, the Group applies a three-stage approach to assessing impairment of financial
assets based on credit quality changes since initial recognition:

Stage 1 covers financial assets that have not experienced a significant increase in credit risk after initial
recognition or occurrence of a default event, or the financial assets with a low credit risk at the reporting date.
For these assets, allowance is determined based on 12 months expected credit losses (ECL).

Stage 2 covers financial assets that have experienced a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, with no default event occurred. For these assets, allowance is determined based on the life-time
ECL.

Stage 3 covers financial assets with objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date. For such assets,
life-time expected credit losses are recognised. These assets are considered to be credit-impaired.

Allocating an asset to Stage 3 / credit-impaired takes place when default event is identified.

A financial asset is classified by the Group as a financial asset for which a default event occured, if at least
one of the objective evidence of impairment is identified. Obligatory and optional (based on the Group
judgement) default criteria are applied.



Translation form Ukrainian original

JOINT STOCK COMPANY “STATE SAVINGS BANK OF UKRAINE”

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(in thousands of UAH)

73

The obligatory default criteria are:

 Number of days overdue (corporate and retail business and financial receivables 90+, interbank
transactions 7+, and securities 30+);

 Restructuring caused by financial difficulties of a borrower;

 Death of a borrower − individual;

 Temporary administration in the bank;

 Default event based on a credit rating (corporate business, interbank operations).

Identification of a significant increase in credit risk is carried out at the level of a loan transaction and is based
on the use of a combination of qualitative and quantitative factors/indicators such as:

 Change in the probability of default at the reporting date as compared to the value at the time of initial
recognition in excess of the threshold value (retail business lending);

 Change in the credit rating determined according to the internal rating model in excess of the threshold
value (corporate business lending);

 Reaching the threshold value for the days of overdue (over 30 days for retail and corporate business
lending).

Regardless of whether there was a corresponding change after the initial recognition, the credit risk of the debt
is not considered to have increased significantly after its initial recognition if the loan is attributed to the group
of low risk credit instruments.

The credit risk of a financial instrument is considered low if:

 The financial instrument has a low risk of default (the external rating of the borrower is at the investment
level; there are no overdue payments or the delay does not exceed 30 days (interbank loans − 1 day,
for securities issuers − up to 7 days); 

 The borrower has a high “potential” to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the short-term
perspective; and

 The adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the long run may lead, but not necessarily,
to a decrease in the ability of the borrower to meet its obligations related to the contractual cash flows.

The three-stage approach does not apply to purchased (originated) credit impaired financial assets
(hereinafter − “POCI-assets”). POCI assets are financial assets that are credit-impaired at the date of initial
recognition. For such assets the impairment is determined based on expected credit losses over the life of
financial asset at initial recognition. POCI assets are initially recognised at fair value.

Valuation models

The Group developed expected credit losses (ECL) evaluation models based on the risk of probability of
default (PD), exposure at the time of default (EAD), and loss given default (LGD), considering forecast
information, and effective interest rate on a lending transaction.

The PD estimate for lending to corporate and retail business is based on the analysis of borrowers
migration/lending transactions across overdue portfolios of homogeneous borrowers/loans groups. Update of
the information is performed on a monthly basis. By using forecasts of the development and relevant models
of the macro indicators influence, the Group transforms the received values of PD allowing for the economic
cycle stage – “point-in-time” (PIT) PD.
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Risk parameters assessment models and models of macroenvironment effects are subject to validation on an
annual basis.

To assess ECLs for the investments in government securities, the risk parameters values are obtained based
on the rating provided by the international rating agency Moody’s based on the agency statistical information
and taking into account the individual rating of the country.

The LGD is defined as the level of losses in case a borrower defaults and is an estimate of the debt/exposure
that cannot be obtained/recovered. The assessment is based on the model that takes into account collateral
value and the recovery likelihood of a loan transaction. Collateral value is estimated taking into account the
type of collateral and the assessment of the possible recovery amount in case of its sale (application of
discounts by types of collateral). The probability of recovery from default is estimated by groups of overdue
portfolios of homogeneous borrowers/loans.

The estimate of the available collateral is updated in accordance with the Group internal regulatory documents.

For investments in government securities, securities or debts of state-owned companies, local councils, the
Group uses market sources of information such as statistical information from international rating agencies.

The EAD is the expected amount of debt at the time of default. The models of the EAD are built based on loan
repayment schedule and assessment of the possible increase in debt by using the available (if any) undrawn
limits on a loan transaction, guarantees realization, etc. Off-balance sheet transactions are accounted for using
the Credit Conversion Factor (CCF) or the factor of the average level of utilization / use of the limits available
to the borrower (UTIL), determined in accordance with historical data held by the Group on such transactions
and takes into account the specifics of the loan transaction and the borrower.

Consideration of forecast information on macroeconomic indicators

Calculation of expected credit losses is based on expectations regarding changes in a number of
macroeconomic indicators.

Selection of indicators and their use in the models is based on the analysis of historical information about the
impact of their change on the credit risk exposure for individual portfolios by customer segment and product
type.

The forecast of macroeconomic indicators has been developed by the Group with three years horizon, using
three scenarios: basic (with a probability of 50%), two less probable scenarios, optimistic and pessimistic, with
a probability of occurrence of 25% each. When making the forecast the Group used both mathematical
methods and assumptions and published data on future values of macroeconomic factors for the period up to
2021 prepared by the National Bank of Ukraine, the Ministry for Economic Development and Trade and the
Ministry of Finance of Ukraine, as well as the international financial institutions. The main macroeconomic
indicators used in calculating expected credit losses are GDP, devaluation and consumer price index (for retail
business loans without collateral).

The Group identifies and records key drivers of credit risk and credit losses for each financial instruments
portfolio and, using the analysis of the historical data, estimates the relation between the change in macro-
economic values and the credit risk and credit losses. The key drivers for credit risk for retail portfolios are:
GDP, devaluation and consumer price index (for retail loans with no collateral).
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Change in gross carrying value and allowances for losses on financial instruments by Stages subject to the IFRS 9 impairment requirements

Cash and cash equivalents
Gross carrying value ECL

Stage 1
12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total
Stage 1

12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total

Balance as at 1 January 2020  20,156,268 − −  20,156,268 45,550 − − 45,550
New assets 77,047 − − 77,047 29 − − 29
Repaid assets  (15,512,574) − −  (15,512,574) (50,568) − − (50,568)
Foreign exchange differences  6,606,290 − −  6,606,290 15,596 − − 15,596

Balance as at 31 December 2020  11,327,031 − −  11,327,031 10,607 − − 10,607
New assets 11,941 − − 11,941 30 − − 30
Repaid assets  (3,373,255) − −  (3,373,255) (2,634) − − (2,634)
Foreign exchange differences  (1,253,416) − −  (1,253,416) (939) − − (939)

Balance as at 31 December 2021  6,712,301 − −  6,712,301 7,064 − − 7,064

Due from banks
Term deposits

Gross carrying value ECL

Stage 1
12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total
Stage 1

12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total

Balance as at 1 January 2020 − − 50 50 − − 50 50
Stage 1 − − − − − − − −
Write-off of assets − − (50) (50) − − (50) (50)

Balance as at 31 December 2020 − − − − − − − −

Balance as at 31 December 2021 − − − − − − − −
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Due from banks
Loans to other banks

Gross carrying value ECL

Stage 1
12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total
Stage 1

12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total

Balance as at 1 January 2020 − −  167,430  167,430 − −  167,430  167,430
Write-off of assets − −  (1,820)  (1,820) − −  (1,820)  (1,820)
Foreign exchange differences − − 23,435 23,435 − − 23,435 23,435

Balance as at 31 December 2020 − −  189,045  189,045 − −  189,045  189,045
Write-off of assets − −  (183,436)  (183,436) − −  (183,436)  (183,436)
Foreign exchange differences − −  (5,609)  (5,609) − −  (5,609)  (5,609)

Balance as at 31 December 2021 − − − − − − − −

Investments measured at amortised cost
Government debt securities of Ukraine

Gross carrying value ECL

Stage 1
12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total
Stage 1

12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total

Balance as at 1 January 2020  24,688,693 − −  24,688,693 60,277 − − 60,277
New assets  49,734,208 − −  49,734,208 112,497 − − 112,497
Repaid assets  (9,586,542) − −  (9,586,542) (1,666) − − (1,666)
Other changes (1,665) − − (1,665) (26,767) − − (26,767)
Foreign exchange differences  2,410,925 − −  2,410,925 7,501 − − 7,501

Balance as at 31 December 2020  67,245,619 − −  67,245,619 151,842 − − 151,842
New assets  45,433,359 − −  45,433,359 87,829 − − 87,829
Repaid assets  (47,814,321) − −  (47,814,321) (78,274) − − (78,274)
Other changes (8,745) − − (8,745) (45,362) − − (45,362)
Foreign exchange differences  (817,850) − −  (817,850) (1,652) − − (1,652)

Balance as at 31 December 2021  64,038,062 − −  64,038,062 114,383 − − 114,383
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Investments measured at amortised cost
Corporate debt securities

Gross carrying value ECL

Stage 1
12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total
Stage 1

12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total

Balance as at 1 January 2020 669,993 − − 669,993 3,379 − − 3,379
New assets 523,249 − − 523,249 3,892 − − 3,892
Stage 2  (516,538) 516,538 − − (1,889) 1,889 − −
Repaid assets  (153,455) − −  (153,455) (1,490) − − (1,490)
Other changes − 36,272 − 36,272 − 9,909 − 9,909
Effect of modifications (71,071)  (122,927) −  (193,998) (1,501) (3,487) − (4,988)

Balance as at 31 December 2020 452,178 429,883 − 882,061 2,391 8,311 − 10,702
Stage 3  (410,233)  (429,883) 840,116 − (1,529) (8,311) 9,840 −
Other changes (506) − (9,574) (10,080) 127 − (1,167) (1,040)

Balance as at 31 December 2021 41,439 − 830,542 871,981 989 − 8,673 9,662

Investments measured at amortised cost
Other debt securities

Gross carrying value ECL

Stage 1
12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total
Stage 1

12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total

Balance as at 1 January 2020  11,514,480 − −  11,514,480 − − − −
New assets  3,302,608 − −  3,302,608 1,442 − − 1,442
Repaid assets  (11,514,480) − −  (11,514,480) − − − −

Balance as at 31 December 2020  3,302,608 − −  3,302,608 1,442 − − 1,442
New assets  17,735,387 − −  17,735,387 2,589 − − 2,589
Repaid assets  (3,302,608) − −  (3,302,608) (1,442) − − (1,442)

Balance as at 31 December 2021  17,735,387 − −  17,735,387 2,589 − − 2,589
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Investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
Ukrainian government debt securities

Gross carrying value ECL

Stage 1
12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total
Stage 1

12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total

Balance as at 1 January 2020  32,211,782 − −  32,211,782 52,875 − − 52,875
Repaid assets  (23,802,373) − −  (23,802,373) (16,291) − − (16,291)
Other changes  (292,004) − −  (292,004) (17,297) − − (17,297)
Foreign exchange differences  3,081,458 − −  3,081,458 3,328 − − 3,328

Balance as at 31 December 2020  11,198,863 − −  11,198,863 22,615 − − 22,615
Repaid assets  (8,648,412) − −  (8,648,412) (14,585) − − (14,585)
Other changes  (103,998) − −  (103,998) 1 − − 1
Foreign exchange differences  (184,305) − −  (184,305) (127) − − (127)

Balance as at 31 December 2021  2,262,148 − −  2,262,148 7,904 − − 7,904

Investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
Corporate debt securities

Gross carrying value ECL

Stage 1
12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total
Stage 1

12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total

Balance as at 1 January 2020 700,974 − 71,536 772,510 5,436 − 71,536 76,972
Repaid assets (124) − − (124) − − − −
Other changes (1,587) − − (1,587) 4,123 − − 4,123
Effect of modifications (69,032) − − (69,032) (5,214) − − (5,214)

Balance as at 31 December 2020 630,231 − 71,536 701,767 4,345 − 71,536 75,881
Repaid assets (2,957) − (1,569) (4,526) (20) − (1,569) (1,589)
Other changes (74,947) − − (74,947) (628) − − (628)
Write-off of assets − − (69,967) (69,967) − − (69,967) (69,967)

Balance as at 31 December 2021 552,327 − − 552,327 3,697 − − 3,697
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Investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
Other debt securities

Gross carrying value ECL

Stage 1
12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total
Stage 1

12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total

Balance as at 1 January 2020  4,968,192 − −  4,968,192 6,889 − − 6,889
Repaid assets  (4,508,307) − −  (4,508,307) − − − −
Other changes (6,467) − − (6,467) (3,740) − − (3,740)

Balance as at 31 December 2020 453,418 − − 453,418 3,149 − − 3,149
Repaid assets  (453,418) − −  (453,418) (3,149) − − (3,149)

Balance as at 31 December 2021 − − − − − − − −
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Loans that are measured at amortised cost
Loans to corporate entities

Gross carrying value ECL

Stage 1
12-month

ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL

(not
impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired)

Purchased or
initially

impaired Total

Stage 1
12-month

ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL

(not
impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired)

Purchased or
initially

impaired Total

Balance as at 1 January 2020  33,321,852  4,540,682  63,498,374  5,362,300 106,723,208  142,572 17,857  53,539,339  432,148  54,131,916
New assets  3,659,642 − −  4,735,125  8,394,767 20,832 − −  474,931  495,763
Stage 1  1,880,051  (1,878,910)  (1,141) − − 11,189  (10,404) (785) − −
Stage 2  (5,182,816)  5,182,816 − − −  (19,482) 19,482 − − −
Stage 3  (44,407)  (92,982)  137,389 − −  (7,129)  (2,173) 9,302 − −
Repaid assets  (4,715,082)  (463,746)  (213,173) −  (5,392,001)  (10,179)  (1,338)  (41,801) −  (53,318)
Other changes  (7,300,428)  (508,524) (14,248,579)  (450,858) (22,508,389) 17,826  625,620  773,124  (26,781)  1,389,789
Adjustment of interest income − − − − − − −  1,905,147 91,005  1,996,152
Write-off of assets − − (31,655,074), − (31,655,074) − − (31,655,074) − (31,655,074)
Effect of modifications  (113,510)  (79,577)  (582,640)  (35,149)  (810,876)  (21,527)  (9,626)  (378,026)  (35,149)  (444,328)
ECL disposal on restructuring resulted in
derecognition of financial instrument − − − − − − − (11,218,214) 5,433 (11,212,781)
Foreign exchange differences  2,282,160  1,719,150  9,633,392  178,798  13,813,500 30,156 30,294  7,768,415  (13,799)  7,815,066

Balance as at 31 December 2020  23,787,462  8,418,909  26,568,548  9,790,216  68,565,135  164,258  669,712  20,701,427  927,788  22,463,185
New assets  7,443,422 − −  1,083,001  8,526,423 34,890 − − 14,021 48,911
Stage 1  391,675  (390,696) (979) − − 1,524 (645) (879) − −
Stage 2  (2,702,326)  6,700,749  (3,998,423) − −  (32,284)  402,985  (370,701) − −
Stage 3  (22,376)  (3,460) 25,836 − −  (2,135) (692) 2,827 − −
Repaid assets  (5,055,390)  (1,794,075)  (43,151)  (904,764)  (7,797,380)  (25,076)  (126,086)  (12,722)  609,736  445,852
Other change  5,766,859  117,348  252,737 7,785  6,144,729 51,806  1,293,334  366,889  1,108,868  2,820,897
Adjustment of interest income − − − − − − −  (311,881)  122,247  (189,634)
Write-off of assets − − (14,564,839) − (14,564,839) − − (14,564,839) − (14,564,839)
ECL disposal on restructuring resulted in
derecognition of financial instrument − − − − − − −  (43,170) −  (43,170)
Effect of modifications  (86,586)  (587,758)  (37,191)  (57,740)  (769,275)  (30,390)  (425,009)  (37,192)  (24,619)  (517,210)
Foreign exchange differences  (281,401)  (1,288,703)  (830,160)  (143,347)  (2,543,611)  (2,044)  (179,591)  (765,348)  (3,560)  (950,543)

Balance as at 31 December 2021  29,241,339  11,172,314  7,372,378  9,775,151  57,561,182  160,549  1,634,008  4,964,411  2,754,481  9,513,449
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Loans that are measured at amortised cost
Loans to individuals

Gross carrying value ECL

Stage 1
12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total
Stage 1

12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total

Balance as at 1 January 2020  6,522,529  208,132  2,414,998  9,145,659  135,363 68,408  2,328,939  2,532,710
New assets  3,564,429 − −  3,564,429 91,939 − − 91,939
Stage 1 76,978  (64,949)  (12,029) − 24,715  (18,180)  (6,535) −
Stage 2  (510,035)  511,133  (1,098) −  (24,792) 25,646 (854) −
Stage 3  (207,479)  (54,595)  262,074 −  (30,054)  (19,969) 50,023 −
Repaid assets  (1,655,375)  (70,380)  (171,346)  (1,897,101)  (29,308)  (25,080)  (134,626)  (189,014)
Other changes  (536,100)  (12,625)  (92,159)  (640,884)  (24,627) 17,944 70,303 63,620
Adjustment of interest income − − − − − −  (17,899)  (17,899)
Write-off of assets − −  (49,259)  (49,259) − −  (49,259)  (49,259)
Effect of modifications 13,869 207 699 14,775 1,085 194 133 1,412
Foreign exchange differences 312 15  205,153  205,480 12 14  204,900  204,926

Balance as at 31 December 2020  7,269,128  516,938  2,557,033  10,343,099  144,333 48,977  2,445,125  2,638,435
New assets  5,608,283 − −  5,608,283  162,066 − −  162,066
Stage 1  196,483  (184,848)  (11,635) − 19,736  (17,507)  (2,229) −
Stage 2  (1,445,934)  1,448,850  (2,916) −  (52,454) 53,553  (1,099) −
Stage 3  (168,664)  (56,206)  224,870 −  (32,437)  (12,682) 45,119 −
Repaid assets  (1,538,798)  (129,289)  (115,641)  (1,783,728)  (19,066)  (7,246)  (86,872)  (113,184)
Other changes  137,658  (318,168)  (58,323)  (238,833) 18,164 59,809 96,744  174,717
Adjustment of interest income − − − − − −  (3,426)  (3,426)
Write-off of assets − −  (424,250)  (424,250) − −  (424,250)  (424,250)
Effect of modifications 12,644 5,363 (7) 18,000 1,110 (908) 3 205
Foreign exchange differences (95) (4)  (54,937)  (55,036) (4) (4)  (54,926)  (54,934)

Balance as at 31 December 2021  10,070,705  1,282,636  2,114,194  13,467,535  241,448  123,992  2,014,189  2,379,629
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Loans that are measured at amortised cost
Loans to state and municipal authorities

Gross carrying value ECL

Stage 1
12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total
Stage 1

12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total

Balance as at 1 January 2020  2,187,878 − 300  2,188,178 28,453 − 300 28,753
New assets  3,786,421 − −  3,786,421 52,530 − − 52,530
Other changes  (69,135) − −  (69,135) 81,993 − − 81,993
Effect of modifications  (85,922) − −  (85,922)  (73,827) − −  (73,827)

Balance as at 31 December 2020  5,819,242 − 300  5,819,542 89,149 − 300 89,449
New assets  6,571,485 − −  6,571,485 54,108 − − 54,108
Repaid assets  (1,349,848) − −  (1,349,848)  (51,096) − −  (51,096)
Other changes − − − − − − − −
Effect of modifications 2,231 − − 2,231 2,231 − − 2,231
Foreign exchange differences 97,123 − − 97,123 17 − − 17

Balance as at 31 December 2021  11,140,233 − 300  11,140,533 94,409 − 300 94,709
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Loans that are measured at amortised cost
Mortgage loans to corporate entities and individuals

Gross carrying value ECL

Stage 1
12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total
Stage 1

12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total

Balance as at 1 January 2020  947,470 3,451  790,486  1,741,407 1,902 1,196  783,562  786,660
New assets  495,121 − −  495,121 19 − − 19
Stage 1 3,729  (1,884)  (1,845) − 527 (200) (327) −
Stage 2  (3,464) 3,514 (50) − (4) 48 (44) −
Stage 3  (9,043) (393) 9,436 − (52) (101) 153 −
Repaid assets  (120,606) (433)  (4,425)  (125,464) (182) (398)  (3,342)  (3,922)
Other changes  (112,960) (572)  (25,127)  (138,659)  (1,437) 10  (24,679)  (26,106)
Adjustment of interest income − − − − − − 927 927
Write-off of assets − −  (31,177)  (31,177) − −  (31,177)  (31,177)
Effect of modifications  (3,734) − −  (3,734) (75) − − (75)
Foreign exchange differences 1,419 36  103,591  105,046 16 −  103,095  103,111

Balance as at 31 December 2020  1,197,932 3,719 840,889  2,042,540 714 555 828,168 829,437
New assets  1,564,144 − −  1,564,144 150 − − 150
Stage 1 4,284  (1,845)  (2,439) − 367 (18) (349) −
Stage 2  (26,017) 26,849 (832) − (8) 24 (16) −
Stage 3  (9,560) (974) 10,534 − (69) (85) 154 −
Repaid assets  (155,429) (173)  (7,813)  (163,415) (346) (40)  (5,576)  (5,962)
Other changes  (72,457)  (11,386)  (20,405)  (104,248) 202 93  (18,693)  (18,398)
Adjustment of interest income − − − − − −  (1,021)  (1,021)
Write-off of assets − −  (129,770)  (129,770) − −  (129,770)  (129,770)
Effect of modifications (45) 96 (148) (97) (129) − (134) (263)
Foreign exchange differences (207) (44)  (30,501)  (30,752) (1) −  (30,432)  (30,433)

Balance as at 31 December 2021  2,502,645 16,242  659,515  3,178,402 880 529  642,331  643,740
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Gross carrying value of loans to legal entities in 2021 decreased by UAH 2,446,489 thousand due to
strengthening of the national currency, that was followed by a decrease in allowance in the amount of
UAH 950,526 thousand.

During 2021, loans assessed in Stage 3 with a gross carrying amount of UAH 80,108 thousand, for which
allowance for expected credit losses, including interest income, was recorded in the amount of
UAH 47,232 thousand, as well as loans classified as POCI, with a gross carrying amount of
UAH 702,642 thousand, for which allowance for expected credit losses, including interest income, was
recorded in the amount of UAH (319,110) thousand and, accordingly, the amount of initial impairment
(discount) amounted to UAH 945,804 thousand, were restructured. As a result of the restructuring, new loans
classified as POCI were recognized with a carrying amount of UAH 1,092,903 thousand, including an initial
impairment (discount) of UAH 695,026 thousand.

As at 31 December 2021, the amount of the initial impairment loss for purchased or originated credit-impaired
loans recognized at origination, which is not included in the allowance, comprised UAH 21,704,408 thousand
(31 December 2020: UAH 22,850,622 thousand).

As at 31 December 2021, loans to customers issued in 2021 amounted to UAH 22,270,335 thousand,
representing 25% of loans granted to customers (31 December 2020: UAH 16,240,739 thousand, representing
18% of loans granted to customers).

During 2021, loans to customers amounting to UAH 11,094,372 thousand have been fully
repaid, representing 13% of loans to customers as at 1 January 2021 (31 December 2020:
UAH 7,414,766 thousand, representing 8% of loans to customers as at 31 December 2020).

As at 31 December 2021, loans to customers overdue for more than 90 days (NPLs − non-performing loans)
amounted to UAH 8,194,983 thousand, representing 9% of the total amount of loans to customers
before deducting allowance for expected credit losses (31 December 2020: UAH 21,886,443 thousand,
representing 25% of the total amount of loans to customers before deducting allowance for expected credit
losses).

During 2021, the Bank wrote off loans to customers in the amount of UAH 15,118,859 thousand in hryvnia
equivalent, which was 69% of the volume of loans to customers overdue for more than 90 days as of 31
December 2020. According to the write-off, during the reporting period, the amount of loans and the provision
for expected loan losses decreased.

The Group expects that a significant part of loans (other than the loans granted to customers of the Crimean
Republican Branch and Regional Branches in Luhansk and Donetsk Regions located in the territories that are
not controlled by the Ukrainian authorities), which are overdue for more than 90 days, will be repaid either by
the proceeds from the borrowers’ own earnings or proceeds from the sale of collateral. Such expectations are
based on the fact that a considerable part of overdue loans to legal entities are secured by marketable collateral
and granted to entities which have potential ability to restore their solvency. The Group’s ability to receive
payments on overdue loans to individuals is explained by the fact that these loans are mostly secured by real
estate or vehicles. Moreover, even if the value of collateral is not enough to repay the loan, the Group retains
the right to demand repayments from the borrowers until the loan is repaid in full.
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Other financial assets
Gross carrying value ECL

Stage 1
12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total
Stage 1

12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total

Balance as at 1 January 2020 77,617  209,264  5,714,513  6,001,394 37 26,086  5,709,860  5,735,983
New assets  285,904 − −  285,904 9,446 − − 9,446
Stage 2  (263,577)  270,311  (6,734) −  (6,877) 12,816  (5,939) −
Stage 3  (2,898)  (4,653) 7,551 −  (2,569) (459) 3,028 −
Repaid assets  (47,224)  (43,981)  (8,536)  (99,741) (38)  (3,197)  (7,553)  (10,788)
Other changes − 7,962 6,977 14,939 − 5,391 11,682 17,073
Write-off of assets − −  (1,557) (1,557) − −  (1,557)  (1,557)
Foreign exchange differences 862 25,292  644,984  671,138 1 570  644,746  645,317

Balance as at 31 December 2020 50,684  464,195  6,357,198  6,872,077 − 41,207  6,354,267  6,395,474
New assets  165,294 − −  165,294 20,620 − − 20,620
Stage 2  (142,504)  145,179  (2,675) −  (2,956) 5,359  (2,403) −
Stage 3  (21,041)  (22,911) 43,952 −  (17,664)  (7,740) 25,404 −
Repaid assets (96)  (147,753)  (12,724)  (160,573) −  (3,673)  (5,152)  (8,825)
Other changes − 20,449 31,093 51,542 − 1,665 37,811 39,476
Write-off of assets − −  (6,162,872)  (6,162,872) − −  (6,162,872)  (6,162,872)
Foreign exchange differences −  (14,361)  (159,932)  (174,293) −  (1,733)  (159,851)  (161,584)

Balance as at 31 December 2021 52,337  444,798 94,040  591,175 − 35,085 87,204  122,289
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Credit commitments
Gross carrying value ECL

Stage 1
12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total
Stage 1

12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total

Balance as at 1 January 2020  9,931,024 54,906 40,833  10,026,763 185,432 3,651 8,454 197,537
Increase of commitments  6,338,923 − −  6,338,923 118,258 − − 118,258
Stage 1 31,548 (25,717) (5,831) − 2,597 (1,573) (1,024) −
Stage 2 (67,078) 67,374 (296) − (9,731) 9,782 (51) −
Stage 3 (50,629) (6,523) 57,152 − (4,934) (265) 5,199 −
Repaid commitments  (2,309,846) (16,077) (29,165)  (2,355,088) (44,662) (1,284) (6,302) (52,248)
Other changes 248,230 (27,964) (30,946) 189,320 1,402 404 819 2,626
Foreign exchange differences 37 − − 37 (3) − − (3)

Balance as at 31 December 2020  14,122,209 45,999 31,747  14,199,955 248,359 10,715 7,095 266,169
Increase of commitments  3,884,595 − −  3,884,595 61,877 − − 61,877
Stage 1 20,244 (18,307) (1,937) − 1,203 (806) (397) −
Stage 2 (53,547) 53,557 (10) − (964) 965 (1) −
Stage 3 (26,822) (2,744) 29,566 − (628) (121) 749 −
Repaid commitments  (1,718,384) (19,116) (22,335)  (1,759,835) (24,119) (928) (5,148) (30,195)
Other changes  2,034,119 (22,026) (18,938)  1,993,155 28,308 (4,045) 1,522 25,785
Foreign exchange differences (109) − − (109) (38) − − (38)

Balance as at 31 December 2021  18,262,305 37,363 18,093  18,317,761 313,998 5,780 3,820 323,598

Credit commitments include Irrevocable commitments on loans and unused credit lines and other contingencies.
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Financial guarantees issued and similar commitments
Gross carrying value ECL

Stage 1
12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total
Stage 1

12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total

Balance as at 1 January 2020 929,286 13,752  1,307,607  2,250,645 53 − 329,107 329,160
Increase of commitments  1,274,812 − −  1,274,812 204,877 − − 204,877
Stage 2 (37,260) 37,260 − − − − − −
Stage 3 (1,041,025) − 1,041,025 − (204,768) − 204,768 −
Repaid commitments  (864,106) −  (1,041,025)  (1,905,131) (53) −  (203,794)  (203,847)
Other changes 3,873 − 5,001 8,874 − − 3,250 3,250
Foreign exchange differences 7,629 − 173,881 181,510 − − 34,485 34,485

Balance as at 31 December 2020 273,209 51,012  1,486,489  1,810,710 109 − 367,816 367,925
Increase of commitments  1,406,277 − −  1,406,277 106,007 − − 106,007
Stage 2  (581,033) 581,033 − − − − − −
Stage 3  (633,924) − 633,924 −  (105,689) − 105,689 −
Repaid commitments  (240,047) (44,903)  (562,623)  (847,573) (109) −  (115,702)  (115,811)
Other changes 4,132 − (70,720) (66,588) − − 134,690 134,690
Foreign exchange differences (24,326) − (38,380) (62,706) (7) − (9,514) (9,521)

Balance as at 31 December 2021 204,288 587,142  1,448,690  2,240,120 311 − 482,979 483,290
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Gross carrying value of financial instruments subject to the IFRS 9 impairment requirements by credit risk exposure by Stages

For estimating the expected credit losses for the impaired financial assets subject to impairment requirements under IFRS 9, the Bank allocates financial assets to five
levels of risk, depending on the days overdue and default signs, namely:

Cash and cash
equivalents, except

cash
Loans to

customers
Financial

guarantees issued
Credit

commitments Due from banks Investments Other financial assets
Financial accounts

receivable
Due from banks

STAGE 1 Agreement not
overdue (DPD = 0)

Agreement not
overdue (DPD = 0)

Agreement not
overdue (DPD = 0)

Agreement not
overdue (DPD = 0)

Agreement not
overdue (DPD = 0)

Agreement not
overdue (DPD = 0)

Agreement past due
(1-5 days)

Agreement not
overdue (DPD = 0)

STAGE 2 Agreement past due
1-3 days

Agreement past due
1-30 days

Agreement past due
1-30 days

Agreement past due
1-30 days

Agreement past due
1-3 days

Agreement past due
1-10 days

Agreement past due
6-30 days

Agreement past due
1-3 days

STAGE 3 Agreement past due
4-5 days

Agreement past due
31-60 days

Agreement past due
31-60 days

Agreement past due
31-60 days

Agreement past due
4-5 days

Agreement past due
11-20 days

Agreement past due
31-60 days

Agreement past due
4-5 days

STAGE 4 Agreement past due
6-7 days

Agreement past due
61-90 days

Agreement past due
61-90 days

Agreement past due
61-90 days

Agreement past due
6-7 days

Agreement past due
21-30 days

Agreement past due
61-90 days

Agreement past due
6-7 days

STAGE 5
(default)

Agreement is in
default

Agreement is in
default

Agreement is in
default

Agreement is in
default

Agreement is in
default

Agreement is in
default

Agreement is in
default

Agreement is in
default

Cash and cash equivalents, except cash

As at 31 December 2021 As at 31 December 2020

Stage 1
12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total
Stage 1

12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total

STAGE 1 6,712,301 − − 6,712,301 11,327,031 − − 11,327,031

Due from banks
Loans to other banks

As at 31 December 2021 As at 31 December 2020

Stage 1
12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total
Stage 1

12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total

STAGE 5 (default) − − − − − − 189,045 189,045
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Investments measured at amortised cost
Government debt securities of Ukraine

As at 31 December 2021 As at 31 December 2020

Stage 1
12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total
Stage 1

12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total

STAGE 1 64,038,062 − − 64,038,062 67,245,619 − − 67,245,619

Investments measured at amortised cost
Corporate debt securities

As at 31 December 2021 As at 31 December 2020

Stage 1
12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL(not

impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time

ECL(impaired) Total
Stage 1

12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total

STAGE 1 41,439 − − 41,439 452,178 − − 452,178
STAGE 2 − − − − − − − −
STAGE 3 − − − − − 429,883 − 429,883
STAGE 5 (default) − − 830,542 830,542 − − − −

Investments measured at amortised cost
Other debt securities

As at 31 December 2021 As at 31 December 2020

Stage 1
12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total
Stage 1

12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total

STAGE 1 17,735,387 − − 17,735,387 3,302,608 − − 3,302,608
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Investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
Ukrainian government debt securities

As at 31 December 2021 As at 31 December 2020

Stage 1
12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total
Stage 1

12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total

STAGE 1 2,262,148 − − 2,262,148 11,198,863 − − 11,198,863

Investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
Corporate debt securities

As at 31 December 2021 As at 31 December 2020

Stage 1
12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total
Stage 1

12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total

STAGE 1 552,327 − − 552,327 630,231 − − 630,231
STAGE 5 (default) − − − − − − 71,536 71,536

Investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
Other debt securities

As at 31 December 2021 As at 31 December 2020

Stage 1
12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total
Stage 1

12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total

STAGE 1 − − − − 453,418 − − 453,418
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Loans that are measured at amortised cost
Mortgage loans to corporate entities and individuals

As at 31 December 2021 As at 31 December 2020

Stage 1
12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total
Stage 1

12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total

STAGE 1 2,483,895 10,818 − 2,494,713 1,180,804  465 − 1,181,269
STAGE 2 18,750  338 − 19,088 17,128  28 − 17,156
STAGE 3 −  3,591 −  3,591 −  2,976 −  2,976
STAGE 4 −  1,495 −  1,495 −  250 −  250
STAGE 5 (default) − − 659,515 659,515 − − 840,889 840,889

Loans that are measured at amortised cost
Other loans to individuals

As at 31 December 2021 As at 31 December 2020

Stage 1
12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total
Stage 1

12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total

STAGE 1 9,892,409 1,001,865 − 10,894,274 7,094,023 287,597 − 7,381,620
STAGE 2 178,296 196,194 − 374,490 175,105 161,102 − 336,207
STAGE 3 − 60,696 − 60,696 − 48,459 − 48,459
STAGE 4 − 23,881 − 23,881 − 19,780 − 19,780
STAGE 5 (default) − − 2,114,194 2,114,194 − − 2,557,033 2,557,033

Loans that are measured at amortised cost
Loans to corporate entities

As at 31 December 2021 As at 31 December 2020

Stage 1
12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired)

Purchased or
initially

impaired Total
Stage 1

12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired)

Purchased or
initially

impaired Total

STAGE 1 29,221,203 11,169,094 − − 40,390,297 23,440,658 7,225,153 − − 30,665,811
STAGE 2 20,136  441 − − 20,577 346,804  206 − − 347,010
STAGE 3 −  1,549 −  1,549 − 1,192,672 − − 1,192,672
STAGE 4 −  1,193 − −  1,193 −  878 − −  878
STAGE 5
(default) −  37 7,372,378 9,775,151 17,147,566 − − 26,568,548 9,790,216 35,358,764
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Loans that are measured at amortised cost
Loans to state and municipal authorities

As at 31 December 2021 As at 31 December 2020

Stage 1
12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total
Stage 1

12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total
STAGE 1 11,140,233 − − 11,140,233 5,819,242 − − 5,819,242
STAGE 5 (default) − −  300  300 − −  300  300

Other financial assets
As at 31 December 2021 As at 31 December 2020

Stage 1
12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total
Stage 1

12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total
STAGE 1 52,337 ,394,166 − ,446,503 50,684 424,524 − ,475,208
STAGE 2 − 17,696 − 17,696 −  7,839 −  7,839
STAGE 3 −  1,041 −  1,041 −  1,232 −  1,232
STAGE 4 − 31,895 − 31,895 − 30,600 − 30,600

STAGE 5 (default) − − 94,040 94,040 − − 6,357,198 6,357,198

Financial guarantees issued
As at 31 December 2021 As at 31 December 2020

Stage 1
12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total
Stage 1

12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total
STAGE 1 204,288 587,142 − 791,430 273,209 51,012 − 324,221
STAGE 5 (default) − − 1,448,690 1,448,690 − − 1,486,489 1,486,489

Credit commitments
As at 31 December 2021 As at 31 December 2020

Stage 1
12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total
Stage 1

12-month ECL

Stage 2
Life-time ECL
(not impaired)

Stage 3
Life-time ECL

(impaired) Total

STAGE 1 18,242,068  1,399 − 18,243,467 14,100,218 13,116 − 14,113,334
STAGE 2 20,237 24,078 − 44,315 21,991 24,386 − 46,377
STAGE 3 −  7,848 −  7,848 −  5,604 −  5,604
STAGE 4 −  4,038 −  4,038 −  2,893 −  2,893
STAGE 5 (default) − − 18,093 18,093 − − 31,747 31,747
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Effect of modifications on financial assets

Effect of modifications on loans at amortised cost:

For the year ended
31 December

2021

For the year ended
31 December

2020

Financial assets, modified in the reporting period
Amortised cost before modification 8,486,680 10,026,584
Net result from modifications on loans granted to customers (life-time ECL) (672,863) (699,092)

Financial assets, modified since origination
Gross carrying amount of loans for which loss allowance has changed to

12-month measurement during the period 432,666 1,177,157

The net result from the modifications of investment securities that are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to UAH 838 thousand
(31 December 2020: UAH (69,032) thousand).

The losses on modifications of financial assets for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to
UAH 748,303 thousand (31 December 2020: UAH 1,153,822 thousand).

Effect of security

The Group’s credit policy implies the compliance with a conservative lending principle – loans shall be secured.

The estimate of the expected credit losses on collateralized financial instruments includes the amounts and
timing of the cash flows expected from foreclosure, less discounted costs for receiving and disposing of
collateral (the Group takes into account the probability of the foreclosure and the cash flows resulting from
that). Accordingly, any cash flows expected from the sale of collateral after the contractual maturity date are
included in the analysis. The loan portfolio of the Group is secured with the following types of collateral:
vehicles, equipment and other movable property and the property rights thereto, real estate and property rights
thereto, integral property complexes, government debt securities and guarantees issued by the government
bodies, property rights to funds in cash, while some part of the Group’s loan portfolio is not secured.

The impact of collateral on the improvement of the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk in
terms of financial assets types carried at amortised cost and at fair value through other comprehensive
income is presented as follows:

As at 31 December 2021 As at 31 December 2020
Net carrying

value
Collateral

value
Net carrying

value
Collateral

value
Cash and cash equivalents 6,705,237 − 11,316,424 −
Due from banks − − − −
Loans to customers: 72,716,125 38,699,315 60,749,810 33,488,782
- corporate customers 59,095,632 28,996,139 51,834,833 27,808,447
- individuals 13,620,493 9,703,176 8,914,977 5,680,335
Investments 85,321,670 − 83,518,705 −
Other financial assets 468,886 − 476,603 −

Total 165,211,918 38,699,315 156,061,542 33,488,782

Collateral value used while calculating the allowance for expected credit losses is the collateral fair value,
adjusted for the liquidity ratios and costs for the property sale, and discounted to reflect time value of money.
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The maximum exposure to credit risk of financial assets subject to the IFRS 9 impairment requirements
comprises:

31 December
2021

31 December
2020

Cash and cash equivalents, except cash 6,705,237 11,316,424
Due from banks − −
Investments:

Ukrainian government debt securities 66,177,923 78,270,025
Corporate debt securities 1,410,949 1,497,246
Other debt securities 17,732,798 3,751,435

Loans to customers:
Loans to corporate entities 48,047,733 46,101,949
Loans to state and municipal authorities 11,045,824 5,730,093
Mortgage loans 2,534,662 1,213,103
Other loans 11,087,906 7,704,664
Other financial assets 468,886 476,603

165,211,918 156,061,542

As at 31 December 2021, the net carrying value of the credit-impaired loans amounted to UAH 9,545,923
thousand (31 December 2020: UAH 14,853,697 thousand) and the collateral value (vehicles, equipment and
other movable property, real estate, integral property complexes, property rights to cash, and other types of
collateral), used in calculating the allowance for expected credit losses, was UAH 6,260,298 thousand (31
December 2020: UAH 8,857,498 thousand).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had loans to customers with carrying amount of UAH 7,847,983 thousand
(31 December 2020: UAH 5,886,598 thousand), for which no allowance for expected credit losses was
recognised due to availability of sufficient collateral to cover the risk.

The maximum exposure to credit risk of contingent financial liabilities and credit commitments subject to the
IFRS 9 impairment requirements comprises:

31 December
2021

31 December
2020

The maximum exposure to credit risk:
Credit commitments 17,994,163 13,933,786
Financial guarantees issued and similar commitments 1,756,829 1,442,786

19,750,992 15,376,572

As at 31 December 2021, the guarantees and other credit commitments (including revocable credit
commitments, but excluding performance guarantees), net of allowance for expected credit losses amounted
to UAH 30,600,670 thousand (31 December 2020: UAH 27,359,802 thousand), and the collateral value
(vehicles, equipment, other movable/immovable property, property rights to cash, and other types of collateral)
used in the calculation of the allowance for expected credit losses amounted to UAH 2,161,507 thousand
(31 December 2020: UAH 1,539,963 thousand).

The maximum exposure to credit risk of financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss comprises:

31 December
2021

31 December
2020

Investments:
Ukrainian government debt securities 42,786,103 46,152,268

Loans to customers:
Loans to corporate entities 2,037,961 2,476,267

The collateral used to reduce the credit risk for loans at fair value through profit or loss as at 31 December
2021 (vehicles, equipment and other movable property, real estate, integral property complexes, and other
types of collateral) was provided in the amount of UAH 770,537 thousand (31 December 2020:
UAH 1,108,794 thousand).
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Concentration risk

Concentration risk is determined by the Group as the risk of possible losses due to concentration of risk in
specific instruments, operations, and industries.

Joint Stock Company “State Savings Bank of Ukraine” is one of the largest state-owned banks of Ukraine,
and specific character of its activities is related to a significant scale of operations with state-owned companies,
including according to government programs, resulting in a significant concentration of credit and investment
risks in relation to certain counterparties and groups of related counterparties and industries.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, 65% and 69% of the assets and 21% and 18% of the liabilities,
respectively, were concentrated in transactions with the Group related parties. The related party operations
include mainly transactions with the Government and entities related to the Government.

The Group manages concentration risk in the loan and investment portfolios by setting limits for certain
counterparties and groups of counterparties. A detailed description of this process is provided above in the
credit risk section. The Group also uses limits based on the NBU requirements to manage the risk.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, concentration of assets per one counterparty, the related state-owned
entity National Joint Stock Company “Naftogaz of Ukraine”, amounted to 3% and 3%, respectively.

An analysis of concentration of assets and liabilities by currencies, maturity, and geography is disclosed in the
respective sections of the risk management disclosures.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises from the mismatch in timing and amounts of cash inflows and outflows which may result in
losses, reduction in revenue or decrease the market value of the Group’s capital as a result of failure of the
Group to cover its cash requirements to fully meet its financial obligations on a timely manner and with minimal
losses.

In order to manage liquidity risk, the Group performs consistent monitoring of future expected cash flows of
clients and banking operations, which is a part of assets/liabilities management process.

The main purpose of liquidity risk management is to ensure availability of sufficient amount of liquid assets to
meet current and planned needs while optimizing the Group expenses associated with the provision of the
required amount of liquid assets. Liquidity risk management is also aimed to ensure the Group’s ability to cover
cash outflow for the crisis scenario (in the case of a systemic crisis, or close to a systemic liquidity crisis).

Identification and assessment of liquidity risk is based on:

 Analysis of cash flows;

 Analysis of liquidity gaps;

 Analysis of the concentration of assets and liabilities;

 Analysis of scenarios, including scenarios for emergency situations modeling abnormal market behavior;

 Analysis of the situation on the financial market in the context of a particular financial instruments.

On a monthly basis, the Assets and Liability Management Committee analyses funding sources taking into
account changes in interest rates for the previous month and makes respective decisions for assets and liability
management.
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The analysis of liquidity gap based on the carrying value of financial assets and liabilities is presented in
the following table. Liquidity analysis is based on estimated cash flows. Certain amounts that are shown in the
table are estimates and can change.

Up to
1 month

From 1 to
3 months

From 3
months to

1 year
From 1 to
5 years

Over
5 years

Maturity
undefined

31 December
2021
Total

Non-derivative financial
assets

Cash and cash equivalents 6,704,857 380 − − − − 6,705,237
Loans to customers 1,220,596 1,621,927 9,697,880 54,102,705 8,110,978 − 74,754,086
Investments 17,822,652 22,081,594 36,073,479 35,714,963 16,415,562 − 128,108,250
Total interest bearing

assets 25,748,105 23,703,901 45,771,359 89,817,668 24,526,540 − 209,567,570

Cash and cash equivalents 12,296,085 − − − − − 12,296,085
Investments − − − − − 577,789 577,789
Other financial assets 55,280 397,549 863 15,082 112 − 468,886
Total non-derivative

financial assets 38,099,467 24,101,450 45,772,222 89,832,750 24,526,652 577,789 222,910,330

Non-derivative financial
liabilities

Due to banks 359,796 − − 7,248,487 − − 7,608,283
Customer accounts 131,444,689 25,208,487 34,248,679 471,556 79,228 − 191,452,639
Eurobonds issued − 1,851,341 1,639,642 4,417,113 − − 7,908,096
Other borrowed funds 161,319 457,268 523,296 1,676,429 − − 2,818,312
Lease liabilities 28,003 45,263 146,881 197,274 11,217 − 428,638
Subordinated debt 197,360 − 170,400 511,200 − − 878,960
Total interest bearing

liabilities 132,191,167 27,562,359 36,728,898 14,522,059 90,445 − 211,094,928

Other financial liabilities 100,099 35 1,290 72 4,365 − 105,861
Total non-derivative

financial liabilities 132,291,266 27,562,394 36,730,188 14,522,131 94,810 − 211,200,789

Liquidity gap between non-
derivative financial assets
and liabilities (94,191,799) (3,460,944) 9,042,034 75,310,619 24,431,842 577,789

Liquidity gap between interest
bearing assets and interest
bearing liabilities (106,443,065) (3,858,458) 9,042,461 75,295,609 24,436,095

Cumulative liquidity gap
between interest bearing
assets and interest
bearing liabilities (106,443,065) (110,301,523) (101,259,062) (25,963,453) (1,527,358)

Cumulative interest
sensitivity gap as
a percentage of total
assets -45.3% -46.9% -43.1% -11.0% -0.7%

Aggregated liquidity gap (94,191,799) (3,460,944) 9,042,034 75,310,619 24,431,842 577,789

Cumulative liquidity gap (94,191,799) (97,652,743) (88,610,709) (13,300,090) 11,131,752 11,709,541
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Up to
1 month

From 1 to
3 months

From 3
months to

1 year
From 1 to
5 years

Over
5 years

Maturity
undefined

31 December
2020
Total

Non-derivative financial
assets

Cash and cash equivalents 11,316,421 − − − − − 11,316,421
Due from banks − − − − − − -
Loans to customers 969,553 1,125,839 12,472,985 40,631,455 8,026,245 − 63,226,077
Investments 3,460,291 9,802,406 48,716,774 50,075,742 17,615,760 − 129,670,973
Total interest bearing

assets 15,746,265 10,928,245 61,189,759 90,707,197 25,642,005 − 204,213,471

Cash and cash equivalents 15,236,778 − − − − − 15,236,778
Due from banks − − − − − − -
Investments − − − − − 580,568 580,568
Other financial assets 58,405 405,620 652 10,329 1,596 − 476,602
Total non-derivative

financial assets 31,041,448 11,333,865 61,190,411 90,717,526 25,643,601 580,568 220,507,419

Non-derivative financial
liabilities

Due to banks 324,695 5,499,287 − − − − 5,823,982
Customer accounts 107,727,390 30,464,256 46,943,486 947,172 83,148 − 186,165,452
Eurobonds issued − 2,029,204 1,714,384 8,001,028 − − 11,744,616
Other borrowed funds 34,620 450,944 866,463 3,100,622 − − 4,452,649
Lease liabilities 29,600 41,277 148,095 185,348 10,579 − 414,899
Subordinated debt 216,756 − 176,581 882,903 − − 1,276,240
Total interest bearing

liabilities 108,333,061 38,484,968 49,849,009 13,117,073 93,727 − 209,877,838

Other financial liabilities 87,672 43 273 960 8,760 − 97,708
Total non-derivative

financial liabilities 108,420,733 38,485,011 49,849,282 13,118,033 102,487 − 209,975,546

Liquidity gap between non-
derivative financial assets
and liabilities (77,379,285) (27,151,146) 11,341,129 77,599,493 25,541,114 580,568

Liquidity gap between interest
bearing assets and interest
bearing liabilities (92,586,796) (27,556,723) 11,340,750 77,590,124 25,548,278

Cumulative liquidity gap
between interest bearing
assets and interest
bearing liabilities (92,586,796) (120,143,519) (108,802,769) (31,212,645) (5,664,367)

Cumulative interest
sensitivity gap as
a percentage of total
assets -39.6% -51.4% -46.6% -13.43% -2.4%

Aggregated liquidity gap (77,379,285) (27,151,146) 11,341,129 77,599,493 25,541,114 580,568

Cumulative liquidity gap (77,379,285) (104,530,431) (93,189,302) (15,589,809) 9,951,305 10,531,873
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The Group’s liquidity risk management includes estimate of the core current accounts, i.e. permanent balances
of the customers’ accounts, using the statistical methods applied to the historical information on fluctuations
of the customer accounts balances. As at 31 December 2021, the permanent balances on the current accounts
were estimated at UAH 59,788,773 thousand (31 December 2020: UAH 45,807,105 thousand). Based on a
going concern assumption of the Bank, the effective maturity of the core current accounts is considered to be
indefinite.

Information as to the expected periods of customers’ accounts repayment and liquidity gaps based on the
expected periods of customers’ accounts repayment is presented below:

Up to
1 month

From 1 to
3 months

From 3
months to

1 year
From 1 to
5 years

Over
5 years

Maturity
undefined

31 December
2021
Total

Total non-derivative
financial assets 38,099,467 24,101,450 45,772,222 89,832,750 24,526,652 577,789 222,910,330

Total non-derivative
financial liabilities 132,291,266 27,562,394 36,730,188 14,522,131 94,810 − 211,200,789

Liquidity gap (94,191,799) (3,460,944) 9,042,034 75,310,619 24,431,842 577,789

Current customer accounts
analysed based
on expected withdrawal
dates 71,655,916 25,208,487 34,248,679 471,556 79,228 59,788,773 191,452,639

Liquidity gap based on
expected withdrawal
dates for current
customer accounts (34,403,026) (3,460,944) 9,042,034 75,310,619 24,431,842 (59,210,984)

Cumulative liquidity gap
based on expected
withdrawal dates for
current customer
accounts (34,403,026) (37,863,970) (28,821,936) 46,488,683 70,920,525 11,709,541

Up to
1 month

From 1 to
3 months

From 3
months to

1 year
From 1 to
5 years

Over
5 years

Maturity
undefined

31 December
2020
Total

Total non-derivative
financial assets 31,041,448 11,333,865 61,190,411 90,717,526 25,643,601 580,568 220,507,419

Total non-derivative
financial liabilities 108,420,733 38,485,011 49,849,282 13,118,033 102,487 − 209,975,546

Liquidity gap (77,379,285) (27,151,146) 11,341,129 77,599,493 25,541,114 580,568

Current customer accounts
analysed based
on expected withdrawal
dates 61,920,285 30,464,256 46,943,486 947,172 83,148 45,807,105 186,165,452

Liquidity gap based on
expected withdrawal
dates for current
customer accounts (31,572,180) (27,151,146) 11,341,129 77,599,493 25,541,114 (45,226,537)

Cumulative liquidity gap
based on expected
withdrawal dates for
current customer
accounts (31,572,180) (58,723,326) (47,382,197) 30,217,296 55,758,410 10,531,873

The Group management believes that the liquidity gap based on the expected maturities of customer accounts
of “Up to One Year” as at 31 December 2021 is controllable and does not present a threat to the Group’s ability
to settle its obligations on a timely basis and in full.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s secondary liquidity reserve amounted to UAH 43,085,965 thousand,
which represented the following securities with a maturity greater than one year:

 Unencumbered government debt securities at fair value through profit or loss. Necessary funds can be
obtained through the sale of these securities or from a refinancing loan from the NBU secured with these
securities. As at 31 December 2021, the fair value of such securities was UAH 33,466,803 thousand
(including interest accrued of UAH 362,939 thousand);
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 Unencumbered government debt securities measured at FVOCI. Necessary funds can be obtained
through the sale of these securities or from a refinancing loan from the NBU secured by these securities.
As at 31 December 2021, the fair value of such securities was UAH 2,254,244 thousand (including
interest accrued of UAH 85,314 thousand);

 Unencumbered government debt securities accounted at amortised cost, which can be used as
collateral to obtain a refinancing loan from the NBU. As at 31 December 2021, the carrying value of
such securities was UAH 7,364,917 thousand (including interest accrued of UAH 173,139 thousand).

The above securities included in secondary liquidity reserves cover the cumulative liquidity gap in the period
of up to one year.

A further analysis of the liquidity by maturities of financial liabilities covers the remaining undiscounted
contractual cash flows (including future interest payments) that are not recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the reporting date. The amounts disclosed in these tables do not correspond
to the amounts recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position in the amount of interest to be paid
subsequent to the reporting date and which are not accounted for on accounts of accrued interest at the
reporting date, as well as unamortised discount/premium.

Up to
1 month

From 1 to
3 months

From
3 months to

1 year
From 1 to
5 years

Over
5 years

31 December
2021
Total

Non-derivative financial
liabilities

Due to banks 415,214 105,473 491,609 9,256,322 − 10,268,618
Customer accounts 131,535,333 25,534,510 34,978,826 506,745 225,100 192,780,514
Eurobonds issued − 2,000,685 1,923,113 4,901,552 − 8,825,350
Other borrowed funds 161,491 467,424 584,292 1,774,699 − 2,987,906
Lease liabilities 28,166 45,453 165,700 279,787 32,703 551,809
Subordinated debt 200,445 − 194,454 547,413 − 942,312
Total non-derivative interest

bearing liabilities 132,340,649 28,153,545 38,337,994 17,266,518 257,803 216,356,509

Other financial liabilities (except
for lease liabilities) 100,100 35 1,290 72 4,365 105,862

Irrevocable loan commitments 18,317,761 − − − − 18,317,761
Guarantees 1,206,390 − − − − 1,206,390
Letters of credit 1,033,730 − − − − 1,033,730
Total non-derivative financial

liabilities 152,998,630 28,153,580 38,339,284 17,266,590 262,168 237,020,252

Total financial liabilities 152,998,630 28,153,580 38,339,284 17,266,590 262,168 237,020,252

Up to
1 month

From 1 to
3 months

From
3 months to

1 year
From 1 to
5 years

Over
5 years

31 December
2020
Total

Non-derivative financial
liabilities

Due to banks 352,723 5,541,014 − − − 5,893,737
Customer accounts 107,835,801 30,837,475 48,225,863 1,020,567 255,953 188,175,659
Eurobonds issued − 2,234,577 2,154,171 9,147,717 − 13,536,465
Other borrowed funds 34,798 468,257 980,095 3,328,707 − 4,811,857
Lease liabilities 30,009 42,922 167,816 272,938 31,226 544,911
Subordinated debt 221,356 − 214,979 979,238 − 1,415,573
Total non-derivative interest

bearing liabilities 108,474,687 39,124,245 51,742,924 14,749,167 287,179 214,378,202

Other financial liabilities (except
for lease liabilities) 721,765 43 273 960 8,760 731,801

Irrevocable loan commitments 14,199,955 − − − − 14,199,955
Guarantees 746,512 − − − − 746,512
Letters of credit 1,071,489 − − − − 1,071,489
Total non-derivative financial

liabilities 125,214,408 39,124,288 51,743,197 14,750,127 295,939 231,127,958

Total financial liabilities 125,214,408 39,124,288 51,743,197 14,750,127 295,939 231,127,958
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Market risks

The Group considers the following risks within market risks: currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.

Interest rate risk

The main activity of the Group includes attracting/placement of interest-bearing liabilities/assets, consequently,
interest rate risk is one of the major financial risks faced by the Group. Interest rate risk arises from the
possibility of adverse changes in market interest rates that have a negative impact on interest income/capital
of the Group.

The main goal of interest rate risk management is to limit the adverse effects of changes in interest rates on
the financial result and capital of the Group.

Interest rate risk is primarily managed by setting and reviewing the yield curve on attraction/placement and
setting target interest spread value. To ensure the budgeted net interest income and the targeted interest
spread value, the Group manages structure of its consolidated statement of financial position, including
interest-bearing assets and liabilities, with focus on optimal balance of interest rate risk and return.

Interest rate risk is managed by using the following methods and tools:

 Setting and revising the yield curve of the attraction and placement by currency;

 Setting limits and restrictions on banking transactions;

 Setting interest spread as the key performance indicator of the Group;

 Managing structural balance of the Group;

 Analysis of possible scenarios and modelling;

 Analysis of interest rate GAP;

 Duration method.

The Assets and Liabilities Management Committee manages interest rate change and market risks by matching
the Bank’s interest rate position, which allows the Bank to perform transactions with a positive interest margin.
The Assets and Liabilities Management Committee monitors the Group’s current financial performance,
estimates the Group’s sensitivity to changes in interest rates and their effect on the Group’s profitability.
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The following table presents an analysis of interest rate risk and its influence on the Group’s profitability.
Average interest rates are presented by categories of financial assets and liabilities to determine interest rate
exposure and effectiveness of the interest rate policy used by the Group.

31 December 2021
UAH USD EUR Other

% % % %
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 0.1 0.05 (0.66) (0.12)
Loans to customers 12.25 6.54 7.33 −
Investments:
Ukrainian government indexed debt

securities 5.86 − − −
Other Ukrainian government debt

securities 11.69 3.66 2.50 −
Other securities 8.41 − − −

Liabilities
Due to banks 9.00 − − −
Customer accounts:
Current accounts 2.14 0.03 − −
Deposits 7.22 0.71 0.37 −
Eurobonds issued − 9.53 − −
Other borrowed funds 6.89 5.87 4.19 −
Lease liabilities 18.19 8.08 − −
Subordinated debt − 7.03 − −

31 December 2020
UAH USD EUR Other

% % % %
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8.94 0.03 (0.55) (0.02)
Loans to customers 11.89 7.05 8.08 −
Investments:
Ukrainian government indexed debt

securities 5.86 − − −
Other Ukrainian government debt

securities 11.62 5.92 2.36 −
Other securities 13.09 − − −

Liabilities
Due to banks 6.00 − − −
Customer accounts:
Current accounts 2.06 0.24 0.03 −
Deposits 6.92 1.88 1.12 1.50
Eurobonds issued − 9.52 − −
Other borrowed funds 8.22 5.87 4.16 −
Lease liabilities 17.85 7.75 − −
Subordinated debt − 7.22 − −

Majority of the Group’s loan and other financial assets and liabilities contracts contain clauses enabling change
in interest rate at the request of the lender. The Group constantly monitors its interest rate margin and does
not consider itself exposed to significant interest rate risk or consequential cash flow risk.

The following table presents a sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk, which has been determined based on
reasonably possible changes in the risk variable. The level of those changes is determined by management
and is disclosed in the risk reports provided to the key management personnel.
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The sensitivity of the Group’s financial result to possible change of interest rate on financial instruments
measured at fair value is presented below:

As at 31 December 2021
Change in profit/loss Change in capital

Interest rate
+1%

Interest rate
-1%

Interest rate
+1%

Interest rate
-1%

Ukrainian government indexed debt
securities at fair value through profit
or loss (1,490,143) 1,576,001 − −

Ukrainian government debt securities
at fair value through other
comprehensive income − − (44,271) 45,684

Other securities at fair value through
profit or loss − − − −

Other securities at fair value through
other comprehensive income − − (5,578) 5,636

Loans measured at fair value through
profit or loss (92,745) 99,345 − −

Total (1,582,888) 1,675,346 (49,849) 51,320

As at 31 December 2020
Change in profit/loss Change in capital

Interest rate
+1%

Interest rate
-1%

Interest rate
+1%

Interest rate
-1%

Ukrainian government indexed debt
securities at fair value through profit
or loss (2,001,558) 2,130,014 − −

Ukrainian government debt securities
at fair value through other
comprehensive income − − (96,816) 99,733

Other securities at fair value through
profit or loss − − − −

Other securities at fair value through
other comprehensive income − − (12,705) 13,041

Loans measured at fair value through
profit or loss (101,945) 109,311 − −

Total (2,103,503) 2,239,325 (109,521) 112,774
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The sensitivity of the Group’s financial result to possible change of interest rate on floating interest rate
instruments is presented in the table below:

31 December 2021

Change in profit and loss

Base rate

Change of interest rate: +1 p.p. for
UAH and +0,25 p.p.
for foreign currency

Change of interest rate: -1 p.p. for
UAH and -0,25 p.p.

for foreign currency
Assets 251,722 (251,722)
ECBDF 3,199 (3,199)
EFF 1,095 (1,095)
EUR LIBOR Overnight 2 (2)
UIRD (3m) 71,125 (71,125)
0UIRD (6m) 13,000 (13,000)
UIRD (12m) 2,363 (2,363)
NBU discount rate 160,938 (160,938)
Liabilities (76,085) 76,085
3m.Euribor (155) 155
3m.UIRD (500) 500
LIBOR 6m. (2,131) 2,131
NBU discount rate (73,299) 73,299

Total 175,637 (175,637)

31 December 2020
Change in profit and loss

Base rate

Change of interest rate: +1 p.p. for
UAH and +0,25 p.p.
for foreign currency

Change of interest rate: -1 p.p. for
UAH and -0,25 p.p.

for foreign currency
Assets 141,483 (141,483)
ECBDF 81 (81)
EFF 111 (111)
EUR LIBOR Overnight − −
UIRD (3m) 14,708 (14,708)
0UIRD (6m) 27,832 (27,832)
UIRD (12m) 170 (170)
NBU discount rate 98,581 (98,581)
Liabilities (10,663) 10,663
3m.Euribor (521) 521
3m.UIRD (500) 500
LIBOR 6m. (3,093) 3,093
NBU discount rate (6,549) 6,549

Total 130,820 (130,820)

As at 31 December 2021, the total impact on the Group’s financial result with an increase in interest rates by
1 p.p. in national currency and by 0.25 p.p. in US dollars and euros may be UAH +175,637 thousand
(31 December 2020: UAH +130,820 thousand), when reducing rates by the appropriate amount, the impact
on the financial result may be UAH -175,637 thousand (31 December 2020: UAH -130,820 thousand).

IBOR reform

International regulators have decided to phase out publishing USD LIBOR indicators on overnight and for 1,
3, 6 and 12 months after 30 June 2023.

As at 31 December 2021, the Bank’s assets has no LIBOR-linked instruments, and the Bank’s liabilities include
subordinated debt linked to 6-months USD LIBOR. After 30 June 2023, the outstanding amount of
subordinated debt will be equal to USD 12.5 million with repayment portion on 19 July 2023 and 19 January
2024.
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At the same time, the terms of the Loan Agreement (agreement on borrowing funds on subordinated terms in
the form of a subordinated loan) define the mechanism for setting the rate in case of termination of LIBOR.

Thus, the Bank has virtually no risk of ceasing to publish the LIBOR rate.

Currency risk

The Group performs transactions in various currencies and, therefore, might be exposed to the negative impact
of currency risk, which represents losses, reduction in revenue or decrease in the market value of the Group
capital as a result of unfavorable changes in foreign currency rates and precious metals market exchange
rates as a result of open currency positions.

The main purpose of currency risk management is to limit the negative impact of changes in exchange rates
on the Group’s financial result and equity. To this end, the Group manages currency position in individual
foreign currencies and precious metals to ensure the optimal balance between risk and yield.

Identification and assessment of currency risks is carried out based on:

 Analysis of Group’s open currency positions;

 VAR-assessment methodology for currency risks;

 Concentration analysis;

 Analysis of possible scenarios and modelling;

 Stress testing.

The Currency Control Department, Treasury, and Strategic risk management and forecasting Department
monitor the Group’s open currency position on a daily basis. Based on the information prepared by the
Currency Control Department, Treasury, and Strategic risk management and forecasting Department, the
ALCO controls currency risk by managing the open currency position based on the estimates of UAH
devaluation and other macroeconomic indicators, which enables the Group to optimize risk of significant
fluctuations in exchange rates against the national currency.
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The Group exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk is presented in the table below:

UAH USD EUR

Other
foreign

currencies

31 December
2021
Total

Non-derivative financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 9,864,223 5,673,970 3,310,072 153,054 19,001,319
Loans to customers 52,226,617 16,436,347 6,091,122 − 74,754,086
Investments 84,628,369 42,510,698 1,546,972 − 128,686,039
Other financial assets 392,814 64,262 11,807 3 468,886
Total non-derivative financial

assets 147,112,023 64,685,277 10,959,973 153,057 222,910,330

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Due to banks 7,250,335 206,123 151,825 − 7,608,283
Customer accounts 142,951,639 40,009,907 8,446,346 44,747 191,452,639
Eurobonds issued − 7,908,096 − − 7,908,096
Other borrowed funds 50,740 249,116 2,518,456 − 2,818,312
Lease liabilities 428,638 − − − 428,638
Other financial liabilities 62,922 42,923 16 − 105,861
Subordinated debt − 878,960 − − 878,960
Total non-derivative financial

liabilities 150,744,274 49,295,125 11,116,643 44,747 211,200,789

Open balance position (3,632,251) 15,390,152 (156,670) 108,310

Open position (3,632,251) 15,390,152 (156,670) 108,310

UAH USD EUR

Other
foreign

currencies

31 December
2020
Total

Non-derivative financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 10,989,746 11,954,390 3,432,681 176,382 26,553,199
Loans to customers 38,257,014 13,922,249 11,046,814 − 63,226,077
Investments 77,256,256 50,214,166 2,781,119 − 130,251,541
Other financial assets 358,063 77,036 41,500 3 476,603
Total non-derivative financial

assets 126,861,079 76,167,841 17,302,114 176,385 220,507,419

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Due to banks 5,501,296 252,391 70,186 109 5,823,982
Customer accounts 120,578,003 53,168,925 12,384,352 34,172 186,165,452
Eurobonds issued − 11,744,616 − − 11,744,616
Other borrowed funds 50,350 772,913 3,629,386 − 4,452,649
Lease liabilities 414,899 − − − 414,899
Other financial liabilities 55,991 41,694 23 − 97,708
Subordinated debt − 1,276,240 − − 1,276,240
Total non-derivative financial

liabilities 126,600,539 67,256,779 16,083,947 34,281 209,975,546

Open balance position 260,540 8,911,062 1,218,167 142,104

Open position 260,540 8,911,062 1,218,167 142,104

The official exchange rates of UAH against foreign currencies at the reporting date used by the Group in
preparing these consolidated financial statements are set out in Note 3.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group is subject to individual currency position ratio set by the NBU.
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Currency risk sensitivity analysis

The table below details the Group’s sensitivity to increase/decrease in USD and EUR against UAH as a result
of possible changes in currency exchange rates. Sensitivity rate is used by the Group when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
possible change in foreign currency exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the end of the period for the appropriate
change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes external loans within the Group where
the denomination of the loan is in a currency different from the currency of the lender or the borrower.

As at 31 December 2021 As at 31 December 2020
UAH/USD

+10%
UAH/USD

-5%
UAH/USD

+10%
UAH/USD

-5%
Effect on profit and equity 1,261,992 (630,996) 730,707 (365,354)

As at 31 December 2020 As at 31 December 2019
UAH/EUR

+10%
UAH/EUR

-5%
UAH/EUR

+10%
UAH/EUR

-5%
Effect on profit and equity (12,847) 6,423 99,890 (49,945)

Investments in USD include indexed state bonds in amount of UAH 28,120,240 thousand at face value.
Revaluation result of the option embedded in the indexed state bonds is accounted for in Net gain/(loss) on
transactions with financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss and as at the reporting date comprised
UAH (3,571,976) thousand, which exceeds the result from the revaluation of the balance sheet short position
UAH 682,879 thousand.

Limitations of sensitivity analysis

The above tables demonstrate the effect of changes in key variables under different assumptions with other
relevant variables kept constant. There may be various additional\secondary correlations between these
variables and other factors, that cannot be incorporated in their entirety into the analysis, that may affect actual
behavior of these variables and their effect on financial outcomes.

The underlying purpose of sensitivity analysis is to identify key factors whose behavior produces the greatest
impact on the financial outcomes, with a view to mitigate expected effects. As such, the Group’s assets and
liabilities are actively managed. Additionally, the financial position of the Group may vary depending on actual
market movements. For example, the Group strategy in respect of financial risk management is aimed at
optimizing the impact of market fluctuations on the operations of the Group. In case of sharp negative price
fluctuations on the stock market, management actions could include selling investments, changing investment
portfolio allocation and taking other protective actions. Consequently, the actual impact of a change in the
assumptions may not have any impact on the liabilities, whereas assets that are held at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position may be affected significantly. In these circumstances, the different
measurement bases for liabilities and assets may lead to volatility in equity.

The Group’s own view of the possible near-term market changes incorporates forecasts issued by established
institutional practitioners of market research, as well as by relevant authorities, and its accuracy is thus
constrained by the accuracy of these forecasts.
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Geographical concentration

Geographical concentration of assets and liabilities is presented below:

Ukraine

Other
non-OECD
countries OECD countries

31 December
2021
Total

Non-derivative financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 12,892,004 28 6,109,287 19,001,319
Loans to customers 74,754,086 − − 74,754,086
Investments 128,137,507 − 548,532 128,686,039
Other financial assets 420,886 − 48,000 468,886

Total non-derivative financial assets 216,204,483 28 6,705,819 222,910,330

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Due to banks 7,607,334 949 − 7,608,283
Customer accounts 190,109,728 1,125,750 217,161 191,452,639
Eurobonds issued − − 7,908,096 7,908,096
Other borrowed funds 113,009 − 2,705,303 2,818,312
Lease liabilities 428,638 − − 428,638
Other financial liabilities 63,035 − 42,826 105,861
Subordinated debt − − 878,960 878,960
Total non-derivative financial

liabilities 198,321,744 1,126,699 11,752,346 211,200,789
Net position on non-derivative

financial instruments 17,882,739 (1,126,671) (5,046,527)

Net position 17,882,739 (1,126,671) (5,046,527)

Ukraine

Other
non-OECD
countries  OECD countries

31 December
2020
Total

Non-derivative financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 15,326,907 208 11,226,084 26,553,199
Loans to customers 63,226,077 − − 63,226,077
Investments 129,700,362 − 551,179 130,251,541
Other financial assets 430,352 − 46,250 476,602

Total non-derivative financial assets 208,683,698 208 11,823,513 220,507,419

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Due to banks 5,822,367 1,224 391 5,823,982
Customer accounts 185,037,707 928,359 199,386 186,165,452
Eurobonds issued − − 11,744,616 11,744,616
Other borrowed funds 260,098 − 4,192,551 4,452,649
Lease liabilities 414,899 − − 414,899
Other financial liabilities 55,949 − 41,759 ,97,708
Subordinated debt − − 1,276,240 1,276,240
Total non-derivative financial

liabilities 191,591,020 929,583 17,454,943 209,975,546
Net position on non-derivative

financial instruments 17,092,678 (929,375) (5,631,430)

Net position 17,092,678 (929,375) (5,631,430)
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The Group’s activities are focused mainly on the domestic market.

Financial assets located in other countries represent funds on accounts with non-resident banks.

The main proportion of financial liabilities raised from non-residents represent loans from international and
other financial organizations, subordinated debt in US dollars and other borrowings from residents of OECD
countries.

Price risk

The Group does not have a trading portfolio, therefore it is not exposed to price risk, which arises from changes
in price quotations due to changes in market conditions.

30. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information refers to the services rendered within segments and is provided to the Group’s
management responsible for making operating decision on resources allocation and assessment of the
segments’ activities.

The following criteria are used for recognition of operating segments:

Segment is a consolidated component of an entity that is engaged in supplying specific product or service (or
group of interrelated products or services) from which it earns revenue and incurs risks that are different from
those related to other segments. The group of interrelated products or services, supplied (provided) by the
segment is combined based on the following criteria:

 The nature of the products or services;

 The nature of the production processes;

 The type or class of customer for their products and services;

 The methods used to distribute their products or provide their services;

 The nature of the regulatory environment.

For the purposes of internal reporting to management, the Group’s operations are divided into the following
segments:

Corporate clients in terms of business areas "Big Corporate Business" and "Micro-, SME"

The Segments provide banking services (loans, deposits, cash and settlement services) to a wide range of
clients, including big, medium, small and micro sized enterprises (SME), state owned companies, and a
number of budget institutions.

Retail business

This segment includes all banking services provided to individuals through an extensive branch network of the
Bank, ATMs, IPTs and through Web-banking and Mobile banking.

Treasury

This segment includes the results of transactions with other banks (including the NBU), both in the national
and foreign currencies, and all assets and liabilities within the liquidity management policies of the Bank.
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General management

This segment covers all non-customer transactions, assets and liabilities under the effective direct supervision
of the Group’s management and committees (ALCO, Finance Committee, etc.). Among other things, it
includes: property and equipment, strategic investments, long-term funding instruments (subordinated debt,
Eurobonds issued, other borrowed funds); equity remaining after distribution to other business segments.

Measuring segment profits and losses

Management accounting methodology used for preparing segment reports is somewhat different from the
methodology applied in preparing other financial statements. However, the information presented in the
segment reporting corresponds to the figures in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income prepared according to IFRS.

To measure net interest income of a segment, the Group uses a “transfer pricing” technique, under which
interest income and expenses of most items on the statement of financial position are compared with the
nominal market rate to calculate the deemed interest margin.

Operating expenses, including depreciation and amortization charges, are allocated directly to segments
whenever possible. For shared costs, the Group performs an expert assessment by using data about the
number of employees, volume of business and other criteria for allocating costs. Some operating expenses
that are non-recurring or one-time by origin (irregular or one-time) and are not directly related to the
transactions with customers are included in the General Management segment.

(Accrual) of allowance for expected credit losses on other operations includes:

- (Accrual) of allowance for expected credit losses on other financial assets and guarantees;

- (Accrual)/reversal of allowance for impairment losses on non-financial assets.

Equity is allocated among segments based on their average risk weighted assets. Unallocated equity is
included in the General Management segment.

According to the division of the Corporate Clients segment into the Big Corporate Business and Micro, SME
areas, were the corresponding recalculation of the indicators compared to the consolidated financial
statements as at 31 December 2020.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group recognized interest income from one counterparty of UAH
8,709,995 thousand and UAH 7,711,526 thousand, which represent 34% and 24% of the Group’s income,
respectively.
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Income, expense and results of reportable segments for 2021

Items Notes

Name of a reportable segment
Unalloca-

ted
amounts Total

Big
corporate
business

Micro-,
SME

Retail
business Treasury

General
management Withdrawal

Income from external customers 7,924,545 3,563,302 7,860,697 (214,347) 6,301,150 − − 25,435,347
Interest income 7,492,540 1,047,632 2,772,981 4,075,683 5,963,705 − − 21,352,541
Fee and commission income 2,028,617 2,521,380 5,071,202 179,886 1,293 − − 9,802,378
Net gain/(loss) on transactions with financial

instruments at fair value through profit or
loss (861,076) − − (4,469,916) − − − (5,330,992)

Gains/(losses) arising on initial recognition
of financial assets at an interest rate
higher or lower than the market rate − − − − 9,300 − − 9,300

Net profit from transactions with debt
financial instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income 2,351 − − − − − − 2,351

Net gain/(losses) on modifications of
financial assets (741,054) (25,152) 17,903 − − − − (748,303)
Other income/(expense) 3,167 19,442 (1,389) − 326,852 − − 348,072

Income from other segments 4,972,943 3,730,947 12,351,456 649,068 2,934,728 (24,639,142) − −
Interest income 4,972,943 3,730,947 12,351,456 649,068 2,934,728 (24,639,142) − −

Total segments income 12,897,488 7,294,249 20,212,153 434,721 9,235,878 (24,639,142) − 25,435,347
Interest expense (6,706,601) (2,015,833) (5,701,391) (5,815,319) (12,389,343) 24,639 142 − (7,989,345)
(Accrual)/reversal of allowance for expected

credit losses on interest bearing assets (1,684,322) (11,994) (197,990) 19,820 35,700 − − (1,838,786)
(Accrual)/reversal of allowance for expected

credit losses on other operations (123,408) (1,522) (67,429) 40 (50,759) − − (243,078)
Dealing in foreign currencies, net − − 276,949 (76,479) 681,625 − − 882,095
Fee and commission expense (1,207,172) (1,567,060) (774,928) (48,624) − − (3,597,784)
Operating expense (875,461) (1,786,477) (7,845,845) (392,728) (696,059) − − (11,596,570)

SEGMENT RESULT (before taxation) 2,300,524 1,911,363 5,901,519 (5,878,569) (3,182,958) − − 1,051,879
Income tax benefit − − − − − − 2,338 2,338

 Net profit for the year from ongoing
activities 2,300,524 1,911,363 5,901,519 (5,878,569) (3,182,958) − 2,338 1,054,217
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Assets and liabilities of the reportable segments as at 31 December 2021

Items

Name of reportable segments

Total

Big
corporate
business

Micro-,
SME

Retail
business Treasury

General
management

Segment assets 55,605,170 9,300,473 21,685,128 53,250,979 95,129,684 234,971,434

Segment liabilities 40,319,170 28,127,626 123,910,990 7,663,959 13,062,152 213,083,897

Other segment items
Depreciation and amortization charges on fixed assets and

intangible assets (143,245) (285,935) (1,221,458) (74,896) (135,792) (1,861,326)
Revaluation reported during the year in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity − − − − (294,216) (294,216)
Capital investments − − − − 922,698 922,698



Translation form Ukrainian original

JOINT STOCK COMPANY “STATE SAVINGS BANK OF UKRAINE”

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(in thousands of UAH)

112

Income, expense and results of reportable segments for 2020

Items Notes

Name of reportable segments
Big

corporate
business

Micro-,
SME

Retail
business Treasury

General
management Withdrawal

Unalloca-
ted

amounts Total
Income from external customers 6,572,397 2,917,839 6,569,937 12,065,395 3,711,566 − − 31,837,134

Interest income 6,723,568 869,890 2,056,772 5,342,960 3,473,752 − − 18,466,942
Fee and commission income 1,392,666 2,054,047 4,471,624 125,096 361 − − 8,043,794
Net gain/(loss) on transactions with financial

instruments at fair value through profit or loss (294,765) − − 6,596,847 − − − 6,302,082
Gains/(losses) arising on initial recognition of

financial assets at an interest rate higher or
lower than the market rate (87,007) − − − (39,239) − − (126,246)

Net profit from transactions with debt financial
instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income 1,871 − − 492 − − − 2,363

Net gain/(loss) on modifications of financial
assets (1,137,398) (27,531) 11,107 - - - - (1,153,822)
Other income/(expense) (37,259) 21,433 30,434 − 276,692 − − 291,300
Profit/(loss) from derecognition of financial

assets measured at amortized cost 10,721 − − − − − − 10,721

Income from other segments 4,726,429 3,563,971 12,674,922 357,475 2,186,773 (23,509,570) − −
Interest income 4,726,429 3,563,971 12,674,922 357,475 2,186,773 (23,509,570) − −

Total segments income 11,298,826 6,481,810 19,244,859 12,422,870 5,898,339 (23,509,570) − 31,837,134
Interest expense (7,008,963) (2,434,600) (7,331,855) (7,484,390) (9,725,897) 23,509,570 − (10,476,135)
(Accrual)/reversal of allowance for expected credit

losses on interest bearing assets (1,550,076) (66,669) 62,056 87,615 (92,829) − − (1,559,903)
(Accrual) /reversal of allowance for expected credit

losses on other operations (16,950) (6,650) (66,807) (81) 27,249 − − (63,239)
Dealing in foreign currencies, net (15,136) − 246,997 (92,591) (2,891,254) − − (2,751,984)
Fee and commission expense (796,695) (1,431,233) (814,507) (36,222) (2,199) − − (3,080,856)
Operating expense (817,360) (1,591,335) (7,607,905) (337,247) (818,732) − − (11,172,579)
SEGMENT RESULT (before taxation) 1,093,646 951,323 3,732,838 4,559,954 (7,605,323) − − 2,732,438
Income tax benefit − − − − − − 43,933 43,933

 Net profit for the year from ongoing activities 1,093,646 951,323 3,732,838 4,559,954 (7,605,323) − 43,933 2,776,371
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Assets and liabilities of the reportable segments as at 31 December 2020

Items

Name of reportable segments

Total

Big
corporate
business

Micro-,
SME

Retail
business Treasury

General
management

Segment assets 52,047,877 6,140,523 17,417,027 73,106,425 84,888,045 233,599,897

Segment liabilities 33,594,242 27,614,749 125,642,626 5,872,228 18,921,925 211,645,770

Other segment items
Depreciation and amortization charges on fixed assets and

intangible assets (128,458) (250,272) (1,117,837) (61,887) (116,793) (1,675,247)
Revaluation reported during the year in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity − − − − (286,371) (286,371)
Capital investments − − − − 1,821,980 1,821,980
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31. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 4 January 2022, a loan from the Entrepreneurship Development Fund was repaid in the amount of EUR
2,000 thousand.

On 22 February 2022, a loan from the EIB was repaid in the amount of USD 8,954,000.

On 25 March 2022, a loan from the Entrepreneurship Development Fund was repaid in the amount of UAH
50,000 thousand.

On 13 April 13 2022, the Bank issued a certificate of a participant of the Deposit Guarantee Fund for #231.
OSCHADBANK’s registration number #240 dated 13 April 2022 as a participant of the Deposit Guarantee
Fund,

In January 2022 the National Bank of Ukraine increased the discount rate to 10.0% per annum, in June 2022
– to 25.0% per annum.

On 7 June 2022 the Group did early repayment of the refinancing loans from NBU with a maturity dates in
2026 in the amount of UAH 7,250,000 thousand.

In 2022, based on the financial result of 2021, the Group paid out a portion of profits in the amount of UAH
318,117 thousand to the general purpose fund of the State Budget of Ukraine in accordance with the resolution
of the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine dated 3 March 2022 #183 "Some issues of dividend payments by state
banks in 2022".

The full-scale military invasion of the russian federation into Ukraine, which began on February 24, 2022, has
radically changed all spheres of life in the country. Active hostilities in many regions of Ukraine lead to the
destruction of infrastructure and production facilities, the rupture of technological ties between the regions, the
death of citizens and a significant increase in forced migration. Blocking of the seaports and reducing grain
exports from Ukraine under current conditions threatens the world's food security.

Disruption of supply chains and production processes, imbalanced demand, increased business costs, and
physical destruction of assets of many enterprises have provoked increase in consumer prices. Food,
pharmaceuticals and fuel prices rose sharply. The impact of the discount rate on the functioning of the
monetary and foreign exchange markets under current conditions is limited.

After the invasion financial institutions offered credit holidays and lowered commissions for their services. This
was negatively reflected in the percentage and commission income. Also, additional allowance for credit losses
recognized upon the war has negative impact on Bank’s financial result.

From the first days of russian aggression, the National Bank of Ukraine introduced measures aimed to defend
the economy, supporting the defense of the state and the uninterrupted functioning of the banking system.
From February 24, 2022, the official exchange rate of the hryvnia to the US dollar was fixed, capital controls
were introduced - investments and repatriation outside Ukraine were banned, the foreign exchange market of
Ukraine was suspended - foreign currency can be purchased only to pay for critical imports and only in
cashless form, limits on withdrawal of funds abroad are set. A well-established process of remote work
contributes to the stable functioning of banks. The National Bank of Ukraine retains full freedom to conduct
non-cash payments and introduced a special tool to support bank liquidity - blank refinancing. The level of the
discount rate was first set at 10% and then increased to 25% in 3rd June to curb inflation.

Actions of the Government and the National Bank of Ukraine promote the economical use of international
reserves.
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The state budget deficit in the first days of the war became the country's biggest financial problem. Budget
funds are used to counter the military invasion, solve humanitarian problems and restore the economy. Since
the beginning of March, the Ministry of Finance of Ukraine has held a number of auctions to issue military
bonds. The most important factor in securing sources of financing for the Ukrainian economy is the
Government's work with international partners. Fundraising to support the Ukrainian army was organized. The
Government's priority actions aimed at easing the shocks caused by the first weeks of the military confrontation
include tax cuts, administrative regulation of prices for certain food positions and fuel, and fixing prices for
housing and communal services.

The final assessment of the economic losses from russia's full-scale aggression against Ukraine will depend
on the duration of hostilities. The key to Ukraine's rapid recovery is further structural reforms, attracting large-
scale international support and integration into the European Union.

The general decline in business activity and falling demand for loans and banking services will continue to
negatively affect banks' profitability. Losses from credit risk are expected to increase due to the gradual impact
of the economic crisis on the activities of borrowers.

Management focuses on maintaining the Bank's sustainability in the current circumstances. In connection with
the military aggression of the russian federation and the imposition of martial law in Ukraine (Decree of the
President of Ukraine of 24 February 2022 №64 / 2022 "On the imposition of martial law in Ukraine")
Oschadbank JSC, as an entity of critical infrastructure, is included in the list of authorized banks that are
involved in work in a special period.

The Supervisory Board, the Management Board and the relevant committees of the Bank continue to perform
their functions. The Bank has taken measures to relocate staff and organize safe work using remote access
to the bank's IT resources.

During martial law, the work was intensified to ensure a sufficient amount of liquidity in order to provide timely
service to legal entities and individuals - the Bank's clients. Damage / loss of the Bank's property due to military
aggression is constantly monitored, as well as assessment and forecast of losses due to deteriorating financial
condition / termination of the Bank's counterparties.

Currently, the Bank operates within the existing business model and developed plans to ensure business
continuity, which include:

 work of the bank's staff during martial law;
 determining the list of areas to which hostilities may spread;
 measures to protect the Bank's premises and ensure the safety of valuables;
 measures to minimize risks in the collection and transportation of valuables;
 organization and maintenance of accounting during the emergency mode;
 execution by the Bank of settlement documents / operations of clients when it its impossible to work in a

regular mode.

In order to ensure the continuous operation of the bank's and client's processes - focused approach during the
emergency, the bank's collegial bodies (board and its committees) make operational decisions aimed at
temporarily simplifying / optimizing the bank's processes with the introduction of enhanced control procedures.
Examples of such optimization, in particular, but not exclusively, are:

 simplification of the procurement process for critical goods / services / works;
 simplification of the work of the Authorized Collegiate Bodies of the Bank with the organization of

correspondence and voting;
 organization of bank customer service without reference to the "home" branch and with a reduction paper

documents;
 active work of the bank with the introduction of a new process - remote identification / verification of the

client + remote opening of card accounts using modern methods of identification (DIIA, liveness detection
method).
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Under martial law, the Group pays considerable attention to ensuring the necessary amount of liquidity
sufficient to meet the liquidity requirements of the National Bank of Ukraine and to effectively serve customers.

Thus, as of May 1, 2022, the amount of cash (cash, funds on the correspondent account with the NBU and on
correspondent accounts with other banks) amounted to equivalent of UAH 24,141 million. or almost 11% of
Group’s total liabilities, the amount of highly liquid securities (state bonds and NBU deposit certificates) - UAH
112,452 million. (at face value), or 49% of the Group’s total liabilities. The value of the liquidity coverage ratio
(LCR) was: in all currencies - 252%, in foreign currencies - 145% (with a minimum requirement set by the
National Bank of Ukraine - 100%), indicating a significant liquidity reserve of the Group to cover short-term (up
to 1 month) outflows of liquid funds. The value of the Stable Financing Ratio (NSFR) was 182% (with a
minimum requirement of 100% set by the National Bank of Ukraine), which indicates a conservative policy on
financing term projects and significant reserve of term liquidity.

In the first four months of 2022, there was a significant increase in the funds of the Group 's customers, which
amounted to equivalent of UAH 16,617 million or 9%. The increase in customer funds was primarily in the
national currency, while balances in major foreign currencies (US dollar and euro) decreased (USD 198 million
and EUR 53 million, respectively) and were backed by government securities and highly liquid assets of the
Group.

The Group continues to finance the economy of Ukraine taking into account the priorities set by the Cabinet
of Ministers of 24.01.2020 №28 and 14.07.2021 №723, in particular agro-industrial enterprises and critical
infrastructure, taking into account the risk-oriented approach.

The Group has no difficulty in attracting resources.

The Group monitors possible threats and vulnerabilities from of external sources (partners, Internet resources).
The Group's security measures are constantly monitored.

The Group 's performance during martial law, as well as the measures it has taken to ensure the effective
performance of its functions, allow the Group's management to be confident in Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern for at least 12 months. The Group 's ability to continue as a going concern takes into account
the conservative assessment of macroeconomic indicators and, accordingly, the amount of reserves for active
operations, as well as the liquidity of the Group (currently the Group has a significant stock of highly liquid
assets, represented by both cash and highly liquid securities – state bonds and NBU deposit certificates, which
cover about 60% of its total liabilities). In addition, the Group's portfolio includes a significant amount of state
bonds with indexed value (whose nominal value is indexed depending on the hryvnia-US dollar exchange
rate), which are an instrument to protect the Group from the devaluation of the national currency.


